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CITY OF 1TROUTDALE

“Gateway to the Columbia River Gorge”

AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL -~ REGULAR MEETING
Troutdale City Hall - Council Chambers
219 E. Historic Columbia River Hwy. (Lower Level, Rear Entrance)
Troutdale, OR 97060-2078

Tuesday, March 8, 2016 — 7:00PM

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL, AGENDA UPDATE.

CONSENT AGENDA: ‘
2.1 RESOLUTION: A resolution repealing the existing Public Art Acquisition
Policy and authorizing the City Manager to Administer Public Art Acquisition

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment is limited to comments on non-agenda

items. Remarks shall be limited to 5 minutes for each speaker unless a different time is alfowed
by the Mayor. The Mayor and Council should avoid immediate and protracted response to citizen

comments.

PUBLIC HEARING / ORDINANCE (Introduction): An ordinance to
withdraw those properties within the City Limits lying East of the Sandy River from

Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 14 and declaring an emergency.
Ed Tromphke, City Altorney

MOTION TO RECONSIDER: A resolution submitting to the Electors of the
City the question of amending Section 27(A) of the 1994 Troutdale Charter to

require Councilor o resign from Council to stand for Election to another office.

Councilor Anderson

RESOLUTIONS: Resolutions approving City financial statements and

receiving Annual Audit Report:

6.1 A resolution approving the City's financial statements and
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year
ended Junhe 30, 2015.

6.2 A resolution accepting the Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants on the audited financial statements of the City for the
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015, the Auditor's Communication to the
Governing Body (SAS No. 114), and the OAR 162.10.000 required
communication. Erich Mueller, Finance Director

City Hall: 219 E. Hist. Columbia River Hawy., Troutdale, Oregon 97060-2078
(503) 665-5175 ¢ Fax (503) 667-6403 * TTIYTEX Telephone Only (503) 666-7470




7. RESOLUTION: A resolution approving the use of not less than $150,000 of the Lease
Revenue from Multnomah County to reduce Property Tax Levy for the Police Facility

Bonds. Erich Mueller, Finance Director

8. PRESENTATION: The Planning Commission’s recommendations regarding the
Capital Improvement Plan. Tanney Staffenson, Planning Commission Chajr

9. RESOLUTION: A resolution adopting the Public Works Department Capital
Improvement Plan, rescinding Resolutions 1995 and 2225, and rescinding the Parks
Capital Improvement Plan adopted by Resolution 1941. Travis Hultin, Chief Engineer

10. STAFF COMMUNICATIONS
11. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS
12. ADJOURN

Lo

Doug Daojust, Mayor
Dated: 3/2// /o

City Council Regular Meetings will be replayed on Comcast Cable Channel 30 and Frontier Communications Channel 38 on
the weekend foliowing the meeting - Saturday at 2:30pm and Sunday at 9:00pm.

" Further information and cobies of agenda packets are avajlable at: Troutdale City Hall, 219 E. Historic Columbia River Hwy.
Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.; on our Web Page www.troutdaleoregon.gov or call Sarah Skroch, City
' Recorder at 503-674-7258.

The meeting location is wheelchair accessible. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other
- accommeodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to: Sarah Skroch, Gity
Recorder 503-674-7258.




AGENDA ITEM #2.1

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: A Resolution Repealing Of The Existing Public Art Acquisition Policy And
Authorizing The City Manager To Administer Public Art Acquisition.

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016

City Gouncil Regular Mig. STAFF MEMBER:  Craig Ward

DEPARTMENT: Executive

ADVISORY COMMITTEE/COMMISSION

ACTION REQUIRED .
Consent Agenda/Resolution EES&“;?Q;;‘:EAT[ON-
PUBLIC HEARING Comments:
No L

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the proposed resolution.

EXHIBITS: None

Subject/ Issue Relates To: : :
[] Council Goals [ Legislative I Other:

Issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points;

4 The current Public Art Acquisition Policy was established 15 years ago and is in need of
updating.

4 The potential art resulting from the new Metro Solid Waste Community Enhancement
Program (CEP) funded projects, creates process complications and questions.

¢ Pending art donations require determination more rapidly than current policy process
allows.

BACKGROUND:

The current Public Art Acquisition Policy (PAAP) was establish by Resolution 1559 adopted June
12, 2001. The current policy went through several revisions and discussion by the Council and




the Parks Advisory Committee (PAC) beginning back in late 1999. The policy was prompted by
a number of art donations made to the City, however there was no process to evaluate these

donations.

The PAAP has been used infrequently in past 15 years, and recently its use generated some
questions and confusion for the PAC, in particular the role, term and membership of the Ad Hoc

Art Selection Committee. .

Under the PAAP all acquisitions sources are processed first through the PAC. The PAC is to
create an Ad Hoc selection committee to consider single specific acquisitions. The Ad Hoc
selection committee recommends to the PAC. A recommendation to acquire or not, is made by
the PAC to the Council for the final decision. '

The PAAP requires all potential acquisitions to be referred to the PAC, then to the Ad Hoc
selection committee, back o PAC, and then finally to Council. A deliberate, yet time consuming

and cumbersome, procedurally heavy process.

The PAAP provides no clear process for acquiring art resulting from CEP funded projects. Also
the PAAP currently does not provide for the Council fo directly make an art acquisition decision
without the cumbersome procedure above.

Summary:

An extensive revision of the PAAP is needed, which will require additional public input and
requiring several months of Council policy deliberation work sessions.

Repealing the existing PAAP and authorizing the City Manager to administer art acquisition will
allow, for an interim period until a new policy can be properly developed, the necessary flexibility
to deal with art donations, and art resulting from

Staff Report - Repeal Of Public Art Aéquisition Policy 03-08-2016 Page 2 of 2




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REPEALING THE PUBLIC ART ACQUISITION
POLICY AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
ADMINISTER PUBLIC ART ACQUISITION.

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:
1. Resolution No. 1559, Establishing The Public Art Acquisition Policy for the City
was adopted June 12, 2001.

2. Over the past fifteen years the current policy has become outdated and the
procedurally cumbersome.

3. An extensive revision of the Public Art Acquisition Policy is needed, which will
require additional public input and requiring several months of Council policy
deliberation.

4, There exists immediate needs related to pending donations of art, and art expected

to result from the new Metro Solid Waste Commumty Enhancement Program
(CEP) projects.

S. Repeal of the existing policy will allow for the necessary time for the extensive
revision process while authorizing the City Manager for an interim period to
address the immediate acquisition needs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE:

Section 1.  Resolution No. 1559, Establishing The Public Art Acquisition Policy, is
hereby repealed.

Section 2.  Designates the City Manager, or a designee, (each a “City Official”) to act
on behalf of the City, and without further action by the City Council the City Official is
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to administer public art acquisition on behalf

of the City.

Section 3.  Further, consistent with intent of the above findings, and in the best interest
of the City, the City Official is authorized to determine, execute, acknowledge and deliver
any documents, and the execution thereof by any such City Official shall be conclusive
as fo such determination.

Resolution # Page 1 of 2




Section 4.  The Finance Director is authorized and directed as necessary to implement
all such actions necessary to ensure budgetary compliance.

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder
Adopted:

Resolution # Page 2 of 2




AGENDA ITEM #4

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: An Ordinance Withdrawing Properties Within The City Limits From
Multnomah County RFPD 14 And Declaring An Emergency

MEETING TYPE:

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016
City Council Regular Mtg.

STAFF MEMBER: Ed Trompke
DEPARTMENT: Legal

ACTION REQUIRED

ADVISORY COMMITTEE/COMMISSION
Ordinance - Introduction

RECOMMENDATION:

Not Applicable
PUBLIC HEARING

Yes Comments:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearings on March & and March 15, 2016 and
adopt the ordinance as proposed.

EXHIBITS:
A. Notice of Public Hearings
B. Letter to Property Owners and Addressee List

Subject / Issue Relates To:
(1 Council Goals X Legislative [ ] Other (describe)

Issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points:

¢ There is overlapping jurisdiction for fire and ambulance services for those properties

within the city limits lying east of the Sandy River, which are served both by Troutdale
and Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 14 (District 14).

Property owners within the area have requested that the City Council consider

withdrawing the area from District 14 due to taxes being paid to both entities for fire and
ambulance services.

ORS Chapter 222 provides a process for withdrawal of the territory from District 14 which
includes a requirement for a public hearing. The city has scheduled public hearings on
March 8 and March 15, 2016 and notified affected property owners (Exhibits A & B).

pproved by City Manager:




4 Aiter considering testimony, is withdrawal of the territory in the best interest of the city?

¢ This is a first reading of this ordinance. District 14 will consider the withdrawal of territory
at their meeting on March 9, 2016 so city staff has not received the fire district’s
comments at this time. The staff report will be updated once the city staff has District
14’'s comments. The council will take public comment at this hearing and may reserve
discussion until the second hearing and reading at the March 15, 2016 special meeting.

BACKGROUND:

Properties east of the Sandy River and within the city limits are provided fire and ambulance
services by both Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 14 (District 14) and the city.
These properties are the only properties within the city that fall within the boundaries of District

14.

For some time, property owners in the territory within District 14 have objected to what they
perceive as two sets of taxes for fire and ambulance services. In response fo property owners’
concerns, city staff investigated the possibility of a rebate. The Secretary of State’s office was
contacted and on the advice of the Attorney General’s office, the Secretary of State determined
that such a rebate was not possible.

Until 2013, the courts had interpreted the statutes to not allow cities to unilaterally move
boundaries. Legislation adopted in 2013, including legislative history, now allows the city to move
forward with withdrawal of the affected territory from District 14. The city has reached out to District
14 and the district will consider the issue at their March 9, 2016 meeting. City staff will update the
City Council on the results of that meeting at the March 15, 2016 council meeting.

Should the city withdraw the properties from District 14, there is an existing mutual aid agreement
between District 14 and City of Gresham Fire and Emergency Services, which provides fire
services under contract with the City of Troutdale so the current emergency capabilities will be
preserved.

ORS 222.524 sets out the process for withdrawing the territory from District 14. The city is required
to give notice of a public hearing and hold at least one public hearing. The city is holding public
hearings on March 8 and March 15, 2016 after which the City Council will consider the testimony
at the public hearings and determine whether withdrawal of the areas within the city limits lying
east of the Sandy River from District 14 is in the best interest of the City of Troutdale.

The proposed ordinance declares an emergency in order to meet filing deadlines with the county
assessor and the Department of Revenue for the boundary change.

RECOMMENDATION:

City staff takes no position on this issue. The decision to withdraw the territory from District 14 is
entirely within the council's discretion.

. n Current Year Budgét Impacts [] Yes (describe) N/A

Page 2 of 3




Future Fiscal Irﬁpacts: [ Yes (describe) N/A
City Attorney Approved: [ N/A X Yes

Community Involvement Process: [X] Yes (describe) [] N/A

Notice of the public hearings was published in the Gresham Outlook and posted pursuant to
ORS 222.524. The public hearings are to be held on March 8 and March 15, 2016 prior to
adoption of the ordinance.

Page 3 of 3




Exhibit A

3/8/16 Council Mtg. — Item #4

PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED WITHDRAWAL OF TERRITORY FROM
MULTNOMAH COUNTY RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT #14

NOTICE is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Troutdale will hold two
public hearings to hear objections to the withdrawal of territory within the City limits and East of
the Sandy River, from Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District #14 and to determine
whether the proposed withdrawal is for the best interest of the city.

The hearings will be held on Tuesday, March 8, 2016 and Tuesday March 15,2016 at
7:00 p.m. at the Council Chambers, Troutdale City Hall, 219 E. Historic Columbia River Hwy,
Troutdale, Oregon, in the Lower Level, at the rear entrance.

Anyone wishing to make comments on this matter may provide testimony at the hearing
or submit written comments to the City Recorder so that it is physically received by the City
Recorder no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 15, 2016. Responses may be mailed to
Sarah Skroch, City Recorder, 219 E. Historic Columbia River Hwy, Troutdale, Oregon 97060-
2078.

The location of the hearing is accessible to the disabled. Please contact the City Recorder
at (503) 665-5175 at least 48 hours prior to the hearing if you will need any special
accommodations to attend or participate in the hearing.

If you have questions, please contact Craig Ward, City Manager at (503) 665-5175.

Dated this 25th day of February, 2016.

Sarah Skroch
City Recorder

PUBLISHED IN THE GRESHAM OUTLOOK ON MARCH 157, 4™ g™ 11™ AND 15™,
2016

51513-73578 Legal Notice for FD14 EXHIBIT A\MMD/3/2/2016




Mayor
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City Council
David Ripma
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City Manager
Craig Ward

City Recorder
Sarah Skroch

Exhibit B

3/8/16 Council Mtg. — ltem #4

CITY OF TROUTDALE

“Gateway to the Columbia River Gorge”

February 25, 2016

Neighbors,

The City of Troutdale has been concerned that our residents east of the Sandy
River pay both the City and Fire District 14 (FD14) for fire services (and you have
gotten services from both). But there did not seem to be a way fo fix the problem
until the legislature recently changed laws, allowing the City to talk to FD 14, and
propose moving the FD 14 boundary so that Troutdale residents do not pay

property taxes to FD 14.

The City has proposed this, and FD 14 is considering how o address the potential
impacts on the district: They will be discussing this at their March .9t
meeting. The City Council will hold two hearings on the question, on March 8 and
March 15, 2016. Council would like to hear from you, because you will be
affected, both in the amount of property taxes you pay (they may decrease) and
in the fire services you receive (they should not change — the City contracts with
Gresham Fire for primary services, and FD 14 provides “mutual aid” as a back-up
service under its agreement with Gresham Fire).

Date: = March 8 and March 15, 2016

Time:  7:00pm

Place: Council Chambers located at Clty Hal] 219 E. Columbia River Hwy.
(entrance is on theback side of the bulldlng, lower lever)

Please come and let the City Council know your thoughts. If you are unable to
attend, you can submit written comments to the City Recorder no later than
Tuesday, March 15, 2016 at 4:00pm by mail to Sarah Skroch, City Recorder, 219
E. Historic Columbia River Hwy, Troutdale, OR 97060-2078 or e-mail to

sarah.skroch@troutdaleoregon.gov.

Yours truly,

Doug Daoust
Mayor

219 E. Historic Columbia River Hwy. e Troufdale, Oregon 97060-2078 e (503) 665-5175
Fax (5.03_) 667-6403 e TTD/TEX Telephone Only (503) 666-7470




Easy Peel® Labels

]
1
Use Avery® Template 5160® ,&

STATE OF OREGON
PARKS & RECREATION DEPT
725 SUMMER ST NE #C
SALEM, OR 97301-1266

LA VON HOWELL
10300 NE HASSALO ST
PORTLAND, OR 97220-39192

NETTIE L COX
C/O TEDDY B PEETZ
15606 SE MEADOW PARK DR
VANCOUVER, WA 98683-4607

MICHAEL L MCKEEL
108 NE 2NP ST
GRESHAM, OR 97030-7504

WILLIAM & SHARON GILLIS

! 1428 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY

TROUTDALE, OR 97060

HAROLD LOUCKS
PO BOX 23
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-0023

PAMELA & GERALD DAVIS
1960SE THOMPSON RD
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-8304

DENNIS & RENEE SCHMIDLING
1972 SE THOMPSON RD
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-8304

GERALD & SHIRLEY LAMBERT

- 1348 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY

TROUTDALE, OR 97060

RICHARD & DORA SCHUELLER
1853 SE THOMPSON RD
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-9361

Etiquettes faciles 3 peler
Utilisez ie gabarit AVERY® 51609

Feed Papey wem=m=m=m

JUDITH W JONES ,
1347 € HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

Bend along line to
expose Pop-up Edge™.

METRO
C/O PARKS & GREEN SPACES
600 NE GRAND AVE '
PORTLAND, OR 97232-2736

JACK & SHELLEY GLASS
1409 HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-8301

SALLY M HICKS
" POBOX284
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-0284

DOUGLAS & PAMELA BRIGGS
1493 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY .
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

ALBERT HERZOG
NAOMI STEINBERG
1756 SE WOODARD RD
TROUTDALE, CR 97060-9350

TANNEY STAFFENSON
SHELBY WINTERS
1820 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

JUDSON J WHITCHER
1914 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY .
TROUTDALE, OR 27060

BARRY & DORCAS WOODIN
1938 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

BARRY & DORCAS WOODIN
1819 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

A feplieza Ia hathure afinde |

,hﬁﬁgggd;gm vévéler le rebord Pap-up™
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. - B\ AVERY® 51600

GEORGE & CAROLE KLINGER
2016 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

v
i
A

CHARLES & RUTH BUCHANAN
2017 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
"TROUTDALE, OR 97060

PENNY B HELD
2060 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

JOYCE L VEGGEN
1785 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

MARTIN & BEVERLY FRANK
1911 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
'TROUTDALE, OR 97060

MARVIN HIEBERT
MARVIN HIEBERT TRUST
1921 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

WADE F JOHNSON
PO BOX 159
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-0159

RODGER M SELLIN
_ PO BOX 2450
GRESHAM, OR 97030-0658

ROBERT & DEBRA CHURNSIDE
28626 E WOODARD RD
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-9316

CRAIG A GARDNER
2150 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TRCUTDALE, OR 97060

WWW.avery.eom
1-800-GO-AVERY
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. EDWARD, JOHANNA & JON SMITH |  DEAN & SHIREEN MACKESON
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| GARDNERVILLE, NV 89460-8801 WEST LINN,.-OR 97068-3312
|
RAYMOND F KIEFER ] : " JEFFREY GERRY
PO BOX 608 ~ JILL ANDERSON
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-0608 4926 SW NORTHWOOD AVE
| ‘ PORTLAND, OR 97239-2821
[
MILES & PAMELA NORRIS ' GERALD & THERESE LAMBERT '
2251 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY 211 SW BIRDSDALE DR
TROUTDALE, OR 97060 GRESHAM, OR 97080-6741

GENEVA & HENRY KELLOGG
6920 SE COTTRELL RD
GRESHAM, OR 97080-8911

BRIAN & KAV OLSZEWSKI
21907 SE ANKENY ST
GRESHAM, OR 97030-8463

SHARON & PATRICK SHAW
1283 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

JUDITH W JONES
1325 E HIST COLUMBIA RVR HWY
TROUTDALE, OR 97060

MARVEN W WINTERS
705 NE SEIDL RD
| TROUTDALE, OR 97060-9398

' TERRY L SCHWARTZ s
2165 NW 153%° AVE
! BEAVERTON, OR 97006-5606

ROBERT & CHERYLE LA ROCCO
29095 SE STARK ST
TROUTDALE, OR 97060-8417 -
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO WITHDRAW THOSE PROPERTIES WITHIN
THE CITY LIMITS LYING EAST OF THE SANDY RIVER FROM
MULTNOMAH COUNTY RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
14 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

1. Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 14 (District 14) is a rural fire
protection district established under ORS Chapter 478.

2. Troutdale provides fire and ambulance service within the city limits, and also
provides mutual aid and assistance with surrounding fire districts, including District 14.

2. District 14 provides fire and ambulance service to all properties east of the Sandy
River, and also provides mutual aid and assistance with surrounding fire districts and
services, including to Troutdale.

3. There is overlapping jurisdiction for fire and ambulance services for those
properties within the city limits lying east of the Sandy River, which are served both by
Troutdale and District 14, and the City Council desires to clarify the jurisdictional boundary
for city fire and ambulance service.

4. The City Council has coordinated with District 14 to set the jurisdictional boundary
for fire and ambulance service at the city limits pursuant to ORS 222.520(1), without
regard to the location of some portions of the city east of the Sandy River.

5. Troutdale has authority to withdraw areas within the city limits from District 14
pursuant to ORS 222.524(3).

6. The City Council held public hearings on March 8, 2016 and March 15, 2016 and
issued notice of same in accordance with the procedure for withdrawal of part of a district
in ORS 222.524(1) and (2).

7. The City Council has carefully considered the testimony at the public hearings and
has determined that withdrawal of the areas within the city limits lying east of the Sandy
River from District 14 is in the best interest of the City of Troutdale.

8. Boundary changes to effect assessment and taxation require filing with both the
Multnomah County Assessor and Oregon State Department of Revenue by March 31,
2016. In accordance with Section 30 of the Troutdale Charter, it is necessary that this
ordinance be considered for immediate adoption. Copies of this ordinance have been
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distributed to the Council and made available for public inspection at least twenty-four
(24) hours before its adoption.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE:

Section 1.  The City of Troutdale declares that the portion of the City lying east of the
Sandy River, and more particularly described on Exhibit A and depicted on Exhibit B, is
hereby withdrawn from Muitnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 14 (District 14)

effective July 1, 2016.

Section 2.  Designates the City Manager, or a designee, (each a “City Official’) to act
on behalf of the City, and without further action by the City Council. The City Official is
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to the necessary actions to implement the
withdrawal from District 14 on behalf of the City.

Section 3.  Further, consistent with intent of the above findings, and in the best
interest of the City, the City Official is authorized to determine, execute, acknowledge
and deliver any documents necessary to implement this ordinance, and the execution
thereof by any such City Official shall be conclusive as to such determination.

Section 4. For the reasons set forth in the findings above, the City Council hereby
declares an emergency. In accordance with CHAPTER VIIl. ORDINANCES Section 30 C
of the Troutdale Charter, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder
Adopted:
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EXHIBIT A

Legal Description
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EXHIBIT B

Map of Legal Description
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AGENDA ITEM #5

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: A resolution submitting to the Electors of the City the question of
amending Section 27(A) of the 1994 Troutdale Charter to require Councilor to resign from
Council to stand for Election to another office.

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016

City Council Regular Mig.
STAFF MEMBER: Ed Trompke

DEPARTMENT:  Legal

ADVISORY COMMITTEE/CONMMISSION
RECOMMENDATION:
Not Applicable

ACTION REQUIRED
Resolution

PUBLIC HEARING
Yes

Comments: None,

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Consider public testimony and vote on resolution.
EXHIBITS: None

Subject / Issue Relates To:
[T Council Goals B Legislative [] Other:

Issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points:

4 Shall Council propose reorganizing the structure of its government by referring a
Charter amendment to the voters that declares a councilor's position vacant if the
councilor runs for election as mayor or any other elected office?

BACKGROUND:

In 2015 City Council formed a subcommittee to consider changes to the current city charter.
Council asked the committee to consider whether it could identify aspects of the charter to

improve, and to seek public input.

The committee met in open, public sessions to undertake its assignment. Members of the public
interacted with the committee. As a result, the committee proposed several changes of which this
is one. Each change proposed an amendment fo the 1994 Troutdale Charter {the “Charter”).

pproved by Gity Manager:




At the February 9, 2016 meeting, this matter was presented to council. An amendment was
offered and adopted, (6-1 vote) but the amended resolution failed by a vote of 5-2. One councilor
who voted with the majority demanded reconsideration at the next council meeting. The special
meeting of February 168, 2016 was limited in purpose so this matter could not be considered. At
the February 23, 2016 meeting, the matter was set over due to lack of time until the March 8,
2016 meeting. '

The resolution in this packet is the revision as it was amended on February 9, 2016 and as it was
rejected. Staff understands that additional amendments may be offered. Should the resolution be
reconsidered and adopted (with or without additional amendments), it will be submitted to the
voters on November 8, 2016.

Section 37 of the Charter requires the council to submit all Charter amendments to the electorate
for a public vote. Accordingly, staff submits the resolution approved by the subcommittee for
council to consider referring to the people.

SUMMARY:

“Resign fo Run” amendment

The existing charter creates two classes of councilors — those whose terms end at the same time
as the mayor’'s terms, and those whose terms overlap by two years. Thus, three councilors must
risk losing their positions if they run for mayor, while three are assured of retaining their council
seats if they lose. This amendment declares that the position of any councilor who runs for mayor
or any other elected office is deemed to be vacant at the end of the year of the election, putting
all councilors on an equal basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

Council may move to reconsider the resolution submitted within this staff report and if the motion
to reconsider is successful, the council may amend the resolution, and then adopt with
amendments or as is submitted within this staff report.

Current Year Budget Impacts [ | Yes (describe) N/A
Future Fiscal Impacts: [] Yes (describe) N/A

Community Involvement Process: Yes (describe) The city organizational subcommittee conducted
its work in public sessions and received public input. Moreover, amendments to the Charter require voter

approval. [] N/A
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS OF THE
CITY THE QUESTION OF AMENDING SECTION 27(A) OF THE
1994 TROUTDALE CHARTER TO REQUIRE COUNCILOR TO
RESIGN FROM COUNCIL TO STAND FOR ELECTION TO
ANOTHER OFFICE

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City Council of the City of Troutdale, Multnomah County, Oregon (The
“City”), has determined that a need exists for the 1994 Troutdale Charter (the
“Charter”) to be amended to require a city councilor to vacate the office of
councilor in order to become a candidate for any other elected office.

2. This need may be accomplished by amending Section 27(A) of the Charter to
read as shown below with new language underlined and deleted language
stricken:

SECTION 27. WHAT CREATES A VACANCY.

A. The office of the mayor or councilor becomes vacant if the incumbent:

1. Dies;

N

Is adjudged to be incompetent;
3. Is recalled from office; or
4. Resigns-; 0r,

5. Councilor becomes a candidate for any other elected office, but the
effective date of the vacancy shall be December 31 of the year of the

candidacy.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE

Section 1. A measure election is hereby called in and for the City of Troutdale,
Multnomah County, Oregon, for the purpose of submitting to the legal voters the
following question:

- Shall councilor's position become vacant on December 31 following candidacy
for another office?
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Section 2. Tuesday, November 8, 2016 is hereby designated the date for holding the
election for the purpose of voting on the measure. As authorized by the County Clerk of
Multnomah County, Oregon and the Oregon Secretary of State, the election shall be
conducted by mail pursuant to ORS 254.465 and 254.470.

Section 3. The precincts for said election shall be and constitute all of the territory
included within the corporate limits of the City of Troutdale.

Section 4. The City authorizes the City Manager.(an “Authorized Representative”) or a
designee of the Authorized Representative to act on behalf of the City and to take such
further action as is necessary to carry out the intent and purposes herein in compliance
with the applicable provision of law.

Section 5. Pursuant to ORS 250.275(5) the City Recorder (the “City Elections Officer”)
shall publish a notice of receipt of ballot title in the Gresham Outlook or Oregonian,
including notice that an elector may file a petition for review of the ballot title not later
than the seventh business day after the title is filed with the City Elections Officer (the

“Notice”).

Section 6. Pursuant to ORS 254.095(2) and no later than 61 days prior to the election
date, the City Elections Officer will file the ballot title with the county clerk and include
the proposed measure in the statement of city measures to be voted on.

Section 7. The City Manager or designee is authorized to prepare and sign, and the
City Recorder is authorized to submit, an impartial explanatory statement for the
measure and submit it to the county clerk for inclusion in the Multhomah County voters’
pamphlet on behalf of the City, as provided in ORS 251.345.

Section 8. The ballot title to appear on the ballots shall be:
CAPTION
Councilor resigns December 31 following candidacy for another elected office.
QUESTION

Shall councilor's position become vacant on December 31 following candidacy
for another office? ’

SUMMARY

The existing charter creates two classes of councilors — those whose terms end
at the same time as the mayor's term, and those whose terms overlap the
mayor's term by two years. Thus, three councilors must risk losing their positions
if they run for mayor, while three are assured of retaining their council seats if
they lose. This amendment declares that the position of any councilor who runs
not only for the position of mayor but any other elected office is deemed to be
vacant on December 31 of the year of the candidacy, putting all councilors on an
equal basis.
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Section 9. This resolution takes effect immediately upon its adoption by the City
Council.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder

Adopted:
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AGENDA ITEM #6.1

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: A Resolution approving the Financial Statements and the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016

City Council Regular Mtg.
y 9 9 STAFF MEMBER: Erich Mueller
DEPARTMENT: Finance

ACTION REQUIRED ADVISORY BOARD/COMMISSION
Resolution RECOMMENDATION:
Not Applicable

PUBLIC HEARING
No Comments:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the recommended Resolution approving the Financial
Statements and CAFR for fiscal year 2014~ 2015.

EXHIBITS:
A: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

Subject / Issue Relates To:
[0 Council Goals [ Legislative Other (describe)
Approving the financial statements and the CAFR satisfies compliance with ORS 297.425

issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points;

¢ The CAFR is the City’s presentation of its financial statements for external reporting
purposes, and facilitates the monitoring and accountability responsibilities of the City
Council for oversight of the City's fiscal affairs.

4 City Management is primarily and ultimately responsible for the fairness of the
presentation of the basic financial statements.

¢ The Council's approval of the City’s CAFR will complete the audit for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

The CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 contains the City’s official financial statements
which were subject to audit by an independent certified public accounting firm.




The CAFR comprises three basic sections: the introductory section which provides general
information on the government’s structure, the financial section that provides information on each
individual fund, and the statistical section which provides a broad range of financial and
demographic information useful in assessing a government’s economic condition.

The minimum level of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {(GAAP) compliant financial
reporting for state and local governments requires a complete set of basic financial statements,
including accompanying note disclosures, and certain required supplementary information (RSI).

The City has chosen to exceed the minimum GAAP requirement by completing the broader
framework of a CAFR. The City participates in the Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program. The most
recent GFOA certificate is on page (v) of the attached CAFR.

The City has successfully obtained the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting for the past 25 consecutive years, and with this report now in review by GFOA,
anticipates a 26th successful year. Of the 38,000 municipal governments across the country,
Troutdale is among the only 3,500 which obtain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting Program.

The Statistical Section (beginning on page 85 of the report) includes useful information for the
Council, management, citizens and financial partners of the City. Historical data is presented for
assets, fund balances, assessed values, property taxes, debt, demographics and city internal
functions. This information helps the reader understand where the city has been and where it is

going.

PROS & CONS:

A. Approving the financial statements and the CAFR as prepared by staff satisfies compliance
with the Municipal Audit Law, ORS 297.425.

B. Not approving the financial statements and the CAFR fails to comply with the Municipal

Audit Law, ORS 297.425 creating negative consequences for City’s banking relationships
and credit rating, and increased liability.
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Ex_iiibit A

3/8/16 Council Mtg. — ltem #6.1

CITY OF TROUTDALE
OREGON

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

For the year ended June 30, 2015

SUBMITTED BY
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Frich Mueller
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CITY OF TROUTDALE

“"Gateway to the Columbia River Gorge”™

December 22, 2015

TC THE HONORABLE MAYOR DOUG DACUST, MEMBERS OF THE CITY
COUNCIL, AND CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

The Finance Department is pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
of the City of Troutdale, Oregon for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. State law requires that
every focal government publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of
audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliabifity of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements. We believe the City's internal control structure
adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial
transactions. To thé best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material
aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The City selected the accounting firm of Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. to conduct the independent
financial audif. The auditor rendéred an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Troutdale
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, The independent auditor's report is located
at the front of the Financial Section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction

© with it.

CITY PROFILE

The City of Troutdale is located in northwestern Oregon, in the eastern part of the Portland
metropolitan area, in Muitnomah County. |t is comprised of approximately six square miles and has

a population of 16,020,

Troutdale was incorporated in 1907 and operates under the provisions of its own charter adopted in
1994 and applicable State law. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government.
Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the City Council which consists of a Mayor and
six Council members. The Mayor is elected to a four-year term; the Councif members are elected
at large by the citizens of Troutdale with each Councilor serving a four-year term. The City Council
provides community leadership and develops policies to guide the City by setting goals, passing
ordinances and adoptihg resolutions, appointing advisory committees, authorizing contracts,
adopting budgets, and hiring the City Manager, City Attorney and City Judge.

The City Manager is the administrative head of the City responsible for carrying out the policies and
‘ordinances of the Council, managing the day-to-day operations of the Cily and appointing
depariment heads. '




The City provides a full range of services as authorized in its charter and ordinances. This ingludes
police protection, contract fire service, street construction and maintenance, water, sanitary and
storm sewers, parks, land use planning and zoning, public improvements, building inspections,
code enforcement, municipal court, récreation programs and general administrative services.

The City’s annual budget is prepared in accordance with the provisions of Oregon Local Budget
Law. The budgeting process includes citizen input through various stages of preparation; public
hearings, and adoption of the final budget by the City Council. Additional resources not anticipated
in the adopted hudget may be added through the use of a supplemental budget. A supplemental
budget requires hearings before the public, publication in newspapers, and formal adoption by the
City Council. Original and supplemiental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation
transfers with required approval by the City Council,

This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Troutdale’s financial planning and
control. Budgetary control is maintained and appropriated at the department or program level in the
general operating fund and public services fund while all other funds are maintained and
~appropriated by major category of expense, such as personnel services, materials and sérvices,

capital outlay, debt service, and transfers. The operating contingency account is appropriated
separately in each fund.

For additional statistics and information about the City of Troutdale please refer to the Statistical
Section of this report,

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTL.OCK

The economy has generally maintained over the past year with an expected 2.5% GDP in 2015
following a 2.4% rate in 2014, The improvement in consumer sentiment provides some
encouragement to the outlook. Corporate profits have maintained but growth has flattened since
the 2014 banner year. Both home prices and unemployment have continued to improve, with auto
sales, while export manufacturing is slowing due to emerging markets weakness.

The ongoing economic recovery has impacted the Portland metropolitan area with positive but
modest job growth during the past year. Both construction activity and business tax collections
continue to improve from the 2008 financial crisis levels. :

The ceriified population of Troutdale was recently updated fo reflect census resulis bring total
residents to 16,020, Improvement in the new commercial construction from no activity in the prior
year and a slight uptick in residential property activity both point to an improving real estate market.
There is renewed interest in Troutdale Reynolds Industrial Park (TRIP) site, in addition to an
expansion project to the successful FedEx facility. Building permit revenues for construction in
Troutdale continued to recover from $282,000 in the prior year to $343,000, and the value of new
residential property starts remained at about $1. 1miilion.

The City of Troutdale receives a portion of the business income tax collected by Multnomah County.
The tax paid to the County equals 1.45% of net business revenues. The County shares 10% of the
collections with the City of Troutdale, City of Gresham, City of Wood Village and City of Fairview.
The tax is distributed based on population and assessed values. Troutdale received $875,000 in the
current year, an increase of $85,000 or 11%, representing continuing recovery of businesses.

The City's location in the Portland metropolitan area provides citizens with many diverse
employment opportunities. The unemployment rate for the Portland metropolitan area was 5.4% in
June 2015, and has move down from 6.1% a year prior. The national average of 5.3% is slightly
less than the Oregon State unemployment rate of 5.5%.




Troutdale has a diversified economic base. The City is home to one of the Port of Portland’s three
general aviation airports. The vibrancy of Troutdale is apparent with its easy access to the Port of
Portland’s international airport and Interstate 84 with two major travel center trucking stops, three
motels, one hotel/resort and recreational vehicle park. Troutdale is home to light manufacturing,
regional transportation trucking facilities, residential care facilities, factory outlet stores and state of
the art shopping centers, A community college and major hospital facility border the south
corporate boundary of Troutdale,

Trautdale’s strategic location at the eastern edge of the Portland metropolitan area, the western
gateway to the Columbia River Gorge National Scenic Area and the Sandy River Recreation Area,
allows Troutdale to offer a combination of urban and rural lifestyles to its residents as well as
attracting tourists and providing exténsive services to commercial travelers.

The City faces longer term financial impact items which include City Hall replacement, capped
property tax increases, increasing health care and retirement costs, and limited acreage for
residential development.

See the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section for additional discussion of
economic factors affecting the City.

MAJOR FINANCIAL INITIATIVES -

Urban Renewal Agency for the City of Troutdale — In January 2006 the City Council established
. the Urban Renewal Agency for the City of Troutdale (Agency). In May 2006 the Troutdale voters
approved the Troutdale Riverfront Renewal Plan. The goal of the Agency is to fund public
improvements and spur private development in the Troutdale Riverfront area. The goal of the
district is to promote the optimum development of the site. The City owned land that housed the
former sewage treatment plant is one specific property the City would like to see redeveloped.
Anticipated development in the district includes a mix of retail, business, and residential housing.
The City also plans to provide public improvements to the area including transportation access
improvements, a riverfront park, public plaza, public parking and a pedestrian bridge to the Town
Center area. The Agency budget appropriation was provided by the City during the 2015 fiscal year
and was inciuded as a component unit [n the City's financial statements.

Comfracted Law Enforcement Services - During the past year the City and the Multnomah
County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) negotiated a ten year intergovernmental agreement (IGA) for the
MCSO to provide police services in the City beginning is coming Fiscal Year. The |GA provides for
expanded law enforcement patrol supervision, expanded investigative expertise, additional service
enhancements, while maintaining the city identity, providing expanding career opportunities for
transferred police officers, and significantly lower cost than continuing a directly operated City police
depariment. Excluding implementation costs, the first year estimated savings exceed $1 million of
reduced general fund costs. The IGA provides an annual cost escalation formula driven by the
MCSO labor contract cost increases, limited to a bracket of 2% to 5% increase over the precedmg
year, beginning with FY 2016-17 through the 2025 expiration. :

Police Department Building — On November 2, 2010 Troutdale voters decided it was a civic
priofity to construct the proposed Community Police Facility by approving $7.5 million of dedicated
property tax resources though a General Obligation Bond. In conjunction with the IGA for Law
Enforcement Services with the MCSO the City also leased the Community Police Facility to
Multnomah County beginning in the coming Fiscal Year. The MCSO will operate the Patrol Division
from the City facility resulting in increased police presence in the City, The rental income net of
landlord operational expense is planned to be applied to the annual bond payments and thereby
reduce the necessary debt service levy upon City taxpayers.

il




Fire & Emergency Services — Fire protection in Troutdale has been provided through a ten year
IGA with the City of Gresham which explred this reporting period. Prior to the 2005-2015 |GA
Troutdale residents have paid significantly less than Gresham residents for fire services. This IGA
was negotiated to narrow the cost disparity with ssgmﬂcant fire services costs increases phased in
during the first two years, followed by fixed percentage increases over the remaining eight years of
the IGA term.

During the past year a negetiating committee of City Managers and elected officials proceeded to
develop a successor IGA for the expiring agreement, The 2015-2025 IGA again narrows the per
resident cost disparity with significant fire services costs increases phased in during the first two
years, followed by fixed percentage increases over the remaining eight years of the 1GA term. The
first increase for FY 2015-16 totaling $168,000 or 10%, followed by a second year increase of
$203,000 or 11% in FY 2016-17. The IGA provides an annual cost escalation formula which includes
an average of CPl and labor cost increases, limited to a bracket of 2.5% to 4.5% increase over the
preceding year, baginhing with FY 2017-18 through the 2025 expiration.

City Hall Building - Addressing the structural and environmental safely issues of the City Hall
building is the City's most pressing facility need. Beyond the several current structural issues, the
facility lacks the necessary space for current and future needs. The current facility lacks adequate
parking for citizens, contractors and staff, and adequate secure records storage space. The building
was vacated with operations being distributed to several locations around the City. The City continues
to review options for a longer term solution.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Assogiation of the United States and Canada {GFOA) awarded a
Ceriificate of Achievement for Excelience in Financial Reporting to the City of Troutdale for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This was the 25th
consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. The Certificate of Achievement
is the highest form of fecognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achlevement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), whose contents
conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is vaiid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
gontinues to conform fo the Ceriificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are

submitting it to the GFQOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was a combined effort of the
dedicated staff in the Finance Department Each member of the department has our sincere
appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. We also acknowledge the
efforts of other departments who provided information that helped to make the report far more than a
presentation of financial stalements.

In closing, we acknowledge the City Counell of Troutdale for their continued support and léadership.

Respectfully Submitted,

Cl L D S =7 W

Craig R. Ward Erich R. Mueller
City Manager Finance Director
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PAuULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C.

12700 SW 72" Ave. Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 6202632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

K. -‘:.._(H?II{II:"!_IH!IEl!l";‘!ii.l']ﬁlfﬂil'bi

December 22, 2015

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Troutdale, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fimd information of the City of Troutdale, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for thie Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stalements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance gbout whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers infernal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troutdale, as of June 30, 2015, and
the respective changes in financial position and budgetary comparisons for the general fund and street
fund, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Ewmphasis of Matter

The City adopted the provisions of GASB 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
GASB 71 — Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, for the
year ended June 30, 2015, Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not.a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an apptopriate operational, economie, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial staternents. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or providé any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements, The supplementary and other information, as listed
in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the anditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




The introductory section, the statistical section, and the other information, as listed in the table of
contents, have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued
our report dated December 22, 2015, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws
and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

A Vg I

Tara M, Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This narrative provides an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. It focuses on the year's financial activities, significant changes
in the City's financial position, budget changes and variances from the approved budget, as well
as economic factors affecting the City. We encourage readers to cohsider the information
presented here in conjunction with the additional information provided in the Letter of
Transmittat and the Basic Financial Statements included in this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The assets of the City exceed its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $55.3 million
(net position). Of this amount, $6.2 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. .

¢ The City's total net position decreased $0.8 million during the year. Due primarily from
" the GASB 68 restated beginning net position and somewhat offset by minimal
investment in capital outlay and effective cost controls marginally higher than budgeted

revenues,

« As of the close of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $9.3 million, an increase of $0.6 million due to reductions in
budgeted expendituras. $3.5 million of the ending fund balance is available to meet the
City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. (unassigned fund balance).

¢ At year-end, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $4.1 million or 45%
of total general fund expenditures during the year. The limited change in the ending
fund balance for the Genéral Fund is attributable to decreased capital outlay and
reductions in budgeted expenditures.

e The Ciiys capital assets net of depreciation decreased by $2.8 million due to limited
capital outlay and routine depreciation and equipment disposals. Long-term debt
decreased by $1.4 million through scheduled debt payments.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City's annual financial report consists of several sections, Taken together they provide a
comprehensive financial look at the City. The components of the report include the following:

o Management’s D|scussmn and Analysis (MD&A). This section of the report provides
financial highlights, overview and economic factors affecting the City. The MD&A is
intended to explain the significant changes in financial posmon and differences in operations

between the current and prior years.

o Basic Financial Statements. This section consists of government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements. The first
several statements are highly condensed and present a government-wide view of the City's
finances. Within this view, all City operations are categorized and reported as either
governmental or business-type activities. Governmental activities are principally supported
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by taxes and intergovernmental revenues while business-type activities recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. Governmental activities
include basic services such as public safety, transportation, community development and
general government. Business-type activities are water, sewer, storm sewer, and public
services. The government-wide statements include the Statement of Net Position and the

Statement of Activities.

+ The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations. [n
simple terms, this statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets the community
owns, the liabilities it owes and the net difference. The net difference is further
separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and unrestricted amounts.

o The Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of city programs and the
extent to which such programs rely upon general tax and other revenues. This
Statement summarizes and simplifies the user's analysis to determine the extent to
which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general revenues,

¢ Fund financial statements focus separately on major government funds and proprietary
funds. Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of -
financial statements. The City's major governmental funds are presented in their own
column and the remaining funds are combined into a column titled “Other Governmental
Funds®. Budgetary comparison statements are presented for the General Fund and the
Street Fund (the sole major special revenue fund). Statements for the City’s proprietary
funds follow the governmental funds and include net position, revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net position, and cash flow.

« The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosures required by
governmental accounting standards and provide information that is essential to a fuli
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial

statements.

Supplementary Information. This section includes combining statements for non-major
governmental funds and budgetary comparison schedules.

~»  Combining Statements. Major funds are included within the Basic Financial Statements,
whereas non-major funds are presented here. These statements include balance sheets
and statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances.

o Budgetary Comparisons. Budgetary information for all funds, except the General Fund
and Street Fund, which are presented within the Basic Financial Statements, are

presented here.

¢ Capital Assets and Other Financial Schedules complete the Financial Section of the
report. :

Statistical Section. Trend information and demographics.

Reports by Independent Certified Public Accountants. Supplemental communication on
city compliance and internal controls as required by Oregon statutes.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. Table 1 provides a summaty of net
position at fiscal year-end and is a condensed version of the statement of net position.

Table 1
City of Troutdale, Oregon

Summary of Net Position

{in millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash and invesiments $ 95 $ 86 $ 56 $ 54 $ 151 3 140
Other assets 2.0 0.9 0.9 0.5 2.9 1.4
Capital assets 18.4 18.7 33.4 34.7 51.8 54.4
Total assets 29.9 29.2 39.9 40,8 69.8 69.8
Other liabilities 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.3 28 28
Long-term debt cutstanding 7.3 7.7 24 3.5 9.7 1.2
Total liabilities 8.7 8.9 3.7 4.8 12.4 13.7
Deferred Inflow s of Resources 1.5 - 0.5 - 2.0 -
Net Position;
Net irvestment in capital .
assets 11.0 1.7 289 30.0 40.9 41,7
Restricted 5.8 5.5 2.4 2.3 8.2 7.8
Unrestricted 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.5 6.2 6.8
Total net position $ 196 $ 202 $ 357 $ 358 $ 553 $ 561

(Note: Prior year was not restated for GASB 68 as the information was not available.)

The City's assets exceeded liabilities by $55.3 million at the close of the fiscal year, a $0.8
million decrease from the prior year, primarily due to the GASB 68 restatement for the
significant net pension liability which was somewhat offset by the delay in many capital projects
and cautlous budget expenditures. The majority of the City's net position reflect investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure) less any related outstanding
debt used to acquire those assets. Net position invested in capital are non-liquid assets that
cannot be used to meet current operating cash flow needs of the City. Investments include
buildings and equipment used to provide city services and infrastructure benefiting the
community, including roads, curbs and sidewalks, and water, sewer and waste water systems.

Restricted net position are subjéect to external restrictions on how they may be used, These
restricted net position include system development charges (SDC) collected from developers to
pay the cost of infrastructure expansion as needed to meet the demands of population growth,
and taxes and other coliections limited fo repayment of debt. The modest increase in
construction activity has generated SDC fees increasing restricted net position.
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The remainder of the net position, referred to as unrestricted, may be used to meet the ongoing

obligations of the government to citizens and creditors.

Statement of Activities

Table 2 provides a summary of the primary sources and uses and the resulting change in net

position for the City. The information is condensed from the statement of activities.

Table 2
City of Troutdale, Oregon
Summary of Changes in Net Position

(in millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 03 $ 03 $ 54 $ 52 $ 58 $ 56
Operating grants and contributions 1.0 0.9 - - 1.0 0.8
Capital grants and contributions 0.0 0.1 - 0.0 4.2 0.1 4.2
General revenues: :
Properiy taxes 4.9 4.4 1.4 1.5 6.3 5.8
Franchise and other taxes 2.4 2.2 - - 2.4 2.2
Other receipts 2.8 2.8 0.1 C.1 2.9 2.9
Totalrevenues  11.3 10.7 7.0 11.0 18.3 216
Expenses: .
General government 2.0 1.9 - - 2.0 1.9
Fublic safety 5.2 5.4 - - 5.2 54
Highw ays and streets 1.2 1.4 - - 1.2 1.4
Solid w astelrecycling 0.0 0.0 - - 0.0 0.0
Community development 1.8 1.8 - - 1.8 1.8
Interest on long-term debt 0.0 0.0 - - 0.0 0.0
Water , - - 1.7 1.9 1.7 1.9
Sewer - - 3.1 3.3 3.1 33
Stormsewer - - 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5
Public services - - 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1
Total expenses 10.2 10.5 6.5 6.8 16.7 17.2
Increase (decrease) in net position 1.1 0.2 0.5 42 1.6 4.4
Net pdsition, beginning 18.5 20.1 35.2 316 53.8 51.7
Net position, ending $19.7 $20.3 $35.7 $35.8 $55.3 $ 56.1

(Note: Prior year was not restated for GASB 68 as the information was not availabie.}

During the fiscal year, the City’s total net position decreased by $0.8 million. Business Type
activities decreased $0.1 million and the Governmental activities $0.7 million decrease.
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The following graph shows the expenses of each governmental function compared to the
rogram revenues generated specifically from its operations.

Program Revenues & Expenses -- Government Activities
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General government support services (administration, legal, human resources, financial, and
computer information services) generate some revenues but are primarily funded from charges
to the direct operating functions they support. The public safety function (police, fire and
emergency setvices) generates program revenues as well, but property taxes and other
General Fund revenues fund the majority of its costs, The highways and streets program is
responsible for maintenance and construction of transportation systems, with funding provided
by gas tax revenues. Community development services include building permit, planning and
zoning, parks maintenance, and faciiities maintenance functions. The building permit program
covers total service costs with user permit fees. The planning and zoning and parks and
facilities maintenance functions cover some program costs with user fees, but property taxes
and other General Fund revenues fund the majority of their costs.

The graph below is a visual representation of the various sources of revenuss used to support
governmental activities.
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Revenues by Source -- Governmental

Activities
Other General
Revenues .
3% Charges for services Operating Grants &

Contributions
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%
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43%
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Governmental revenues modestly increased from the prior year. The majority of governmental
revenues (86%) include property taxes, franchise fees and intergovernmental revenues. 3% of
revenues are from user fees and charges for services, with 8% from operating and capital
grants and 3% other revenues. The increase in governmental revenues from the economic
recovery reflected in County Business Income Tax receipts and State Shared Revenues.
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Governmental program expenses decreased by $0.3 million compared to the prior year. The
increase in governmental expenses is atiributable to Streets maintenance weather impact
delays and marginal cost changes In public safety for police compensation and the fire

protection contract.

Business-type activities provided a $0.5 million increase to the City’s total net position. The
following graph shows the program revenues and expenses generated by each business-type

function.
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Storm sewer Public services

The primary source of revenue for the City operated water, sewer, and storm sewer utilities are
customer user fees. Public services (Public Works management and equipment maintenance
services) generate some revenues but are primarily funded from charges to the direct utility
operating functions they support. Expenses in excess of program revenues represents the

decrease in net position discussed above.

Total revenues decreased $0.3 million over the prior year due to weather impact upon
consumption levels, and the impact of a modest increase of the user rates for water, sewer and
storm water systems, and property taxes. The City collected less than $0.1 million in utility
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systems development charges, down from the prior year FedEx sorting center parking area
expansion. Charges collected for system development fimpact are used to pay the costs of
infrastructure expansion as needed to meet the demands of population growth, including debt
service on financed infrastructure construction. In prior years there had been a significant
increase in these collections, which was reflected in the increase in residential development in
the City. Residential development slowed down dramatically in FYY 2007 and has remained at a
subdued level which resulted in a low level of systems development charge collections.

City utility user fees for water, sewer and storm setvices decreased by $0.3 million or 4.4%
compared to the prior year. This reflects the user rate increase somewhat offset by a decrease
in consumpticn from both economic and weather conditions.

The graph below is a visual representation of the various sources of revenues used to support
business-type activities.

Revenues by Source -- Business-Type
Property taxes e mgw
20% Activities Other General

Revenues
1%

Charges for
services
78%
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The majority of business-type activities revenues are generated from user fees and SDC fees
from private developers.

Business-type program expenses increased by $0.1 milion or 1% compared to the prior year,
primarily due to repair and maintenance projects in both the Water and Storm Sewer

Management activities.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Fund balances totaled $45 million at June 30, 2015, A summary of fund balances follows:

Table 3

City of Troutdale, Oregon
Fund Balances

restated
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 Change
General Fund $ 4,078,457 $ 3,704,929 $ 373,628
Street Fund - 1,310,305 1,123,818 186,486
Other Governmental 3,972,032 3,885,002 87,030
Water 9,446,997 9,581,421 (134,424)
Sew er 18,744,109 17,698,862 1,045,247
Storm Sew er 7,318,045 7,631,542 (313,497)
Public Services 156,715 303,182 (146,467)
Total $ 45,026,660 $ 43,928,757 $ 1,097,903

The general fund balance increased $0.4 million effective cost controls marginally higher than
budgeted revehues. The Ofreet Fund deferred maintenance continued coupled with
construction weather delays resulted in a temporary balance increase. The voters approved a
staged local fuel tax which is expected to bring additional revenue to fund to partially slow the
continual maintenance costs in excess of revenue growth in the fund. The Public Services fund
experienced the planned spend down of accumulated fund balance.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The budgetary statement for the General Fund shows the original budget, final budget and
actual revenues, expenditures and transfers in and out for the fiscal year. Differences between
the original and amended budget were not significant. The City Council approved a resolution
for the transfer of General Fund contingency appropriation authority totaling $499,000 to various
departments within the General Fund. The changes are sumimarized as follows:

s $140,000 loan to the Urban Renewal Agency to cover expenditures for expenses
assoclated with the ongoing brown field testing and analysis and professional consulting

services
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o $220,000 budget contingency transfer to the Police budget to cover the overtime
expenses. '

e $65,000 for legal counsel on environmental liability associated with the development
process of Phase 2 of the Troutdale Reynoids Industrial Park, (TRIP site) and other legal
matters and services.

o $74,000 to provide for additional personnel expenses for Family and Medical Leave
(FMLA) coverage, public artwork acquisition, file server and firewall replacements, and
various other unanticipated and necessary additional expenses.

s $22,000 budget contingency transfers to provide for unanticipated and necessary
additional expenses in the Code Specialties Fund for increased permit volume in
Building, Electrical and Plumbing Divisions.

« $70,000 budget contingency transfers to provide for necessary additional expenses in
the Streets Fund associated with the multi-phase strest maintenance public engagement

and education communications program.

Actual revenues for the year were greater than bddgeted amounts by $184,000 due primarily to
greater than budgeted intergovernmental revenue. The beginning fund balance in the General
Fund was $294,000 greater than budgeted.

On the expenditure side, operations for all departments were under budget by $865,000. Again
the recession impacted development activity with budgeted spending being deferred. The other
major expenditure reductions related to building improvements and other deferred capital
outlays, which when combined with controlled spending across all departments, accounted for
the overall reduction. Factoring out contingency budget expenditures came in 5.4% under
ofiginal budget amounts. ‘

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS
As of year-end, the City had $51.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in capital

assets, as reflected in Table 4. More detailed information can be found in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Capital Assets -
{Net of Depreciation)

(in millions)
Governmental Business-type
. Activifies Activities Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land $ 35 $§ 35 $ 1.8 $ 1.8 $ 5.2 $ B3
intangible assets 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 -
Buiidings & improvements 8.3 8.5 1.5 1.6 9.8 10.1
Land improvements 1.7 2.0 0.1 0.1 1.8 2.1
Equipment 0.4 0.8 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.2
Infrastructure 4.4 4.6 29.7 30.8 34.1 35.4
Work In Progress ' 0.1 0.3 - - 0.1 0.3
Total s 184 7§ 197 § 334 $ 347 $ 51.8 % 54.4

Assets for governmental activities decreased by $1.3 million resulting from the annual recorded
depreciation and the demaolition of the old police station.

Assets for business-type activities decreased by $1.3 million net of depreciation resuiting from
the routine annual recorded depreciation and no significant developer constructed and donated
public improvement projects,

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the Capital Assets Section of
the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements,

DEBT OUTSTANDING

Debt outstanding at year-end is summarized in Table 5. As of year-end, the City had $10.8
million in bonds and notes outstanding. Of that amount, $1.9 million is due within one year.
Total long-term debt decreased from $1.4 million scheduled principal debt service payments.
More detailed information can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Table 8
City of Troutdale, Oregon
Outstanding Debt

(in millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities - Activities Tofal

. 2015 2014 2015 2014 - 2015 2014
C.0.P. Building Loan $ 04 $0.5 $ - $ - $ 04 $ 05
General obligation bond WPCF - - 3.5 46 3.5 4.6
General obligation bond PD 6.9 7.1 - - 89 7.1

L.ease payable - - - - - -
Total "$ 73 '$76 $35  $ 468  $108  $122

Moody's Investors Service has rated the City's general obligation bonds as Aa2. Other debt of
the City has not been rated.
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For more detailed information on the City’s debt and amortization terms refer fo the Long-Term
Debt Section of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND RATES

e The State's property tax regulations set permanent rates and limited growth in existing
property values to a maximum of three percent per year. The assessed values for new
residential and commercial construction are also adjusted to reflect the growth limitations
so they receive the same tax benefit as existing properties. Troutdale's permanent tax
rate is $3.7652 per $1,000 of tax-assessed value,

e For past few years the City had been experiencing a slowing rate of growth in property
faxes, and in Fiscal Year 2013-2014 the assessed value actually decreased 0.88% from
the prior year. This reporting period property values rebounded resuiting in a 3.6%
increase. The coming Fiscal Year 2015-2016 increased 2.6% with apprommately
$117,000 of property tax revenue increase over the prior year.

e The financial markets and credit crisis resulted in substantial declines in the PERS
investment portfolio during 2008 of approximately 28% loss in asset vaiue. Under
current legislation, employer contribution rates are set every two years, changing July 1
of the odd numbered year. Employer rates for this reporting period were based on the
system’s valuation as of December 31, 2013, and reflect the changes from the
Legislature’s Special Session. The Special Legislative Session actions of 2013 which
reduced employer cosis were ruled unconstitutional by the State Supreme Court in April
2015. Substantially higher employer rates will begin in July 1, 2017,

« The City provides fire and emergency services to its citizens through an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of Gresham which expired this
reporting period. A new 10 year IGA was negotiated which provides for a significant cost
increase phased in during the first fwo years, followed by an annual cost escalation
formula which includes an average of CP| and labor cost increases, limited o a bracket
of 2,5% o 4.5% increase over the preceding year, beginning with third year through the
expiration.

» The Street Fund financial forecast indicates a declining fund balance even at a minimal
preservation and maintenance level. To fund the department recommended
maintenance cycle, and meet the City's goal of 100% good or better street rating in ten
years, an additional $430,000 is required annually. The City referred a local gas fax
hailot measure to the voters, who subsequent to the reporting period, approved the
measure. The new tax will phase in over three calendar years beginning with 2016, The
actual revenue once fully implemented will narrow the funding gap for necessary street

maintenance,

Additional information about the operating issues discussed above can be found in the Letter of
Transmittal under the heading, "Economic Condition and Outlook”.

4l.




REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The City's financial statements are designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions abbut the report or need
additional financial information, please contact the City's Finance Director at City Hall, 219 E.
Historic Columbia River Hwy, Troutdale, Oregon 97060-2078.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Statement of Net Position

ASSETS

Cash and invesiments

Accounts receivable, net

Property taxes receivable

Prepaid expenses

Inventories

Restricted cash and investments

Net Pension Asset

Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total assetls

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroli
Accrued compensated absences - current
Deposits
Interest payable
Unearned ravenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Current portion of long-term debt
Due in more than one year
Accrued compensated absences - fong term
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt
Total liabilities

REFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net deferred pension asset

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted
Capital Projects
Debt-Service
Unrestricted
Total net position

June 30, 2015

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 5,440,449 $ 3,226,039 $ 8,666,488
683,843 524,836 1,208,679
300,190 88,175 388,365
4,050 - 4,050
12,893 30,124 43,017
4,098,472 2,374,868 6,473,340
905,873 318,889 1,224,762
3,577,653 1,784,894 5,362,447
14,833,631 31,800,694 48,434,325
28,856,854 38,948,519 69,805,473
562,717 181,166 733,883
334 854 - 334,854
33,873 11,287 45,140
4,100 1,261 5,361
23,318 11,588 34,906
3,500 - 3,500
408,001 1,135,000 1,641,001
107,265 45,070 162,335
7,266,164 2,377,559 9,643,723
8,731,792 3,762,911 12,494,703
1,476,444 519,742 1,996,186
10,979,510 29,873,029 40,852,539
5,241,478 2,374,868 7,616,346
652,205 - 652,205
2,775,525 3,417,968 5,193,494
$ 19,648,718 $ 35,665,866 $ 55,314,584

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund '
This fund accounts for the financiat operations of the City which are not accounted for In any

other fund. Principal sources of revenues are property faxes, state shared revenues,
franchise fees and recovered expenditures. Primary expenditures in the general fund are
made for police protection, community development, and general development.

Street Fund
This fund accounts for revenues from gasoline tax apportionments from the State of Oregon
that are used for the repair and maintenance associated with streets.

URA Riverfront Development Fund |
This fund accounts for the operations of the urban renewal agency. Primary resources are
property taxes.
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GITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
Jupe 30, 2015

URA
Riverfront Other Total
General Fund Street Fund Development Governmental Governmental
ASSETS
Cash and investmenis $ 3,820,254 $ 1,318,176 $ - % 4293491 $ 9,538,921
Accounts receivable 596,803 85,233 - 1,807 683,843
Property taxes receivable 291,637 - - 8,653 300,180
Prepaid items 4,050 - - - 4,050
Interfund loan 250,000 - - 223,000 473,000
inventory 834 12,259 - - 12,893
Due from - - - 303,253 303,253
Total assets $ 5072278 $ 1,413,668 $ - $ 4,830,204 $ 11,316,150
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 246,692 $ 103,383 $ 17,414 $ 185,248 $ 562,717
Payroll liabilities 334,854 - - - 334,854
Deposits - - - 4,100 4100
Unearned Revenue 3,500 - - - 3,500
Interfund loan 133,000 - 250,000 80,000 473,000
Due to - - 303,253 - 303,253
Total llabilities 718,046 103,363 570,667 279,348 1,671,424
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Taxes 275,775 - - 8,157 283,932
FUND BALANCES
MNonspendable * 4 684 12,259 - ‘ - 16,943
Restricted : - 1,298,046 - 4,595,637 5,893,683
Unassigned 4,073,773 - {570,667) (52,938) 3,450,168
Total fund balances 4,078,457 1,310,305 {570,667) 4,542 699 9,360,794
| otal Habiities, geterred
inflows of resources, and
fund balances $ 5072278  § 1,413,668 § - $ 47830204 $ 11,318,180
Amounis reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are difierent because:
Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are nof )
reported in the funds 18,411,184
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expanditures and therefore are deferred
in the funds:
Property taxes earned but unavailable 283,932
Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. (141,138)
The net pension asset (liabllity) and deferred inflows and outflows related to the net pension asset is the
difference between the total pension liability and assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past nad
current employees and beneficiaries
Net pension asset 905,873
Net deferred pension asset - deferred inflow (1,476,444)
All long term liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Position whereas in governmental funds, long
ferm liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported
Interest payable (23,318)
Bond payable (6,915,000)
Capital lease payable (61,144)
Loan payable (403,000)
Post-closure cost care {240,491}
Bond premium (52,530)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 19.648,718

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Property taxes
Franchise

Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures

Interest
Miscellangous

Hotelimotel transient tax

Solld waste tax
Total revenuss

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government

Public safety

Highway and Sireets
Solid wastelrecycling
Community development

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $

URA Riverfront Other Total

General Fund Street Fund Development Governmental Governmental
3 1,404,270 $ 941,334 $ 143,418 % 9,251 $ 2,498,274
298,384 47 - 15,463 313,894
4,865,212 - - 178,303 4,843,515
1,127,818 - - 191,485 1,319,304
48,715 - - 353,221 401,936
295,888 - - - 295,888
20,044 6,863 - 20,609 47516
929,993 - - 34,764 964,757
577,726 - - - 577,726
£8,114 - - - 58,114
9,426,166 948,244 143,419 803,696 11,320,924
2,182,269 - - - 2,182,259
5,877,030 - - - 5,677,030
- 732,538 “ - 732,638

15,114 - - - 16,114
1,036,224 - 226,250 355,058 1,617,532
- 29,220 10,855 267,229 307,304

- - - 126,033 126,033

- - - 16,080 16,0680
8,910,837 761,758 237,105 764,380 10,673,880
515,528 186,486 (93,6886) 38,716 847,044

- - - 142,000 142,000
{142,000} - - - (142,000)
{142,000} - - 142,000 -
373,528 186,486 (93,586) 180,718 647,044
3,704,929 1,123,819 {476,881) 4,361,983 8,713,750
4,078,457 $ 1,310,305 $ (570,667) % 4542899 & 9,360,794

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Recongiliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 647,044

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense o allocate those expenditures over the life
of the assets. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in
the current period,

Capital asset additions $ 149,475
Loss on disposal (271,135)
Less current year depreciation (1,148,218} {1,269,878)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds
Property taxes . 19,085

Loan proceeds provide current financial resources fo governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities In the Statement of Net Position. The
repayment of the principal of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments,

Principal paymenis 340,000
Bond premium 3,283
Landfill post-closure cost care 10,765
Capital lease proceeds ) - (7,751)
Capital lease payments 35,252 381,549

The pension expense and the changes in deferred inflows and ocutflows related to

the Net Pension Asset represents the changes in net pension asset (liabllity) from

year to year due to changes in total pension liability and the fair value of pension

plan net position to pay pensicn benefits. : 1,160,883

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are nof reported as expendifures in

governmental funds.

Compensated absences 172,402
Accrued interest expense 607 173,009
Change in rnet position-of governmental activities ‘ $ 1,111,692

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
O




REVENUES:

Property taxes

Current year

Prior year

Panalties and interest
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Franchise
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfaitures
Interest
Misceflaneous
Hotelfmotel transgient tax
Solid waste tax

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Legislative
Judicial
Legal
General Government
Administration
Community Services
Information Services
Finance
Paolice Command
Police Operations
Solid Waste/Recycling
Fire Protaction Services
Planning
Parks and Greenways
Facilities

Contingency

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2_015

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net ¢changes in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this stateiment.
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Budget . Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 4,538,872 $ 4,538,872 5 4,5?2,0?7‘ $ 33,205
93,938 93,936 77,478 {16,458)
7,500 7,500 15,8657 8,157
1,278,500 1,278,500 1,404,270 128,770
289,269 289,269 208,384 9,115
1,117,112 1,147,112 1,127,818 10,707
42,770 42,770 48,715 5,945
339,300 339,300 295,888 (43,412)
18,000 18,000 20,044 2,044
999,761 999,751 929,003 (69,758)
463,011 463,011 577,726 114,716
54,000 54,000 58,114 4,114
9,242 021 9,242 021 9,426,165 184,144
27,975 36,875 28,362 8,513
111,976 111,976 96,306 15,670
204,796 229,796 201,616 28,180
433,436 473,436 332,054 140,482
849,491 649,492 608,942 40,5560
152,351 152,351 113,627 38,724
264,822 279,822 275,495 4,327
537,091 537,091 524,967 12,124
1,055,363 1,075,362 1,074,372 990
3,266,045 3,426,046 2,913,803 §12,243
25,374 25,375 15,114 10,261
1,688,855 1,688,855 1,688,855 -
276,148 276,148 227,872 48,476
429,610 442 112 439,885 2,227
363,411 370,811 368,667 2,244
750,000 221,100 - 221,100
10,236,744 9,996,748 8,910,637 1,086,111
(994,723) (754,727) 515,528 1,270,255
265,000 265,000 265,000 -
{238,300) (409,300} {308,000) 101,300
25,700 {144,300) {43,000} 101,300
(869,023) (899,027) 472,528 1,371,655
3,185,167 3,195,167 3,488,929 293,762
$ 2,228,144 $ 2,296,140 $ 3961457 $ 1,665,317
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Interfund loan fransactions 117,000
GAAP Fund Balance  $ 4,078,457




CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STREET FUND
STATENENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 20156

Budget Variance with
Criginal : Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 878,177 & 876,177 & 941,334 § 65,157
Charges for services 300 300 47 : (253)
Interest 5,000 5,000 8,863 1,863
Miscellaneous 700 700 - {700)
Total revenues 882,177 882,177 948,244 66,067
EXPENDITURES: '
Personal service 169,004 169,094 169,247 . 8,847
Materials and service 855,100 825,100 573,291 351,809
Capital outlay 127,400 127,400 - 28,220 98,180
Contingency 250,000 180,000 - 180,000
Total expenditures ] 1,401,594 1,401,594 761,758 639,836
Net changes in fund balances {619,417) {519,417) 186,486 705,903
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,074,432 1,074,432 1,123,819 49,387
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 565,016 $ 555015 §& 1,310,305 $ 755,280

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Funds

The City of Troutdale utilizes four Proprietary Funds, These funds are used to account for
acquisition, operation, and maintenance of the water, sewer, dnd storm sewer facilities and
the cost of public works management and operating automotive and other equipment used by
public works, These funds are entirely or predominantly seif-supported through user charges
to customer. Funds included are:

Water

Sewer

Storm Sewer
Public Services

For budgetary purposes (see budget schedules in the Supplemental Information section), the
Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer funds are accounted in the following separate funds:

Water
Water Fund
Water Improvement Fund

Sewer
Sewer Fund
Debt Service Fund (business-type activity portion}
Sewer improvement Fund

Storm Sewer
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund
Storm Sewer Utility Fund

For generally accepted accounting principles purposes, these aforementioned funds and the
Public Services Fund are consolidated and included as four Enterprise Funds.
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivables, nat

Inventories

interfund loan

Property taxes receivable
Total current assets

Noncusrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Net pension asset
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capilal assets being depreciated, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences - current
Deposits
Interest payable
Interfund loan
Bond payable - current maturity
Tetal current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Bond payable

Accrued compensated absences
Totat abilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Net deferred pension asset

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for infrastructure expansion
Unrestricted

Total net position

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statermnents are an integral part of this statement

49

Public

Water Sewer Storm Sewer Services Totals
$ 692,130 $ 2,213,754 3 159,329 L 160,826 & 3,226,039
211,007 282,964 30,865 - 524,836
30,124 - - - 30,124
- 44,000 - - 44,000
: - 88,175 - - 88,1756
933,261 2,628,803 190,194 160,826 3,913,174
30,228 143,328 2,201,312 - 2,374,868
114,754 165,616 43,619 - 318,889
224,389 1,557 434 3,071 - 1,784,894
8,405,091 18,167,800 5,027,803 - 31,600,684
8,774 462 20,024,178 7,280,705 - 36,079,345
9,707,723 22,653,071 7,470,899 160,826 30,992,519
56,672 100,857 19,626 4,411 181,166
3,172 6,065 2,030 - 11,267
1,261 - - - 1,261
- . 11,588 - - 11,5088
- ‘ - 44,000 - 44,000
- 1,135,000 - - 1,135,000
61,006 1:253,510 65,656 4,111 1,384,282
- 2,377,555 - - 2,377,659
12,688 24,262 8,120 - 45,070
73,693 3,665,331 73,776 4111 3,806,911
187,033 263,631 79,078 - 518,742
8,629,480 16,212,675 5,030,874 - 29,873,029
30,228 143,328 2,201,312 - 2,374,868
787,289 2,388,108 85,859 156,715 3,417,088
$ 9,446,897 $ 18,744,100 3 7,318,045 -$ 156,715 $ 35,665,868




CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Proprietary Funds
Staternent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2045

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Storm Sewer Public Services Totals
OPERATING REVENUES ‘
Charges for services $ 1,546,851 § 2,650,379 3% 271,015 % 950,734 § 5,419,879
Licenses & permits : .- - - 8,996 8,906
Miscellaneous 414 47,282 - 261, 47 957
Total operating revenues 1,547,265 2,687,661 271,915 953,991 5,476,832
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services . 226,569 332,178 100,280 769,074 1,428,101
Cepreciation 489,074 780,700 258,197 - 1,527,971
Contractual services 198,429 110,812 202,273 121,368 632,882
Utilities 382,888 444,786 987 23,707 852 368
Repalrs and maintenance 201,851 282 307 20,538 21,618 835,311
~ Other operating expernses 282,692 447 515 23,697 172,257 926,081
Total operating expenses 1,781,403 2,308,298 614,969 1,108,024 5,802,694
Operating income {loss) (234,138) 299,363 (343,054} {148,033) {425,862)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) .
Investment revenue 6,543 11,538 10,453 1,566 30,100
System development charges 8,474 13,350 19,104 - 40,928
Interest expense - {688,810) - - {688,810y
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Intergovernmental 84,697 - - - 84,697
Property taxes - 1,409,808 - - 1,409,808
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 69,714 745,884 28,657 1,566 876,721
Change in net position {134,424) 1,045,247 {313,497) (146,467) 450,859
Net position - beginning - restated 9,581,421 17,668,862 . 7,631,542 303,182 35,215,007
Net position - ending § 9,446,927 § 18744108 § 7,318,045 & 166,716 § 35,665,866

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral part of this staternent.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Proprigtary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

. Public
Water Sewer Storm Sewer Services Total
CASH FLOWS FRON OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts from customers $ 1,492,012 $ 2,676,971 $ 267443 $ 959,801 $ 5306417
Payments to employees {378,406) (528,014) {160,605) (769,074) (1,836,099)
Payments to suppliers (1,099,170) {1,224,735) (236,866) {339,446) (2,200,217}
Net cash provided (used) by ' '
operating activities 14,436 924,222 (130,028) (148,529) 660,101
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capltal contribution 8,474 13,350 18,104 - 40,028
Purchases of capital assets (139,607} (109,491) < {32,931) - (282,029)
Interfund loan - 44,060 (44,000) - -
Property taxes - 1,409,808 - - 1,409,808
Principal paid on capital delt - {1,075,853) - - (1,075,853)
Interest paid on capital debt - {692,288) - - {692,288)
Intergovernmental 84,697 - - - 84,697
Net cash provided {used) by capital '
and related financing activities (46,436) (410,476} (67,827) - {514,739)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 6,543 11,538 10,453 1,666 30,100
Net increase in cash
and cash equivaitenis (25,457) 525,284 {177,402) (146,963) 175,462
Balances ~ beginning of the year 747,815 1,831,798 2,638,043 307,789 5,425,445
Balances - end of the year $ 722,358 $ 2,357,082 $ 2,360,641 $ 160,826 $ 5,600,907
REGONGILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
{USED) BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $  (234,138) § 299,363 $ (343.054) 5 (148,083) §$  (425,862)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Cash flows reporied in other categories:
Depreciation expense 489,074 780,700 . 258,197 “ 1,627,971
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (65,739) (20,690) 4,472} - - (80,901)
Inventories (5,326) - - - (5,328)
Accounts payable (28,084) 60,685 19,626 (496) 51,731
Accrued compensated absences {4,778} 3,587 1,853 - 662
Pension related accounts (147,058} (199,423) (62,178) - {408,6580)
Deposits 488 - - - 486
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 14,436 $ 924,222 $ (130,028) $ (148,529) & 660,101

Thenotes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held as an agent for
individuats, private organizations, and other governments. They are-
custodlal in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement or results of operations.

Helping Hands Fund

This agency fund receives and disburses funds on behalf of local
churches, businesses and the Troutdale Police Department to aid
destitute transient persons within the city limits. The Troutdale Police
Department administers the fund with the advice and concurrence of
the operating organizations.
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ASSETS

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Helping Hands Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2015

Cash and invesiments

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to others

Total labilities

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
I

Helping Hands

Fund
$ 3,155
$ 8,514
(5,359)
3 3,155
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NOTESTO
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAPR). GAAP statements require the application of all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The financial
statements have incorporated all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on accounting procedures issued on
or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB

pronpuncements.

REPORTING ENTITY
The City of Troutdale, Oregon is a municipal corporation, incorporated on October 2, 1907, The

City operates under a Coungil-Manager form of government as amended by the voters in 2010.
The governing body consists of six elected council members and a mayor. The mayor and coundil
members are each elected to serve a four-year term. All are part-time elected officials who
exercise the legislative powers of the City and determine matters of policy. The City Manager, a
full-time appointed official, administers policies and coordinates the activities of the City, The heads
of the various departments, formed to provide services, are under the direct supervision of the City

Manager.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that these
financial statements present the City of Troutdale (the primary government} and all component
units, if any. Gomponent units, as established by the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, 39, 61, are separate organizations that are included in the City’s
reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the

City.

The Urban Renewal Agency {Agency) of the City of Troutdale was created by City Council
Ordinance pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 457.035 in January of 2006. The Trouddale
Riverfront Renewal Plan (Plan) obtained voter approvai in May 2008, and the Plan was assigned to
the Agency to implement. The Agency is a legally separate entity which is governed by a board
comprised of the members of the City Council as stipulated by the Agency’s bylaws, and
operational management of the Agency’s activities is performed by City Management. The City
Council has the ability to impose its will on the Agency as determined on the basis of budget
adoption, taxation authority, and funding for the Agency. The Plan duration was originally approved
for 10 years, which was extended an additional 10 years, with the up to a total of $7 miliion in
principal indebtedness limit unchanged. The Agency is presented as a blended component unit

within the governmental funds.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basic financial stalements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level,

Both levels of statements categorize primary activities as elther governmental or business-type.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and

charges for support.

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a
whole. These statements focus on the sustainability as an entity and the change in aggregate
financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. These aggregated statements
consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a
given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level. Each fund is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as governmental,
proprietary, or fiduciary, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are consclidated
into a single column within each fund type in the financial section of the basic financial statements

and detailed in the supplementary information.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule include charges between the business-type
activities/enterprise funds and the General Fund. Charges are allocated as reimbursement for
services provided by the General Fund in support of those functions based on levels or service
provided. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned. These charges are included in direct program

expenses.

Basis of Presentation
The financial transactions are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing

a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity,
revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

Therse are stated minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and proprietary combined) for
the determination of major funds. Non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements titled “Other Governmental” and detailed in the combining section.

There are the following major governmental funds:

»  @General Fund
This is the primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial operations, except those

required to be accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of revenues are property
taxes, licenses and permits, state and county shared revenues, franchise fees and charges
for administrative services from other funds. Primary expenditures in the general fund are
made for police protection, community development, and general government.

« Street Fund
This fund accounts for the State of Oregon gasoline taxes. The state gasohne taxes are

restricted for expenditures under Article XI, Section 3 of the Oregen Constitution for
gonstruction, maintenance and repair of streets, roads and bike and foot paths.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

.= URA Riverfront Development Fund
This fund accounts for the general operations of the urban renewal agency. Primary

resources are property taxes,
Additionally, there are the following non-major funds within the governmental fund type.

»  Special Revenue Funds
These funds account for revenues from specific taxes or ear-marked revenues that are

legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

«  Debt Servige Funds
These funds account for the accumulation of resources and payment of bond principal and

interest.

< Capital Projects Funds :
These funds account for revenues derived from specific tax or other ear-marked revenue
sources, which are legally restricted to finance the acquisition or construction of major

capital assets.

Each of the four proprietary funds are presented as major funds. Three funds are used to account
for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of water, sewer, and storm sewer facilities and are
entirely or predominantly self-supported through user charges 1o customers. Additionally, the
Public Services Fund is used to account for the public works management function and the cost of
operating automotive and other equipment used by the public works depariment. The fund's
financing sources for the public works management and equipment maintenance aclivities are
billings to the benefiting public works funds. The activities in this fund directly support the
operations of the three other proprietary funds. The following proprietary funds are reported:

«  Water Fund
Water Fund {budgetary basis financial statements only)
Water Improvement Fund (budgetary basis financiai statements only)

- Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund (budgetary basis financial statements only)
Sewer Improvement Fund (budgetary basis financial statements only)
Debt Service Fund (budgetary basis financial statements only - portion related to Sewer

Bonds)

»  Storm Sewer Fund
Storm Sewer Utility Fund (budgetary basis financial statements only)
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (budgetary basis financial statements only)

o Public Services Fund
Additionally, there is the following fiduciary fund:

o Helping Hands fund
This fund accounts for funds on behalf of local churches, businesses and the Troutdale

Police Department to aid destitute transient persons within the city limits.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

MEASURENMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when fransactions are recorded regardless of

the measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds financial statements are
presented on a full accrual basis of accounting with an economic resource measurement focus. An
economic resource focus concentrates on an entity or fund’'s net position. All transactions and
events that affect the total economic resources (net position) during the period are reported. An
gconomic resources measurement focus is inextricably connected with full accrual accounting.
Under the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and

outflows.

Governmental fund financial statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting
with a current financial resource measurement focus. This measurement focus concentrates on the
fund’'s resources available for spending currently or in the near future. Only transactions and
events affecting the fund's current financial resources during the period are reported. Similar to the
connection bhetween an economic resource measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting, a current financial resources measurement focus is inseparable from a modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can
be determined and revenues are considered avaifable when they are collected within the current
period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafier fo be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, revenues are considered available if they are coilected within 80 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues considered susceptible to accrual are property taxes,
state, county and local shared revenues taxes and fees, franchise fees, intergovernmental grants,

and investment income.

A unavailable revenue liability arises on the balance sheets of the governmental funds when
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the
current peiiod. This unavailable revenue consists primarily of uncollected property taxes and
.assessments not deemed availablé to finance operation of the current period. In the government-
wide Statement of Activities, with a full accrual basis of accounting, revenue must be recognized as
soon as it is earned regardless of its availability. Thus, the liability created on the balance sheets of
the governmental funds for unavailable revenue is eliminated. Note that unavailable revenues also
arise outside the scope of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such as when resources
are received before there is legal claim to them. For instance, when grant monies are received

prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures.

Similar to the way its revenues are recorded, governmental funds only record those expenditures
that affect current financial resources. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilittes only when due, or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt
service fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Vested compensated absences
are recorded as expenditures only to the extent that they are expected to be liguidated with
expendable financial resources. In the government-wide financial statements, however, with a full
accrual basis of accounting, all expenditures affecting the economic resource status of the
government must be recognized. Thus, the expense and related accrued liability for long term
portions of debt and compensated absences must be included.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different wieasurement focus and basis
accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is
necessary o explain the gdjustments needed to transform the fund based financial staterients into
the governmental column of the government-wide presentation. This reconciliation is part of the
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenugs include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
cohtributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principle ongoing operations. Theé principle
operating revenues of the City's Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Public Services Funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. The Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Funds also
recognize System Development Charges (SDC) fees intended fo recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the uillity systems as operating revenue. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and averhead charges, and
depreciation on capital assets. Al revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. All Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued prior to November 30, 198¢ have been applied, unless those
pronouncements conflict or contradict Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. Subsequent private-sector guidance will not be foilowed.

When both restricted an;i unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND EQUITY '

Cash and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent, and
amounts in investment pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposit accounts.

Investments are stated at fair value.

Recgeivables and Payables :
Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund
loans} or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due toffrom other funds”. Any. residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported
in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Recorded property taxes receivable that are coilected within 60 days after year-end are considered
measurable and available and, therefore, are recognized as revenue. The remaining balance is
recorded as an unavailable revenue because it is not deemed available to finance operations of the
current period. An allowance for doubtful accounts is not deemed necessary by management, as
uncollectible taxes bacome a lien on the property. Property taxes are levied and become a lien on
July 1. Collection dates are November 15, February 15, and May 15 following the lien date.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15 or February 15. Taxes unpaid
and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.

Assessments are recognized as receivables at the time the property owners are assessed for
property improvement. These receivables are offset by unavailable revenue and, accordingly, have
not been recognized as revenue,

In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes and assessment receivables are
recognized as revenue when earhed.

Receivables of the proprietary funds are recognized as revenue when earned, including services
provided but not billed.

Supply lnventories
Inventories of materials and supplies in all funds are stated at cost on a ﬂrst~m first-out basis and

charged o expenses as used.

Restricted Assets _
Cash and investments which may only be used for construction of capital assets or debt service
principal and interest payments in accordance with applicable laws and regulations have been
reported as restricted cash and investments on the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

and the Propristary Fund Statement of Net Position.

Capltal Assets '

Capital assets — which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure {(e.g., streets,
sidewalks, and similar items) — are reported in the applicable -governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are charged to
expenditures as purchased in the governmental fund statements, and capitalized in the proprietary

fund statements.

Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an’
estimated useful life of greater than one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value as of the date

of the donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position and is provided
on the straight-line basis over the following estimated usefu! lives:

Asset Yearsg
Buildings and improvements 20-50
Improvements other than buildings 10-20
Utility systems and infrastructure 20-40
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 5—-15

Capital assets include contribution of capital assets from outside developers. Revenue from these
capital contributions is reflected in general revenues on the statement of activities.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Accrued Compensated Absences and Sick Pay _

Accumulated vested vacation and comp-time pay is accrued as it is earned. For governmental
funds, only the portion in connection with terminated employees is reported. The non-current
portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) is maintained separately and
represents a reconciling item between the fund-level and government-wide presentations, In
business-type/enterprise funds, both the current and long-term liabilities are recorded.

Sick pay, which does not vest, is recognized in all funds when leave is taken.

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term cdebt and other long-term obfigations are reporied as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of
Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount, Bond issuance costs are
treated as period costs in the year of issue and are shown as other financing uses.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amouni of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. [ssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,

are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balance

In March 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund-type Definitions. The objective of this statement is fo enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied
and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type definitions. This statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound fo observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated,
and unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five new classifications — nonspendable,
restricted, commitied, assigned, and unassigned.

o Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form. The
nonspendable fund balance represents inventories and prapaid items.

o Rastricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a
specific purpose (such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other
governments) or are restricted by law (constitutionally or by enabling legislation).

o - Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a
particular purpose. The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution.

« Assigned fund balange represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use
resources for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that
authority has been given by the governing body. Pursuant to the Fund Balance Policy adopted
by thé City Council Resolution 2110, the City Manager and the Finance Director have been
given authority to assign fund balances.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
7 June 30, 2015

o Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the General
Fund may report a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds would report

any negative residual fund balance as unassigned.

The governing body has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance
categories: Restricted resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted {committed,
assighed or unassigned) resources are available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources
are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and
unassigned.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that will affect the reported amounts of assets and [iabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred oulflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies fo a future period(s) and so will nof
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resourcas (revenue) untll that time. The government has only one
type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, which qualifies for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one
source: property taxes. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amount becomss available. Additionally, another item is reported on the Statement
of Net Position — Net Deferred Pension Asset. This amount is equal to the difference between
actuarially projected investment earnings and actual investment earnings, less confributions that the

Gity paid to PERS during 2014-2015.
. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

BUDGETARY INFORMATION :
An annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 294 — Local

Budgets Law). The process under which the budget is adopted is described in the following
paragraphs.

Each April or May, the City Manager submits a proposed budget to the Budget Committee
(consisting of the City Council and an equal number of citizens of the City). All funds are required
to be budgeted for except the fiduciary fund. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Interfund loans are budgeted as sources and uses in accordance with state budget
laws. Estimated receipts and expenditures are budgeted for by fund and object.

Information on the past two years’ actual receipts and expenditures and current-year estimates are
included in the budget document. '
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The Budget Committee conducts public hearings for the purpose of obtaining citizens’ comments,
and then approves a budget which is then submitted to the City Council for final adoption. The
approved expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than 10% by Council without
returning to the Budget Committee for a second approval. After the Council adopts the budget and
certifies the tolal of ad valorem taxes to-be levied, no additional tax levy may be made for that fiscal

year.

The City Council legally adopted the budget by resolution before July 1. The resolution establishes
appropriations for each fund and expenditures cannot legally exceed these appropriations. The
level of control established by the resolution is by department for the General Fund and by object
class for all other funds. Expenditure budgets are appropriated at the function level in the General
Fund and the following levels for all other funds: Personal Services, Materials and Services,
Capital Outlay, Interfund Transactions, Debt Service, and Operating Contingency. Appropriations
lapse as of year-end. .

The City Council may change the budget throughout the year by transferring appropriations
between levels of control and by adopting supplemental budgets as authorized by Oregon Revised
Statutes. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a
supplemental budget. A supplemental budget requires hearings before the public, publications in
newspapers and approval by the City Council. Expenditure appropriations may not be legally over-
expended except in the case of grant receipts that could not be reasonably estimated at the time
the budget was adopted, and for debt service on new debt issued during the budget vear.
Management may modify original and supplemental budgets by the use of appropnatlon transfers
between the levels of control within a fund.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations
Expenditures of the various funds were within authorized appropriations.

. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

POOLED DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investment balances are maintained in a common pooled account, Investment income is

allocated monthly based on each fund’s average cash balance.

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2015:

Cash and investments | $ 8,668,488
Restricted assets - cash and investiments 6,473,340

Fiduciary cash and investments 3,165
- $ 15,142,983

Deposits with financial institutions ' $ 135,485
Petly cash 1,000
Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool _ 15,006,498

$ 15,142,083
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DEPOSITS

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits. At year-end, the total bank
balance per the bank statements is $235,614. Oregon Revised Statutes require deposits to be
adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as
identified by the Treasury.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits '

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be
returned. There is no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At various times during the fiscal year,
bank balances exceeded the FDIC limit but the excess funds were covered by collateral pledged by
qualified depositories. These depositories are qualified by the Oregon State Treasurer’s office.

INVESTMENTS
Policy is to follow the State statutes governing cash management. Oregon Revised Statutes

authorize investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities, bankers’ acceptances guaranteed by an Oregon financial institution, repurchase
agreements, State of Oregon Treasury Local Government Investment Pool, various interest bearing
bonds of Oregon municipalities, cerificates of deposit, and certain commercial paper among others.

The Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP or Pool) is participated in
and is ah open-ended; no-load diversified portfolio created under ORS 294.805 to 294.895, The
Pool is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissiont as an invesiment
company and is not rated. The State’s investment policies are governed by the Oregon Revised
Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council. The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the
Pool and is responsible for all funds in the Pool. These funds must be invested and managed, as a
prudent investor would, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Investments in the Pool are
further governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board (OSTFB),
which establishes diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of investments.
The Oregon Audits Division of the Secretary of State's Office audits the Pool annually. A copy of
the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report may be obtained at the Oregon State Treasury,
350 Winter St. NE, Salem, Oregon 97310-0840,

Amounts in the Pool are not required to be collateralized. As of June 30, 2015, the fair value of the
position in the LGIP approximates fair value of the value of the pool shares as reported in the
Oregon Short Term Fund audited financial statements.

As of June 30, 2015, there were the following investments:

Investment type Maturities Fair value
Oregon State Treasury’s Local _
Government Investment Pool Avg 0 — 8 months 315,006,498

Interest Rate Risk
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when

the Iocal government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed
by the OSTFB. Declines in fair values are managed by limiting the weighted average maturity of
the investment portiolio to levels required by State statute.
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Credit Risk

State statutes authorize investment primarily in general obligations of the U.8. government and its
agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements,
bankers' acceptances, certain commercial papers and the Oregon State Treaswry’s Local
Government Investment Pool. The Oregon State Treasury's Local Government Investment Pool is
not rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk
At June. 30, 2015, 100% of total investments were in the Oregon State Treasury's Local
Government Investment Pool. State statutes do not limit the percentage of investment in the Pool.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of June 30, 2015 for the major and non-major governmental funds in the aggregate

are as follows:

Total Non-
General Street m _a_ior Total
Propetty taxes $ 291,537 $ - 3 8,653 $ 300,190
Accounts 596,803 85,233 1,807 683,843

$ 588,340 $ 85,233 $ 10460 $ 984,033

‘There is ho allowance for uncollectible accounts deemed necessary by management.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in the fund financial statements in connection with
receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period, Governmental funds also delay recognition in connection with resources that have been
recelved, but not yet earned. As of the end of the fiscal year, the various componenis of
unavailable and unearned revenue reporied in the governmental funds were as follows:

Property Taxes $ 283,932

Other items 3,500
Total $ 287,432
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Non-depreciable
Land 3461425 % - % - 3 3,461,425
Intangibles 16,218 - - 16,218
Construction in progress 334,910 - {235,000} 99,910
Total non-depreciable 3,812,553 - {235,000} 3,577,683
Depreciable
Buildings and improvements 10,712,205 61,126 - 10,773,331
Land improvements 4,655,414 38,177 {(5,452) 4,689,139
- Equipment 2,221,821 33,506 {635,019) 1,620,008
Infrastructure 23,635,283 250,665 - 23,885,048
Total depreciable 41 224,423 384,474 {640,471} 40,968,426
Accumulated dépreciation
Buildings and improvements (2,231,180} (241,431) - (2,472,611)
L.and improvements (2,664,547) {288,095} 5,180 (2,947 ,452)
Equipment (1,467,481) (142,431} 364,147 (1,245,765)
Infrastructure {18,982,706) {476,261) - (19,468,967)
Total accumulated depreciation  {25,355,914) {1,148,218}) 369,337 (26,134,795}
Depreciable, net 15,868,509 (763,744) (271,134) 14,833,631
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 186810682 3 (763744) $ (506,134) % 18,411,184

Changes in capital assets per the above table are net of transfers between functional programs.
Depreciation expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows:

General government $ 69,350
Public safety 211,351
Highways and streets 518,643
Community development 348,874

Total depreciation for governmental activities 5 1,148,218
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Activities
Non-depreciable
Land 3 1,761,742 3 - % - $ 1,761,742
Intangibles 9,468 21,322 - 30,788
Construction in progress 2364 - - 2,364
Total non-depreciakle © 1,763,572 21,322 - 1,784,894
Depreciable
Buildings and improvements 2,313,407 18,312 - 2,331,719
Land improvements 369,982 - - 369,982
Equipment 1,047,635 12,732 - 1,060,367
Infrastructure 55,200,453 229,663 - 55,430,118
Total depreciable 58,931,477 260,707 - 59,192,184
Accumuiated depreciation
Buildings and improvements {757,707) (50,053) - (807,780)
Land improvements (260,265) (21,242) - (281,507)
Equipment (634,612) (138,087) - (772,699}
Infrastructure (24,410,835) {1,318,589) - (25,729,524
Total accumulated depreciation (26,063,519) (1,627,971) - (27,591,480}
Depreciable, net 32,867,958 (1,267,264) - 31,600,694
Business-type activiies
capital assets, net $ 34,631,630 % (1245942) § - $ 33,385,588

Depreciation expense for business-type activities is charged to functions as follows:

Water
Sewer

Storm Sewer
Total depreciation business-iype acihvities
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers between governmental and business-type activiies are reported as net transfers
in the Statement of Activities, Net transfers in the Statement of Activities are reported as zero for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Transfers between funds provide support for various
programs in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Interfund transfers are used to pay administrative services, provide funds for debt service,
contribute toward the cost of capital projects, and provide operational resources.

The transfers for business type activities are presenied in the budgetary funds and not in the
proprietary funds as for generally accepted accounting principals purposes, these funds are
consolidated. '

interfund receivables and payables are used to fund current operations and long term projects.

The interfund activity for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

TRANSFERS TRANSFERS

FROM TO
GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES
GENERAL FUND $ 142,000 $ -
" NON MAJOR FUNDS - 142,000
TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS $ 142 000 $ 142,000
INTEFUND LOAN INTEFUND LOAN
RECEIVABLE PAYABLE
GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES
GENERAL FUND 3 250,000 & 133,000
LRA RIVERFRONT DEVELOPMENT - 250,000
NON MAJOR FUNDS 223,000 90,000
TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS 3 473,000 $ 473,000
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LONG-TERM DEBT

There are a variety of debt types for the purpose of carrying out capital financing activities. The

various types of debt are discussed below. Outstanding debt amounts are as of June 30, 2015.

The following table presenis current year changes in long-term debt outstanding, along with the

current portions due for each issue,

Beginning Due in One
Balance Adjustment Increase Decrease Ending Balance Year

Governmental Activities

Parks and Facilities Loan $ £28,000 $ - 3 - (125,000 3 403,000 $ 130,000
G.0. Bond 7,130,000 - - {215,000} 6,915,000 230,000
Capital Leases 88,645 7,751 Lo {35,252) 81,144 34,906
Landfill post-closure care 251,266 - - {10,765) 240,491 11,005
Deferred Amounts: .

Bond Premium 55,813 - - (3,283) 52,530 -
Total Governmental Activities $ 8,083,714 °$ 7,751 $ - $ (3893000 % 7,872,165 $ 408,001
Business-type Activities

Refunding, 2008 $ 4,645,000 $ - $ - ${1,090,000) $ 3,655,000 $ 1,135,000
Deferred Amounts:

Band Premium (106,941) - - 286,736 (80,205) -
Bond Discount 60,3563 - - (12,689) 37,764 -
Total Business-type Activities $ 4,588,412 $ - $ - $(1,075,853) % 3,512,559 $ 1,135,000

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Loan Payable

A loan was entered into in the amount of $1,173,000 in March of 2008. Principal and interest of
3.45%, on the loan will be paid from general purpose revenues and user fees, however, the full faith

and credit of the government is pledged for payment.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending _

June 30, Principal Interest
2016 $ 130,000 $ 11,661
2017 135,000 7,090
2018 138,000 2,381
Totals $ 403,000 § 21,132
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General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds were issued in February of 2011 in the amount of $7,540,000 for the
construction of a new police station. These twenty (20) year term bonds were issued with interest
rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.0% and the final maturity due in 2031. The balance outstanding at
June 30, 2015 is $6,915,000. Principal and interest is payable from property tax revenues.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds for governmental type
activities are as follows: .

Year Ending

June 30, Principal - Interest
2016 $ 230,000 $ 275,535
2017 245,000 270,935
2018 265,000 - 263,585
2019 290,000 253,698
2020 315,000 242 098

2021-25 : 2,005,000 999,490

2026-30 2,865,000 528,555
2031 700,000 30,450
Totals $ 6,915,000 $ 2,864,346

Capital leases

- A capital lease was entered into for a Panasonic Arbitrator. The cost of the equipment was
capitalized for $118,800. The lease Is for a period of 60 months and yearly payments are required.
$24,700 was paid for the lease in the current year. The following is a schedule of future lease

payments at June 30:

June 30, Principal Interest
2016 $ 24,800 $ =
Total $ 24,800 3% -

A capital lease was entered into for a copier. The cost of the equipment was capitalized for $7,771.
The lease is for a period of 36 months and yearly payments are required ranging from $2,891. The
current year lease expense was $2,104. The lease was paid off in the current year.

Capital leases were entered into for additional copiers. The cost of the equipment was capitalized
for $50,976. The lease is for a period of 60 months and yearly payments are required ranging from
$10,060. The current year leass expense was $5,448. The following is a schedule of future lease

payments at June 30:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal interest
2015 $ 10,196 $ 1,604
2016 10,196 1,178
2017 : 10,194 700
2018 5,758 253
Totals $ 36,344 $ 3,735
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

General Obligation Bonds
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.
General obligation bonds were issued to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major

capital facilities.

General obligation bonds were issued in February 1999 in the amount of $16,000,000 for the
acquisition of tand and construction of a new Water Pollution Control Facility. These twenty (20)
year term bonds were issued with interest rates ranging from 3.2% to 4.75% and the final maturity
due in June 2018. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2015 is $3,555,000. Principal and interest
is payable from property tax revenues, sewer user fees, and sewer system development fees,

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds for business type
activities are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest
2016 $ 1,135,000 $ 140,981
2017 1,185,000 96,800
2018 1,235,000 49,400
Totals $ 3,555,000 3 287,181

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Changes in accrued compensated absences are as follows:

Due

Beginning Ending within
Balance Increases Pecreases Balance one year
Governmental $ 313,540 $ 13,489 £(185,821) ¥ 141,138 $33,873
Business Type 55,675 5,440 {4,778) 56,337 11,267
Total § 369,215 5 18,929 $(190,669) $ 197,475 $45,140

The General Fund has been charged with the costs to liquidate the liability for the compensated
absence for the governmental funds. .
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'RESTRICTED ASSETS

The bafances of the restricted cash and investment accounts are as follows:

Governmental Business-Tyne
Street 3 1,316,176 $ -
Project Fund 51,353 -
Street Tree 47,567 -
Code Specialties 159,545 -
Sam Cox Building 41,162 -
Bike Paths and Trails 54,071 -
Debt service reserves: : .
General Fund COP 7,114 -
URA Debt Service 340,357 -
System Development Charges:
Water SDC ' - 30,228
Sewer SDC - 143,328
Sireet SDC 008,399 -
Storm SDC - 2,201,312
Parks 5DC 1,172,728 -
Total restricted assets $ 4,008,472 $ 2,374,868

4. OTHER INFORMATION

RISK MANAGEMENT

There is exposure to various risks of loss related fo torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and hatural disasters. The City is a member of
City-County insurance Services (CCIS), a public entity risk pool currently operating a common risk
management and insurance program. An annual premium is paid to CCIS for its insurance
coverage. Based on the experience and the pool, there may be liability for an additional premium of
up to approximately 20% of its initial premium or it may receive a refund. There has never been the
requirement to pay an additional premium. Predetermined limits and deductible amounts are stated
in the policy. Commercial insurance is carried for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded cornmercial insurance ‘coverage in any of the past three fiscal

years,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary
course of its operations. Management intends to vigorously coniest these matfers and does not
believe their ultimate resolution will have a material effect upon the financial position, resulis of

operations ot cash flows.

During-1979 and 1980 sewer hookup reservations were sold as a means of financing the expansion
of the wastewater treatment plant. Amounts received from properly owners are nontransferable
and nonrefundable. Deposits are applied to the sewer system development charge at the time of
hookup.
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Federal grants are subject to audit by the grantor agency and any adjustments may become a
liability of the appropriate fund. Management believes that adjustments, if any, will not materially
affect the financial position.

PENSION PLAN — OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description — The Cregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Al benefits of the system are established by
the legisiature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Oregon
PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be
found at: http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financials.aspx.

b)

a,

f)

if)

iv)

PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to
new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be
selected from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and
lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary.
A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for general
service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average
salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members
who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater
henefits resulis. )
Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-
sum refund of the member's account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In
addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the
account balance, provided on or more of the following contributions are met:

« member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,

» member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,

« member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job,

or ‘
¢ member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of

death. :
Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes
disable from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A
disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or iliness qualifies a member (including PERS
judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service.
Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58
(55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in a
variable eguities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit
fluctuations due to changes in the market value equity investments. Under ORS 238.360
monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. The cap on the
COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB). The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension
Program provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

i

Pension -Benefits. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer
contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain

normal retirement age:
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Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with
25 years of retirement credit. To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual
must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years

~ immediately preceding retirement.
General service: 1.5 percent is mulliplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58

with 30 years of retirement credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates:
the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date
the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the
date on which termination becomes effective.

i)y Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is
constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life
50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member,

jify Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits
before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-
related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member's salary
determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.

iv) Benefit Changes After Retirement. Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted
annually through cost-of-living changes. The cap on the COLA will vary based on the
amount of the annual benefit.

Contributions — PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are
intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The funding policy applies to
the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer
“contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation,
which became effective July 1, 2013. The state of Oregon and certain schools, community
colleges, and political subdivision have made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates
have been reduced. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 20156 were $414,661,
excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities. In addition approximately $273,315 in
employee contributions were paid or picked up by the City in fiscal 2015.

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a net pension asset of $1,224,762 for its proportionate share
of the net pension asset. The pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2012, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At December 31,
2012, the City's proportion was .064 percent.
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Deferred Outflow  Deferred Inflow
of Resources  of Resources
Difference hetween expected and actual experience $ - $ -

Changes in assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

garnings on pension plan investments - 2,363,294
Changes in proportion and differences between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 47,554
City contributions subsequent to measurment date - -

- {2,410,848)
City contributions subsequent to measurment date 414,662 -
Net deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $  (1,996,186)

Amounts reported as deferred outilows or inflow of resources related to pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30, . , Amount

2018 $ (801,161)
2017 {801,161)
2018 (601,181)
2019 (601,161)
2020 (6,204)
Thereafter -

Total $ {(2,410,848)

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the
Oregon PERS system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated July 29, 2015. Oregon PERS
produces an independently audited CAFR which can be found at:

http:f!www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/sectionifinanciaI_reports/ﬁnanbial.as;ax.

Actuarial Valuations — The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2013 through June 30,
2015, were set using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two
component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an emgployer contribution
rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance benefits
earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new
unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method
produced an employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount
necessardy to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an
actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and {(¢) an amount for
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the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued iiabiiities, which are being amortized over a fixed
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabiiities being amortized over 16 years.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation date Deceimber 31, 2012 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 .
Experience Study 2012, Published September 18, 2013

Report

Actuarial cost Entry Age Normal

method '

Amottization method | Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization
bases over a closed period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized
over 20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over 16

years
Asset valuation Market value of assets
method
Inflation rate 2.75 percent
Investment rate of 7.75 percent
return
Projected salary 3.75 percent overall payroll growth; salaries for individuals are
increase assumed to grow at 3.75 percent plus assumed rates of
merit/fongevity increases based on gervice
Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficlaries:

RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale AA, with collar
adjusiments and set- backs as described in the valuation. Active
members: Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retiree rates
that vary by group, as described in the valuation. Disabled
retirees: Mortality rates are a percentage (65% for males and 90%
for females) of the RP-2000 static combined disabled mortality

sex-distinct table.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of
even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2012 Experience
Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2012,

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent for
the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of the contributing employers
are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future beriefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to ali
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate — The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
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pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (6.75 percent) or 1-perentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate. -

Decrease Rate hcrease
{(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,593,603 § (1,224,762) $ (4,454,203)

Changes in Plan Provisions Subsequent to Measurement Date: The Oregon Supreme Court on
April 30, 2015, ruled in the Moro decision, that the provisions of Senate Bill 861, signed into law in
October 2013, that limited the post-retirement COLA on benefits accrued prior to the signing of the
law were unconstitutional. Benefits could be modified prospectively, but not retrospectively. As a
result, those who retired before the bills were passed will continue to receive a COLA tiad to the
Consumer Price Index that normally results in a 2% increase annually. PERS will make restoration
payments to those benefit recipients. PERS members who have accrued benefits before and after
the effective dates of the 2013 legislation will have a blended COLA rate when they retire. Oregon
Public Employees Retirement System Notes to the Schedules of Employer Allocations and
Pension Amounts by Employer As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014, This is a
change in benefit terms subsequent o the measurement date of June 30, 2014, which will be
reflected in the next year's actuarial valuations. The impact of the Moro decision on the total
pension liability and employer's net pension liability (asset) has not been fully determined.
However, PERS' third-party actuaries have estimated the impact of the Moro decision under one
possible methodology, which is summarized below (dollars in millions). Estimates have besen
rounded to the nearest $10 million.

June 30, 2014 Measurement Date

Net pension liability Pre-Moro Post-Moro
Total pension liability  $ 63,135 $ 68,050
Fiduciary net position 65,402 85,400
Net pension liability (asset) _§ -2,267 $ 2,650

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available
oniine at the below website, or by contacting PERS at the foflowing address; PO BOX 23700

Tigard, OR 87281-3700,

htte://vww, oregon.gov/pers/EMP/docs/er_general information/opers gash 68 disclosure informa
tion revised.pdf

An actuary has dstermined that no material implicit rate subsidy ekists and therefore there is no
OPEB obligation for implicit post-employment benefits.
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DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

Two deferred compensation trust plans were created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The trusts hold the assets for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their
beneficiaries. Plan assets are not the property of the City, or subject to the claims of the City's

geheral creditors.
PROPERTY TAX LIMITATION .

The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for governmental operations.
Under the limitation, tax revenue is separated into those for public schools and those for local
governments other than public schools. The limitation specifies a maximum rate for all local
government cperations of $10.00 per $1,000 of real market value, while schools are similarly limited
to a $5.00 maximum rate. Local government taxes in the City currently do not exceed the $10.00
rate limit; however, this limitation may affect the availability of future tax revenues.

in May 1997, voters approved Measure 50 which rolled back assessed values to 90% of 1995-96
and limits future increases of taxable assessed values. to 3% per year, exclusive of new
construction and property that is improved, rezoned, subdivided, or ceases to qualify for exemption.
Tax rates are now fixed and not subject to change. Voters may approve local initiatives above the
fixed rate provided a majority approves at either (i) a general election in an even numbered vear, or
(i) at any other election in which at least 50% of registered voters cast a ballot.

POST-CLOSURE LANDFILL CARE

The.Sunrise Park (Obrist) Landfill previous Solid Waste Disposal Site Closure Permit Number 1193
expired in April 2009. The facility is permitted as a Closed Construction and Demolition Landfifl,
The landfill closure permit was renewed by the Orégon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
on December 21, 2012 based upon a Land Use Compatibility Statement May 14, 1998 and a Solid
Waste Disposal Site Closure Permit renewal application of November 17, 2008, and an
Environmental Monitoring Plan approved by DEQ on March 15, 2011.

The City has had a previously unrecorded a liability for the estimated costs of landfill postclosure
care. As part of the above renewal application with DEQ the City is providing a financial assurance
plan beginning with the 2012-2013 fiscal year and for each subsequent year to comply with State
and federal laws and regulations which require the City to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.

The Gity has evaluated the liability by examining the estimated costs needed to perform the
postclosure care over the remaining life determined the year ended June 30, 2015 estimated
liability of $240,491. The estimated future costs to maintain and monitor the fandfill may change
due to one or more of the following factors of inflation, deflation, changes in technology or changes
to applicable laws or regulations. The City believes this fong term liability has been, and will
remain, immaterial in light of the City's overall financial condition.
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5. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE
There is a deficit fund balance in the following fund:

URA Riverfront Development Fund - $570,667
Sam Cox Building - $52,938

The deficit fund balances are the result of budgetary to GAAP accounting differences for Interfund
Loans.

6. FUND BALANCE CONSTRAINTS

The specific purposes for each of the categories of fund balance as of June 30, 2015 are as follows;

URA Riverfront  Non-Major
Fund Balances: General Fund  Street Fund Development Funds Total

Nonspendable;

Prepald iterns $ 4050 § - § - 8 - 8 4,050
Inventory 634 12,259 - - 12,893
Total 4,684 12,259 - - 16,943

Caplial projects - - - 3,943,432 3,043,432
Debt sarvice - - - 652,205 652,205
Sireet maintenance “ 1,298,046 - - 1,208,046
Total - 1,298,046 - 4,595,637 5,893,683
Unassigned: 4,073,773 - {570,667) {62,938) 3,450,168

Total Fund Balances $ 4078457 § 1,310,306 § (570667) § 4542609 § 9,360,794

7. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR NET POSITION

Due to the implementation of GASB 68 a restatement of the prior year net position was required.
The restatement is as follows:

Net position-Beginning as previously reported  § 56,093,001

Proportionate share of net pension liability {(2,757,356)
Net outflow/(inflows) of resources 416,388
Net position-Beginning as restated $ 53,752,033
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

{a) {b) {b/c) Plan fiduciary
Employer's Employer's {c} NPL as a net position as
Year proportion of proportionate share City's percentage a percentage of
Ended the net pension of the net pension coverad of covered the total pension
June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll payroll liability
2015 540% % (1,224,762) § 4,718,429 {26.0) % 103.6 %
2014 5.40 2,757,356 4,771,980 57.8 02,0

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determinted at 12/31 and rolled forward to the

measurment date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until
a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required

supplementary information is available,

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions in Contributions
Statutorily relation to the Contribution Employer's as a percent
required statutorily required deficiency covered - of coverad
contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
206§ 414,661 3 414,661 & - $ 4,718,429 8.8 %
2014 416,388 416,388 - 4,771,980 8.7

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determinted at 12/31 and rolled forward to the

measurment date,

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until
a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required

supplementary information is available.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
URA RIVERFRONT DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental grant $ 245,000 $ 245,000 $ 143,419 (101,581)
Total revenues 245,000 245,000 143,419 {101,581)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 450,100 450,100 226,250 223,850
Capital outlay 1,650,000 1,550,000 10,855 1,639,145
Contingency 260,269 260,269 - 260,269
Total expenditures 2,260,369 2,260,369 237,105 2,023 264
Revenues over (under) _
expenditures {2,015,369) (2,015,369) {83,6886) 1,921,683
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Interfund Loan Proceeds 2,000,000 2,000,000 140,000 (1,860,000}
Total other financing sources
{uses) 2,000,000 2,000,000 140,000 {1,860,000)
Net changes in fund balances (15,369) (15,388) 46,314 61,683
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 15,369 15,369 233,019 217 850
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - 3 - % 279,333 279,333
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Interfund loan transactions (850,000)
GAAPR Fund Balance $ {570,867
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ASSETS
Cash and investmenis
Accounts recelvable
Property taxes receivable
Interfund loan receivable
Due from

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Interfund loan
Dueto

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Taxes

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Unassigned |

Total fund balances

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2015

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balances

Total Total
Nonmajor Total Nonmajor
Special Nonmajor Capital
Revenue Debt Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total

$ 302,345 % 347471 § 3643675 § 4,293,491
822 985 - 1,807

- 8,653 - 8,653

- - 223,000 223,000

- 303,253 - 303,253

3 303,167 § 660362 § 3,866,675 § 4,830,204
3 52,140 § - 3 133,108 § 185,248
4,100 - - 4,100

90,000 - - .80,000
146,240 - 133,108 279,348

- 8,157 - 8,157

209,865 652,205 3,733,567 4,595,637
(52,938) - - (52,938)
156,927 652,205 - 3,733,567 4,542,699

$ 303,167 % 660,362 $ 3,866675 § 4,830,204
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payabie
Interfund loan
Total fiabilities -

FUND BALANCES
Restricied
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balance

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

Code Sam Cox
Street Tree  Bike Paths &  Specialties Building
Fund Trails Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 47567 § 54,071 $ 169,545 $ 41,182 § 302,345
- 861 (39) - 822
$ 47567 % 54,932 $ 159,508 $ 41162 § 303,167
$ - % 29,789 $ 22,341 3 - $ 52,140
- - - 4,100 4,100
- - - 90,000 90,000
- 29,7499 22341 94,100 146,240
47,567 25,133 137,165 - 209,865
- - - (52,938) (52,938)
47 567 25,133 137,165 (52,938) 156,927
$ 47567 B 54,932 § 160508 § 41182 § 303,167
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Properiy taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from

Total assets

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Taxes
T Total deferred inflows of resouces

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Total fund balances

Total tiahilities and fund balances

45

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

COP Debt URA Debt
Service Fund Service Fund Total

7414 % 340,357 % 347,471

- 8,663 8,653

- . 885 985

- 303,253 303,253

7114 % 653,248 3 660,362

- $ 8,157 $ 8,157

- 8,157 8,157

7,114 645,001 652,205

7,114 645,091 852,205

7114 & 653,248 3 660,362




ASSETS

Cash and invesiments

interfund loan receivable
TFotal assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
interfund loan payable
Due to

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Total fund balances

CITY OF TROUTDALE, CREGON:"
Noenmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet,
June 30, 2015

Total liabilities and fund balances § 908,399

Street Parks Utilitios STP Site
Improvement Improvement  Undergroun  Redevelopm

Fund Fund ding Fund ent Fund Project Fund Total
5 208399 $ 1172728  § 1511182 & 3 % 51,353 3,643,675
- 223,000 - - - 223,000
$ 908399 § 1,395728 § 1,511,162 % 33 8 51,353 3,866,675
$ 116,508 § 16,602 & - % - % - 133,108
116,506 16,602 - - - 133,108
791,893 1,379,126 1,511,162 33 51,353 3,733,667
791,883 1,379,128 1,511,162 33 51,353 3,733,567
$ 1395728 § 1511162 § 30§ 51,353 3,866,675
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Properiy taxes
Franchise

Licenses and permits

interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenueas

EXPENDITURES

Community development

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
[nterest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenueés, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

Special Debt Service Capital Projects .
Revenue Funds Funds Funds Total
$ 9251 % - % - % 9,251
- - 15,463 - 15,463
- 178,303 - 178,303
- - 191,485 191,485
353,221 - - 353,221
580 337 19,722 20,609
22,048 - - 12,7186 34,764
385,070 178,640 239,386 803,086
355,058 - - 355,058
47,250 - 249,979 267,229
- 126,033 - 126,033
- 16,060 - 16,060
402,308 142 093 219,979 764,380
{17,238) 36,547 19,407 38,718
- 142,000 - 142,000
- 142,000 - 142,000
(17,238) 178,547 19,407 180,716
174,165 473,658 3,714,160 ' 4,361,983
$ 156,927 & 652,205 % 3,733,567 § 4,542,699

-47-




REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Licenses, permits, and fees
Miscellaneous
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Cammunity development
Total expenditures

Net changes In fund balances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

EUND BALANCES, ENDING

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Bike Paths Code Sam Cox
Street Tree & Trails Specialties Building
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - % 9251 $ - 5 - % 9,251
- - 333,173 20,048 363,221
- - 22,048 - 22,048
230 320 - - 550
230 9,571 355,221 20,048 385,070
152 - 286,736 68,170 355,058
162 47,250 286,736 68,170 402,308
78 (37,679) 68,485 (48,122) (17,238)
47,488 62,812 68,680 {4,816) 174,165
3 47,567 $ 25,133 $ 137,185 $ (2938 §$ 156,927
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

COP Debt Service URA Debt Service

Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Property {axes $ - $ 178303 & 178,303
interest 337 - 337
Total revenues . 337 178,303 178,640
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service .
Principal 125,000 1,033 126,033
Interest 16,080 - 16,060
Total expenditures . 141,080 1,033 142,003
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures {140,723) 177,270 36,547
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in o 142,000 - 142,000
Total other financing sources (Uses) 142,000 - 142,000
Net changes In fund balances 1,277 177,270 178,547
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 5,837 : 467,821 473,658
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 7,114 & 645,001 $ 652,205




CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Street Parks Utilities Site
Improvernent improvement Undergrounding Redevelopment
Fund Fund Fund Fusid Project Fund Total

REVENUES
Charges for services  $ 12,963 % 2,500 $ - $ - 3 - $ 15483
Intergovernmentat - - - - - -
Franchise - - 191,485 - - 191,485
Interest 2,874 10,094 6,510 - 244 19,722
Miscellaneous revenue - 12,716 - - - 12,716

Total revenues 15,837 25,310 197,005 - 244 239,386
EXPENDITURES
Materials and services - - - - - _ -
Capital outlay 190,402 28,127 - - 1,450 219,979

Total expenditures 180,402 28,127 - - 1,450 219,879

Net changes in fund

balances (174,565) (2,817) 197,995 - {1,208} 19,407

FUND BALANCES,
BEGINNING 968,458 1,381,943 1,313,167 33 52,6550 3,714,160
FUND BALANCES,
ENDING $ 791,893 § 1,379,126 % 1511162 & 33 % 51,363 § 3,733,567
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds
Street Tree Fund
Bike Paths and Trails Fund
Code Specialties Fund
Sam Cox Building Fund

Debt Service Funds
COP Debt Service Fund
URA Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Funds
Street Improvement Fund
Parks Improvement Fund
Utilities Undergrounding Fund
STP Site Redevelopment Fund
Projects Fund
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STREET TREE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
- CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Qriginal Firal Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: :
Investment earnings 3 /0 0§ 350 $ 230 5 (120)
Total revenues ' - 3560 360 230 (120)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 48,797 48,797 152 48,645
Net changes in fund balances (48,447} (48,447} 78 48,525
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 48,447 48,447 - 47,489 {958)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING . $ - % - 47,567  § 47,567
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
BIKE PATHS & TRAILS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
: QOriginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: '
Intergovernmental revenues 3 8,620 % 8,620 $ 8,251 § 631
Investment earnings 100 100 320 220
Total revenues 8,720 - 8,720 9,571 851
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 71,935 71,835 47,250 24,685
Total expendifures 71,935 71,935 47,250 24 685
Net changes in fund balances {63,215) (63,215) (37,679) 25,636
FUND BALANGES, BEGINNING 63,215 63,215 62,812 (403)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - 8 - % 25,133 $ 25,133
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

GODE SPECIALTIES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Permits and fees
- Miscellaneous
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Building
Electrical
Plumbing
Contingency
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
212,164 i 212,163 $ 333,173 5 121,010
100 12,100 22,048 9,948
100 100 - ~ {100)
212,364 224,363 365,221 130,858
207,866 217,887 210,477 7,410
56,880 79,173 75,352 3,821
47,779 67,778 65,907 1,871
22,294 - - -
334,839 364,838 351,736 13,102
(122,475) (140,475) 3,485 143,960
77,000 95,000 - (95,000)
77,000 95,000 - (95,000)
(45,475) (45,475) 3,485 48,960
A5,475 45,475 133,680 88,205
-3 -3 137,165  $ 137,165
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CITY OF TROUTBALE, OREGON
SAM COX BUILDING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 390, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: ' :
Permits and fees 3. 33,500 % 33,500 g 20,048 (13,452)
Investment earnings 500 500 - {500)
Total revenues 34,000 34,000 20,048 {13,952)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 26,760 286,760 17,346 9.414
Capital Outlay 70,000 70,000 65,824 4,176
Contingency 23,041 23,041 - 23,041
Total expenditures 119,801 419,801 83,170 356,631
Net changes in fund balances (85,801) {85,801) (63,122) 22,679
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING =~ 85,801 85,801 . 100,184 14,383
FUND BALANGES, ENDING $ - 3 - $ 37,062 37,062
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Interfund loan transactions - (80,000)
GAAP Fund Balance $ {52,938)
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
COP DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Far the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Investment earnings b 100§ 100 % 337 % 237
Total revenues 100 100 337 237
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Pricipal 125,000 125,000 125,000 -
interest ‘ 17,000 17,000 16,060 940
Total debt service 142,000 142,000 141,060 940
Revenues over (under) expenditures (141,800) (141,900) (140,723 o 77
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 142,000 142,000 142,000 -
Total other financing sources (Uses) 142,000 142,000 142,000 -
Net changes in fund balances 100 100 1,277 1,177
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 13,475 13,475 5,837 {7,638)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 135756 % 13,676 § 7,114 $ {6,461)
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
URA DEBT SERVICE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - EUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Property taxes
Current year $ 166,268 $ 156,268 $ 172,332 $ 16,064
Prior year - - 2,166 2,168
Penalties and interest 100 100 3,805 3,705
Total revenues 156,368 156.368 . 178,303 21,935
EXPENDITURES:
Deht Service:
Principal and Interest 201,300 201,300 201,033 267
Total expenditures 201,300 201,300 201,033 267
Net changes in fund balances (44,932) (44,932} (22,730) 22,202
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING ‘ 58,786 58,786 67,821 . 8,035
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 13,854 % 13,854 % 45,091 § 31,237

Budget to GAAF Reconciliation
Interfund loan transactions 600,000

GAAP Fund Balance  § 546,091
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND
 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: |
System development charges $ 40,000 $ 40,000 3. 12963 $ (27,037)
Investment earnings 2,500 2,500 2874 374
Total revenues 42,500 42,500 15,837 {26,663}
EXPENDITURES: |
Materials and service 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Capital outlay 735,000 735,000 190,402 544,598
Contingency ’ 176,976 176,876 - 176,976
Total expenditures 916,976 916,976 100,402 726,574
Net changes in fund balances (874,478) (874,476) (174,565) 699,911
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 874 476 874,476 966,458 91,982
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - % - 0§ 791,893 $ 791,883
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REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
System development charges
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service
Capital outlay
Contingency
Total expenditures

Net changes in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

CITY OF TROUTBDALE, OREGON
PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 141,000 $ 141,000 5 41,000 8 {100,000)
-15,000 18,000 2,500 (12,500)
8,000 8,000 10,094 2,094
- - 12,716 12,716
164,000 164,000 66,310 {97,690)
100 100 - 100
100,000 100,000 28,127 71,873
300,000 300,000 - 300,000
400,100 400,100 28,127 371,973
(236,100) (236,100) 38,183 274,283
1,104,035 1,104,035 1,117,943 13,908
3 867,935 § 867,935 $ 1,166,126 $ 288,191
Budget to GAAP Recongiliation
Interfund loan fransactions 223,000
GAAP Fund Balance  $ 1,379,126




CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
UTILITIES UNDERGROUNDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Franchise fees
[nvestment eamings
Total revenljes

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Net changes in fund balances
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
181,000 $ 181,000 $ 191,485 $ 10,485
4,884 4,884 6,510 1,626
185,884 185,884 197,995 12,111
1,488,116 1,408,116 - 1,498,116
1,498,116 1,498,116 - 1,498,116
(1,312,232) (1,312,232) 197,995 1,510,227
1,312,232 1,312,232 1,313,1.67 935

- $ - $ 1511162 $ 1,511,162
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STP SITE REDEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDIJLE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance wifh

Original Final Actual - Final Budget
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING $ - $ - $ 33 % 33
FUND BALANCE, ENDING 3 ‘ - $ - 3 33 3 33
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CITY QF TROUTDALE, OREGON
PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Qriginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: _ .
Interest $ 1,000 % 1,000 % 244 % {756)
Total revenues 1,000 1,000 244 {7566}
EXPENDBITURES: ‘
Capital cutlay 75,000 75,000 1,450 73,650
Total expenditures 75,000 75,000 1,450 73,550
Net changes in fund balances (74,0600) (74,000) {1,208) 72,794
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 74,000 74,000 52 559 (21,441)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 - 3% ~ % 51,383 $ 51,353

51~
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Proprietary Funds

Water Fund

Water Improvement Fund

Water Fund Reconciliation of Budgetary Revenues and
Expenditures to Proprietary Revenues and Expenses

Sewer Fund

Debt Service Fund (business-type activity portion)
Sewer Improvement Fund

Sewer Fund Reconciliation of Budgefary Revenues and
Expenditures to Proprietary Revenues and Expenses

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund

Storm Sewer Utllity Fund
Storm Sewer Fund Reéconciliation of Budgetary Revenues and
Expenditures to Proprietary Revenues and Expenses

Public Services Fund
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
) WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND AGTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Orliginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: _
Intergovernmental 79,200 $ 79,200 $ 84,697 5,497
Charges for services 1,662,300 1,662,300 1,548,851 (15,449)
Investment earnings 7,000 7,000 5,085 {1,936}
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 414 (586)
Total revenues 1,840,500 1,649,500 1,637,027 (12,473)
EXPENDITURES:
Persanal service 406,847 406,847 378,406 28,441
Materials and service 1,172,800 1,172,800 1,080,909 91,891
Gapital outlay 252,400 252,400 120,189 132,211
Coniingency 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
Total expenditures 1,982 047 1,982,047 1,579,504 402 543
Net changes in fund balances (332,547) (332,547) 57,523 380,070
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 596,280 596,280 821,027 224,747
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 263,733 & 263,733 & 878,550 614,817
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
WATER IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: '
System development charges 3 9,000 $ 9,000 8474 § (526)
Investiment earnings 100 100 1,478 1,378
Total revenues 8,100 9,100 9,952 852
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and setvices 7,600 7,600 4,269 3,231
Contingency 26,099 26,099 - 26,099
Total expenditures 33,599 33,599 4,269 29,330
Met changes in fund balances (24,499) . (24,499) 5,683 30,182
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 24,499 24,469 21,423 {3,0786)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 - & - % 27,106 $. 27,108
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
WATER FUND
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
TO PROPRIETARY REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Expenditures/

.Revenues Expenses

Water Fund $ 1637027 $ 1,679,504
Water improvement Fund 9,052 4,269

Total (Budgetary) 1,646,979 1,683,773
Capital outlay expenditures capitalized - (139,808)
Depreciation expense - 489,074
Pension expense - (147,059)
Net change in accrued compensated absences : - (4,777)
Revenues and expenses (GAAP) ' $ 1646979 $ 1,781,403
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CiTY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with

Criginal Final _Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 2,637,000 $ 2,637,000 $ 2,650,379 $ 13,379
Investrnent earnings 6,000 6,000 7,025 1,025
Miscellaneous 1,000 _ 1,000 250 {750}
Total revenues 2,644,000 2,644,000 2,657,654 13,654
EXPENDITURES: :
Personal service 547,395 547,395 528,014 19,381
Materials and service 1,384,346 1,384,346 1,261,655 122,691
Capital outlay 304,200 304,200 133,256 170,944
Contingency 232,500 232 500 - 232,500
Total expenditures 2,468,441 2,468,441 1,022 625 545 516
Revenues over (under) expenditures 175,559 175,559 734,729 559,170
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Transfers in 44,000 44,000 44,000 -
transfers out (358,526) (356,526) (356,526) -
Insurance Reimbursement - - 47,032 47,032
Total other financing sources (Uses) (312,526) (312,528) (265,494) 47,032
Net changes in fund balances {136,967} {136,987} 469,235 606,202
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,187,221 © 1,187,221 1,532,821 345,600
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,050,254 3 1,060,254 § 2,002,066 § 951,802
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
QOriginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Property taxes 7 .
Current Year 3 1,362,474 $ 1,362,474 $ 1,376,753 $ 14,279
Prior Year 5,000 5,000 30,034 25,034
Investment eamings 100 100 3,365 3,265
Total revenues 1,387,674 1,367,674 1,410,152 42 578
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service: ‘
Principal 1,305,000 1,305,000 1,305,000 -
Interest 464,000 464,000 463,741 8§59
Total debt service 1,769,000 1,769,000 1,768,141 859
Revenues over {under) _
expenditures (401,428) (401,426) (357,989) - 43,437
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 356,526 356,526 358,526 -
Total cther financing sourcaes
{uses) 356,526 366,526 356,526 -
Net changes in fund balances {44,900} (44,900) (1,463) 43,437
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 345,294 345,294 400,082 54,788
FUND BALANCES, ENDING % 300,384 $ 300,394 % 398619 § 98,225
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
QOriginal “Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Systern development charges $ 40,000 3 40,000 § 13,350 {26,650)
Investment earnings 100 100 1,148 1,048
Total revenuss 40,100 40,100 14,498 (25,602)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Capital Outlay 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
Contingency 104,138 104,138 - 104,138
Total expenditures 159,138 169,138 - 159,138
Met changes in fund balances (119,038) (119,038) 14,498 133,536
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 119,038 119,038 128,830 9,792
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - % - % 143,328 3 143,328
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON

SEWER FUND

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
TO PROPRIETARY REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Year Ended Juie 30, 2015

Sewer Fund

Debt Service Fund

Sewer Improvement Fund
Total

Depreciation expense

Capital outlay ‘
Net change in accrued compensated absences
Change in unavailable property taxes

Interest

Pension expense

Interfund loan transaction

Bond Premium and Discount Amortization
Payment of bond principal

Revenues and expenses

-68-

Expeﬁd itures/

Revenues Expenses
§ 2,748,686 $ 1,922,925
1,410,152 1,768,141
14,498 . -
4,173,336 3,691,066

- 780,700

- {109,491)

- 3,587

3,019 -

- (3,478)

- (199,423)
(44,000} -

- 14,147

- (1,080,000)

$ 4,132,355 3 3,087,108




CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
QOriginal Final Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES:
System devslopment charges $ 10,600 § 10,000 $ 19,104 $ 9,104
Investment earnings ' 7,000 7,000 0,558 2,558
Total revenues 17,000 17,000 28,662 11,662
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Capital outlay 880,000 880,000 20,698 859,302
Contingency 150,000 150,000 _ - 150,000
Total expenditures 1,040,000 1,040,000 20,608 1,019,302
Net changes in fund halances (1,023,000) (1,023,000) 7,964 1,030,964
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 2,126,612 2,125,612 2,182,091 56,479

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

$ 1,102,612 3 1,102,612 $ 2190056 § 1,087,443
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CITY QOF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STORM SEWER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES iN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Varlance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES: i '
Charges for services % 254,000 5 254,000 $ 271,916 $ 17,915
Invastment earnings 2,000 2,000 895 (1,105)
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Total revenues 257,000 257,000 272,810 15,810
EXPENDITURES:
Personal service 173,515 173,615 160,605 12,810
Materials and service 363,225 363,225 300,492 62,733
Capital outlay 50,000 50,000 12,233 37,767
Contingency 10,186 10,186 - 10,186
Total expenditures 506,926 596,926 473,330 123,588
Net changes in fund balances ) (339,926) (339,926) {200,520} 139,406
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 339,926 339,926 382,345 42,419
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - 8 - & 181,825 § 181,825
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
STORM SEWER FUND
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
TO PROPRIETARY REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Expenditures/
Revenues Expenses
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund $ 28,662 $ 20,698
Storm Sewer Utility Fund 272,810 473,330 .
Total 301,472 494,028
Depreciation expense - 268,197
Capital outlay - (32,931)
Pension expense - (62,178)
Interfund loan transaction - (44,000}
Net change in accrued compensated absences - 1,863
Revenues and expenses ‘ $ 301,472 $ 614,969
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
PUBLIC SERVIGES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance with
Criginal Final Actuat Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 937,300 $ 937,300 $ 950,734 $ 13,434
Licenses and permits 15,556 18,556 8,995 (6,560}
Investment earnings 1,000 1,000 1,666 566
Miscellaneous ) - ) - 261 261
Total revenues 953,856 953,856 961 557 7,701
EXPENDITURES: .
Equipment maintenance 284,899 284,809 216,103 68,796
Public works management 920,692 920,692 891,921 28,771
Contingency 50,348 50,348 - 59,348
Total expenditures 1,264,939 1,264,939 1,108,024 156,815
Net Changes in fund balances {311,083) (311,083} (146,467) 164,616
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 311,083 311,083 303,182 {7,901)
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ - % - § 156,716 3 156,715
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CAPITAL ASSETS
USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule By Source
June 30, 2015

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land
Intangibles
Land improvements
Buildings and bullding improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Work in process

Total governmental funds capital assets

Investments in governmental capital assets by source:
Balance, July 1, 2014

Net changes provided by:
General fund
Parks
Public Safety
Public Works
Streets
Total Additions

Total governmental funds capital assets

73

5 3,461,425
16,218
10,773,331
4,689,139
1,620,008
23,885,948
99,910

$ 44545979

45,036,976

(17,453)
95,524
{601,491)
4,028
28,395

(490,997)

$ 44,545,979
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CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance

Function and Activity June 30, 2014 Additions Deductions June 30, 2015

General Government $ 2705978 % 14,881 $  (32,333) $ 2,688,526
Community Development 8,639,321 106,199 (6,647) 8,738,873
Public Safety ‘ ' 8,612,674 - (601,491) 8,011,183
Highways and Streets 25,079,003 263,394 (235,000) 25,107,397
Total Investment $ 45,036,976 § 384474 § (875471) §$ 44545979
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to Others
Total Liabilities

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OREGON
Helping Hands Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 - Additions Deductions June 30, 2015
$ 8,514 3 2,036 $ (7,395) $ 3,155
$ 8,514 5 2,036 3 ~ (7,385) 3 3,155
$ 8514  § 203 $  (7,395) $ 3,155
$ 8,614 $ 2,036 $ (7,385) $ 3,155




City of Troutdale, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES

June 30,2015
Taxes Add (Deduct) (Deduet) Taxes
Uncoliected Add Levy (Deduct} Add Cancellntions Intevest Uncollected |
July 1, As Extended Discounts ’ Interest and and Tax fune 30, 1

Fax Year . 2014 By Assessor Altowed Adjusiments Adjustments Collected 2015
2014-15 $ 3 6,444,151 3 {165,283) $ £,839 § {17,186} $ (6,111,873} $ 151,649
2013-14 156,027 - . 200 3,157 {9,055} {64,422} 85,907
201213 85,365 - - 34 3,350 (1.755) (26,336) 60,667
2041-12 68,303 . 6 4,773 (1,438) (25,508) 46,136
2010-11 . 30,938 . i 2,706 (290) (12,029) 21,326
2009-10 20,087 - ()] 448 {301} {1,459} 18,774
2008-09 1,544 - - 227 212) (654 905
2007-08 : 738 - - 59 (26) (1683 604
2006-07 523 - - 40 [t¥)] 102y 443
2005-06 405 - - 37 (12} {89} 342
2004-05 and prior 1,343 - - 192 {453 (376 1,512
Total $ 365775 § 6,444,151 $ {165,042) % 16,838 s (30341) $ {6.243016) 8 _ 388365

Receivable

Revenue June 30,

Total 2015
Governmental Funds § 4,862,600 3 300,190
Propdetary Funds 1,409,806 88,175
Subtotal : 6,272,406 $ 388,365

Miscellaneous adjustinents
Chanige in property taxes subject 1o acerual {29,390)
Total taxes, tax penalties and interest $ 6243016 °
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Year of

- SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

City of Troutdale, Oregon

OF GENERAI OBLIGATION BONDS

June 30, 2015

Police Facility
Serfes 2011

WPCF Refunding Bonds

Series 2008
Issued 6-17-08

Issued 2-17-2011 7
Maturity Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015-16 $ 230,000 3 275,435 3 1,135,000 b 140,981
2016-17 245,000 270,935 1,185,000 96,800
2017-18 265,000 263,585 1,235,000 49,400
2018-19 290,000 253,698 |
2019-20 315,000 242,098
2020-21 340,000 220,498
2021-22 370,000 21.5,898
2022-23 400,000 201,698
2023-24 430,000 185,098
2024-25 405,000 167,898
2025-26 495,000 149,298
2026-27 535,000 129,498
2027-28 370,000 107,563
2028-29 610,000 83,908
2029-30 655,000 58,288
2030-31 | 700,000 30,450
5 3,555,000 5 287,182

k3 6,915,000

5 2,864,340
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City of Troutdale, Oregon
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS OF

LOAN PAYABLE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE
PARKS & FACILITIES BUILDING

June 30, 2015

Year of Tssued 3-31-2008
Maturity Principal ) Interest
2015-16 $ 130,000 $ 11,661
2016-17 135,000 7,090
2017-18 138,000 2,381
3 403,000 3 21,131
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City of Troutdale, Oregon
SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTABILITY FOR INDEPENDENTLY ELECTED OFFICIALS

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Oregon Revised Statutes section 297 requires a statement of accountability for each independently elected official
collecting or receiving money in the municipal corporation. The statement is a presentation of the beginning balances, .
receipts, disbursements, refunds, and turnovers to the appropriate governmental official, reconciled to cash on hand at
the beginning and end of the audit period. '

In compliance with ORS 297, there are no independently elected officials that collect or receive money on behalf of
the City of Troutdale.

-84 .




 STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Troutdale's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall
health. '
Pages

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being has changed over time. 85-89

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's local
revenue source, the property tax, 00-93

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
government's current levels of autstanding debt and the govermnment's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. 94-97

Demaographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the government's financial activities take
place. . 98-102

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the Information in the government's financial report relates to the services the
government provides and the activities it performs. 103-104
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Taxpayer

FEDEX GROUND PACKAGE

CHELSEA GCA REALTY PARTNERSHIP
TOYQ TANSO USA, INC.

COMUCAST CORPORATION

MQUNTAIN MEADOWS COMMUNITY INC
BURLINGAME DEVELOPMENT INC.
PORTLAND (JENERAL ELECERIC

MGP X PROPERTIES LLC

TROUTDALE TERRACE

HPT TA PROPERTIESLLC

Tube Specialties Co., Inc,
Kravitiz, Alan Metal

Retail Property Partners LP
Albertsow’s

Pan Facific Retail

Totals

CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Soures; Miltnomah County Division of Assessment and Taxation.

-92 -

June 30, 2015
2014-2015
Percentage of Total Percentage of Tafal
Taxable Taxable Assessed Taxable Taxable Assessed
Assessed Value Rank Value Assessed Value
5 93,483,610 1 13%
21,626,430 2 1.7% $ 16,575,140 1 1.9%
17,787,100 3 1.4% 14,824,340 2 1.7%
16,721,500 q 1.3%
11,613,580 5 0.9%
11,258,050 [ 0.9% 7,809,910 0.9%
10,156,000 7 0.8%
10,106,880 8 0.8%
9,430,260 g 0.7% 7,227,590 8 0.8%
8,615,820 10 0.7% 7,703,550 1 .9%
13,680,060 3 1.6%
8,900,890 4 1.0%
8,117,060 5 0.9%
5,940,420 9 0.7%
5,377,630 10 0.6%
5 216,709,230 16.5% 3 96,156,790 11.0%




CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON

PROTERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30th

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy

Total Collestions to Dale

Fiseal Year Toial Tax Levy Current Tax Delinquent Tax
Ended June 30 for Fiscal Year Collections Percentage of Levy Collections Amount Percentage of Levy
2006 $ 4002040 § 3,783,906 245% % 217,792 4,001,698 98.99%
2007 4,161,638 4,064,812 97.7% 96,383 4,161,196 99.99%
2008 4,502,533 4,353,221 96.7% 148,708 4,501,929 99,99%
2009 4,643,517 4,345,859 93.6% 286,753 4,642,612 99.98%
2010 4,776,510 4,453,024 93.2% 304,711 4,757,735 99.61%
2011 4,916,028 4,641,649 54.4% 253,224 4,894,772 99.57%
2012 5,548,240 5,286,245 95.3% 215,859 5,502,104 99.17%
2013 5,673,471 5,486,703 96.4% 148,702 5,612,804 98.93%
2014 5,998,948 5,676,214 94.6% 236,827 5,913,041 98.57%
2015 444,151 6,111,873 94.8% - 6,111,873 94.84%

Source: Muitnomah Caunty Division of Assessment and Taxation
Annual Preperly Tax Distribution Summary
Annual Property Tax Receivable Summary
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CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30th

Percentage of
Less: Amounts ES[imatﬁd Actual
General Obligation Available in Debt Velue of Taxable ‘

Fiscal Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property ! Per Capita”
2006 3 11,770,000 $ 52,073 3 11,707,927 1.08% 775
2007 11,020,000 109,294 10,910,706 0.91% 707
2008 10,310,000 154,960 10,155,040 0.74% 657
2009 9,322,677 214,654 9,108,023 0.56% 586
2010 8,456,824 280,037 8,196,787 0.44% 526
2011 15,151,633 222672 14,928,961 0.82% 934
2012 14,142 497 258,279 13,883,218 0.80% 868
2013 12,988,361 326,086 . 12,662,275 0.74% ] 79
2014 11,774,225 473,658 11,300,567 0.65% 706
2015 10,480,085 652,205 0,827 884 0.52% 613

Note: Petails regarding the City's cuistanding debt can be found in the notes [o the financial siatements.

! See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actuat Value of Taxable Property for property value data
used in this calculation. :

? See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics For population data used in this caleulation.
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CITY OF TROUTPALE , OREGON

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOYERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DERT

June 30, 2015
Estimated Percentage Estimated Share of Overlapping

Governimental Unit Debt Quistanding Apgplicable ! Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:

Muftmemah County 3 289,918,314 1.52% 8 4,406,758

Metro 223,625,000 0.77% 1,721,913

Port of Porthand 65,302,566 0,71% 463,648

Reynolds School District No. 7 01,835,776 22.53% 22,843,600

Gresham-Barlow School District Neo. 10 80,738,445 0.52% 418,840

Mt Hood Community College 85,483,066 5.21% 3,411,667

Multnomah Edueation Serviee Distriet 31,355,000 1.49% 467,190
Other:

Multaomah County 262,714,000 1.52% 3,993,253

Port of Periland 766,275,000 071% 5,682,553

TriMet Transportation District 552,480,000 0.88% 4,751,328
Subtotal, overlapping debt 48,161,749
City of Trowtdale, Oregon direst debt 7.431.674
‘Folal déircet and overfapping debt 3 55,593,423

Saurce: The State of Oregon Office of the Treasurer. acting on behalf of thi: Municipal Debt Advisory Commission (MDAC)
& Mulinamah County Division of Assessment and Taxation

Note: Overlapping sovernmenis are those that coinide, et least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule
estirtes the perfion of she gutstanding duebt of those overlapping governmenls thal is barne by the residenis and businesses

oFthe City of Troutdale. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ubilily o issee and repay long-team debt,
Ihe enlire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be 1aken into necount. Hovwever, this does not impiy thal every
[oxpayer is a residenl, and thorefore, responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping gavernment.

™ percentage of overlapping debt applicable is

d using taxable | property values.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON _
PROPERTY VALUE AND NEW CONSTRUCTION VALUE

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30th

New Commercial Construction ’ New Residential Construction ' Property Value
Number of Number of
Fiscal Year Units Value Units Value Assessed Value ? Tax Rate
2006 ) 4 3,724,838 196 $ 33,824,614 $ 871,035,929 4,55
2007 16 3,056,423 54 13,374,712 933,315,284 4.46
2008 7 1,322,870 39 8,529,159 1,001,035,115 4,43
2009 14 40,047,369 17 3,173,369 1,039,496,918 4,40
2010 43 58,680,115 20 3,642,609 1,079,497,361 439
2011 - - 3 640,367 1,107,900,669 4.44
2012 46 7,876,916 16 940,582 1,124,964,739 4,93
2013 42 3,061,104 19 937,644 1,115,008,909 5.09
2014 53 18,894,063 19 1,205,558 1,278,870,040 5.06
2015 86 8,443,560 . 36 1,093,255 1,289,385,250 4.86

I City of Troutdale Building Department.

2 Mulinomah County Division of Assessmont and Taxation.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 3(th

Special Special
Assessment Assessment
Fiscal Year Billings Collections '

2006 . -
2007 -
2008 -
2009 -
2010 ‘ -
2011 -
2012 -
2013 -
2014 ' -
2015 , -

' Includes prepayments,
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CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30th

Per Capita Unemployment

Personal Income Personal Income Rate
: {(Multmomah County)  (Portland Metro School {Portland Metro

Fiscal Year Population ! 2 . Area) Enrollment > Area) !

2006 15,110 §  27,043,127,000 $ 38,040 4,487 54%
2007 15,430 28,234,192,000 39,428 4,293 4.9%
2008 15,465 29,654,879,000 40,376 4,388 6.0%
2009 15,535 28,440,292,000 38,565 3,689 10.7%
2010 15,595 29,458,183,000 39,384 4,674 10.5%
2011 15,980 - 31L,161,157,000 41,302 4,089 9.1%
2012 16,000 32,644,222,000 43,189 4,252 8.2%
2013 16,005 33,376,029,000 43,728 4,128 7.2%
2014 16,015 36,588,018,000 45,794 4,221 6.4%

2015 16,020 NA NIA 4,159 N/A

Data Sources:

a Portland State University, Population Research and Census center.
us. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Econr;smic Analysis. Calendar year info
¥ Reynolds Schaol Distriet: Four schools located within corporate [imits,
*us. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Calendar year info since 2007

N/A - data not available.
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CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Curvent Year and Prioy Year

2015 2014
Percentage of Total Percentage of Total
Employer Employees Rank City Employment Employees Rank City Bmployment
FedEx Ground Package System, Ine, 740 1 15.46% 740 1 15.46%
. Walsh Trucking Co., LTD 220 2 4.60% 220 2 4.60%
Tube Specialties 191 3 3.59% 191 3 3.99%
Home Depot USA, Inc. 168 4 3.51% 168 5 3.51%
Tayo Tanso USA, Ine, 134 5 2.80% i34 4 2.30%
Travel Centers of Amezica 125 ] 2.61% £25 6 2,61%
Edpefield Gardens! MeMenaming Edgefietd 120 7 2.58% £20 7 2.51%
Postal Express, Inc, 113 8 2.36% 113 g 2.36%
Fuii Fanns, Inc. 102 9 2.13% 102 9 2.13%
Safeway, Inc. 90 10 £.88% 90 ' 1.88%
Totals 2,003 41.86% 2,003 41.88%

Source; City of Trouldale husiness license applications seif reporded.
Corabined full time aud part time positions reported
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Fusnction
General Government
Palice
Officers
Civilians
Building Safety
Community Development
Parks & Facilities
Streets
Water
Sewer
Storm
Public Works Services
Equipment Maintenance
Management

Total

Source: City financial records,

- CITY OF TROUTDALE , OREGON
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT

EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30th

Full-time Equivalent Employees for Fiscal Year Ended

2006 2007 2008 2009 2019 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.8 13.5 4.5 14.5 14.0 14.3 14.3 15.8 13.4 124
20 22 22 24 22 23 23 24 25 25.0
3.8 3.8 4.7 5.0 50 4.5 4.5 35 35 33
4.0 2.1 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.8
16,7 16,7 16.8 16.8 3.0 2.5 - 2.5 20 1.0 15
4.0 4.0 4.0 4.4 6.0 6.0
1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2,0 L3 1.6 1.5 19 L9
4.9 4.9 3.9 5.9 6.0 5.5 54 5.0 4.8 5.0
1.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 8.0 3.0 6.0
2.1
22 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.5 2.1 2.1 1.7 1.7
60 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.8 5.9 6.0 3.9 6.2
76.3 78.0 81.0 842 74.1 706 - 714 74.0 72.8 72.8
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CITY OF TROUTDALE
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON

_ INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS
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PauLY, ROGERS, AND C0., P.C.

- 12700 SW 72™ Ave, Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

ERTIFIED PURLIC ACCOUNTANTS W,

December 22, 2015

independen‘t Auditors’ Report Required by Qregon State Regulations

.

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Troutdale as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Troutdale's financial
statements are free of materfal misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon
Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of
the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corpoerations, honcompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions {ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294),

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 278C).
Scheduie of Accountability of Elected Officials

¢ ° ° S 8 & & &

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City of
Troutdale was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in
Oregon Administrative Rules 182-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.
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QAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considerad the internal controls over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the internal controls over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the infernal controls over financial reporting.

This repoit is |ntended solely for the information and use of the council members and
management and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be

used by anyorie other than these parties.

M mﬁ} s
Tara M. Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CQ., P.C.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT (CAFR) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015.

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

The Municipal Audit Law, ORS 297.425 requires an annual audit of the City’s
financial statements and report to the Secretary of State.

That the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has identified
accountability as the paramount objective of financial reporting, providing two
essential components: fiscal accountability and operational accountability.

To fully support these accountability objectives that the City has prepared a
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

That City Management is primarily and ultimately responsible for the fairness of the
presentation of the basic financial statements.

That the annual presentation of the CAFR facilitates the monitoring and
accountability responsibilities of the City Council for oversight of the City's fiscal
affairs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE, OREGON THAT.:

Section 1: The City's financial statements and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) prepared by City Management for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 are
approved.

Section 2: This resolution is effective upon adoption.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Resolution # Page 1 of 2




Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder
Adopted:
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AGENDA ITEM #6.2

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: A Resolution Accepting the Independent Auditors’ Report on the
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the Auditors’ SAS

114 Letter, and OAR 162-10-000 Letter.

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016
City Council Regular Mtg. .
STAFF MEMBER: Erich Mueller

DEPARTMENT: Finance

ACTION REQUIRED . ADVISORY BOARD/CONMMISSION
Resolution ' RECOMMENDATION:

Not Applicable

PUBLIC HEARING

No Comments:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the Resolution accepting the Independent Auditors’
Report, SAS letter and OAR 162 Letters of auditor communication.

EXHIBITS:
A. Auditors’ letter SAS No. 114 The Auditor's Communication to the Governing Body

B. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — CAFR (as provided with the previous agenda item)

Subject/ Issue Relates To: :
[[1 Council Goals [ ] Legislative X Other (describe)

Demonstrate financial oversight by the City Council
Issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points:

¢ City Management is primarily and ultimately responsible for the fairness of the
presentation of the basic financial statements.
¢ As the CAFR is the City’s presentation of its official GAAP based financial statements,

external users of the CAFR desire independent assurance that the basic financial
statements are reliable.

4 The role and purpose of the independent auditor is to express an opinion on the
fairness of the presentation of the financial statements.

¢ The role of the City Council is ultimately the responsibility for the monitoring,
accountability and oversight of the City’s fiscal affairs.




¢ SAS No. 114 requires auditors to communicate openly and candidly specifically with the
Council

¢ OAR 162-10-000 specifies the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal
Corporations and requires comments and disclosures from the auditors

BACKGROUND:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Troutdale for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015 was audited by Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. The auditor issued an
ungualified (“clean”) opinion. The Independent Auditors’ Report, is in the bound CAFR page 1,
and is presented for your review and acceptance.

The letter identifies the financial statements, management’s responsibility, the auditor's scope
and role, and importantly their resulting conclusion opinion of the financial statements. The
opinion statement is at the top of page 2.

The auditor's required letter under the Auditing Standards Board Statement on Auditing Standards
(SAS) No. 114, The Auditor’s Communication to the Governing Body, is attached for your
review and acceptance.

SAS No. 114 requires auditors to communicate openly, candidly, and specifically with those
charged with corporate governance, regarding significant findings and issues related to the audit.
Their observations are described beglnnlng at the top of page 2 of their SAS114 letter, under
Result of Audit:

« they report that a “clean” unqualified audit opinion was issued,

e no exceptions to State minimum standards (This item is covered in the following section of
this staff report), and

e that a separate Management Letter SAS 115 was not issued again this year.

Under Significant Audit Findings section, they report no issues with the areas of:
®  Oualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
o Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
o Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
o Disagreements with Management
o Management Representations
»  Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
o Other Audit Findings or Issues
o Supplementary Information within Documents Containing Audited Financial Stalements
o Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Page 2 of 4




Under the New Pension Reporting Requirements they note two new reporting requirements:
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 - Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pensions Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent fo the Measurement Date. These new standards apply to every government unit in
the United States for compliance accounting rules under GASB. '

While these new standards change some calculations, and change the financial statement
presentation/format, they do not change budgets, or require additional spending, or have any
bearing on the amount of money available to spend.

The pension liability calculations for PERS are completed by the state 's actuaries, Milliman, to
calculate the City's proportionate share of the overall state unfunded liability or asset, and will
change annually.

Under the Future Accounting and Auditing Issues section are more significant new auditing and
accounting standards which will expand the required scope of work for future audits. Most of
these new standards will impact the City next year to varying degrees, and will likely increase
demands on the Finance staff and increase future audit costs.

The Auditing Standards Board Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 115, Communicating
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit, is sometimes referred to as the
“Management Letter”. The Auditors found no grounds to issue one again this year, as noted at
the top of page 2 of their SAS 114 letter.

SAS No. 115 requires auditors to evaluate and identify and report 2 meaningful levels of internal
control deficiencies. There are 3 categories of internal control exceptions, in order of seriousness;
» most serious: ‘material weaknesses”
» intermediate; “significant deficiencies” and
o |owest: “not significant deficiencies”

Again this year we had no control issues reported in either the most serious or intermediate
levels. In past years we have had 2-3 items in the “significant deficiencies” (intermediate level) in
internal control. The items from prior years have been satisfactorily corrected and no new issues

were observed this past year.

The auditors did note 2 other “Best Practices - Not Significant Deficiencies” (lowest level) in
internal control. These observations are described on page 5 of their SAS114 letter.

« This first item is a new recommendation which clarifies that the City Council is responsible
for monitoring, accountability and oversight of the City’s fiscal affairs, and that the meeting
minutes should reflect that activity. The auditors always want to be on record as supporting

more board oversight.
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 The second item has been a matter of concern to the auditors for several years. Given the

City's lean staffing level in Finance, the separation of duties vulnerability exists, and the
auditors need to go on record as to bringing the concern to the attention of the governing
board.

The auditor's required letter under Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, is in the bound CAFR page 105.
This OAR requires comments and disclosures from the auditors related to their audit of the
financial statements and certain schedules in the CAFR including but not limited to:

Deposit of public funds with financial instifufions (ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Public contracts and purchasing {(ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).
Schedule of Accountabllity of Elected Officials

They noted no exceptions in these areas as a resuit of their testing.

CONCLUSION:

The resolution prepared by staff does not “approve” the audit opinion and communication letters,
but rather "accepts” these reports. These Letters report the auditors’ professional judgment, and
are not subject to client approval or disapproval.

PROS & CONS:

A. Accept the Auditors’ report and the OAR and SAS letters of communication complete the

official record and demonstrate financial oversight by the Council.

B. Not accept the Auditors’ report and the OAR and SAS letters of communication, causing

gaps in the official record.

Page 4 of 4




Exhibit A
3/8/16 Council Mtg. — ltem #6.2

CITY OF TROUTDALE
'TROUTDALE, OREGON

COMMUNICATION TO THE GOVERNING BODY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

g CERIIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS N

12700 SW 72 Ave.
Tigard, OR 97223




i PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C.
g e TBEEEN 12700 SW 72™ Ave. ¢ Tigard, OR 97223
i (603) 620-2632 + (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

December 22, 2015

To the City Council
City of Troutdale
Multnomah County, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troutdale for the year ended June 30,
2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our

audit.
Purpose of the Audit

Our audit was conducted using sampling, inquiries and analytical work to opine on the fair presentation of the
basic financial statements and compliance with:

¢ generally accepted accounting principles and auditing standards
e the Oregon Municipal Audit Law and the related administrative rules

Qur Responsibility nnder U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

* As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express
opinions about whether the basic financial stateinents prepared by management with your oversight are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, Our audit of
the basic financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities,

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial reporting in order to.
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.

Our responsibility for the supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements, as described
- by professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation fo the basic financial statements as a whole.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Andit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements; therefore, our andit involved judgment about the number of transactions examined and the
areas to be tested.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the City and its environment, inchiding internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements and to design the nature,
timing, and extent of further audit procedures, Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are
atiributable to the City or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the City. We also
communicated any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional

standards.
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Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C,

Results of Audit

1. Audit opinion letter - an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements has been issued. This means
we have given a “clean” opinion with no reservations.

2. State minimum standards — We found no exceptions or issues requiring comment.

3. Management letter — No separate management letter was issued.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements. No new accounting policies
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2015, except for the implementation
of GASB 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB 71 — Pension Transition Jor
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. We noted no transactions entered into during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized

in the basic financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events,
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly fiom those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the basic financial statements were Management’s estimate of
Accounts Receivable and Capital Asset Depreciation, which are based on estimated collectability of receivables
and useful lives of assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neuiral, consistent, and clear.,

Difficuities Encoimtered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no difficulties in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrecied Mssratementé

Professional standards requite us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management,
Management has corrected all such misstatements or determined that their effects are immaterial. In addition,
~ none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,

either individually or in the aggregate, taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management:

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

‘Page 2 of §




Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter, ,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the basic financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors® opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with

other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards with management each year prior to our retention as the anditors. However, these discussions occurred
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Supplementary Information

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements, we made cerfain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
method of preparing it has not changed fiom the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the basic financial statements, We compared and reconeiled the supplementary information
to the underlying accounting records used to preparc the basic financial statements or to the basic financial

statements themselves, )

Other Information

With respect to the other information accompanying the basic financial statements, we read the information to
identify if any material inconsistencies or misstatement of facts existed with the audited basic financial
statements. Our results noted no material inconsistencies or misstatement of facts.

Emphasis of Matter — New Pension Reporting Requiremenis

During the 2014-2015 fiscal year a new accounting requirement went into effect called Government Accounting
Standards Boardf Statement 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions as well as the provisions of
"GASB Statement No. 71, Pensions ITramsition for Contributions Muade Subsequent to the Measurement
Date. Every government in the United States was required fo comply with these new accounting rules, In the
past, governments have not recorded a liability for the amount of money owed to current and former employees
for future retirement benefit payments that have already been earned by the employees. This new requirement
made financial reports for governments more fransparent and accurate by quantifying a debt that has always

existed but not reported,

The new accounting standard created a method for calculating the entire amount of money owed to all current and
former employees in the future, which will need to be included as a liability in the June 30, 2015 financial
report. As a result, it was possible that some governments would have a lower, and possibly negative, financial
position, or net worth as of the beginning of the fiscal year than what was reported in the prior year under old
standards, as well as at the end of the current fiscal year. Some governments in an attempt to reduce rates paid to
PERS elected to “fund” their future debt to PERS by borrowing money using “Pension Obligation Bonds” which
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Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.

was used by the state’s actuaries, Milliman, to calculate the City’s proportionate share of the overall state
unfunded liability or asset. Due to the results of the valuation as of June 30, 2015 there was a state-wide asset that
was proportionately allocated to each employer based on the actuarial study. This study did not take into account
the results of the Moro v, State of Oregon decision by the Oregon Supreme Cowt in April of 2015.

The Statement-of Net Position now has new accounts listed. The Net Pension Asset represents the City’s

- proportionate share of the state-wide actuarially determined asset as of the measurement date. The Net Pension

Related Deferrals include a combination of calculations made by the actuaries based on potential changes in
assumptions and the difference between actual and expected returns on investments, as well as contributions made
to PERS by the City subsequent to the date of the actuarial valuation which were not accounted for in the state-

wide asset,

These new requirements do not change anything related to the budgets of the governments, do not require
additional spending and have no bearing on the amount of money available to spend, Governments make
payments to PERS each month based on a rate already calculated by an actuary, and this will not change as a

result of the new pronouncements,

Other Maiters — Future Accounting and Auditing Issues

In order to keep you aware of new auditing standards issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accounts and accounting statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), we have
prepared the following summary of the more significant upcoming issues:

GASB 72 .
GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which prescribes how state

and local governments should define and measure fair value. It also prescribes which assets and liabilities
should be measured at fair value, and expands disclosures related to fair value measurements. This

standard is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2015-16.

SINGLE AUDIT
On December 26, 2013, the Office of Management and Budget (“OMB™) issued the Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, for state and
local governments, non-profit entities, institutions of higher education and tribal governments. This
guidance (also referred to as the “Supercircular™) supersedes the requirements from eight OMB Circulars
down into one. As a result of this circular, there will be changes to the single audit requirements
previously specified under OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations. Beyond making changes t¢ auditor requirements the new standards required that non
federal entities follow the new Cost Principles in 2 CFR 200 for any grants that were awarded after

December 26, 2014,

In these standards there are also significant purchasing changes to federal grants that apply July 1, 2016.
The purchasing department should be familiar with these new standards, because these standards are

detailed and complex.

IMPLICIT RATE SUBSIDY FOR OPEBs
In Oregon, an implicit rate subsidy is required for almost all entities, due to the fact that Oregon law

requires that any retiree be allowed to buy-back into their former employer’s health insurance plan, Inthe
past, relatively small employers participating in a large, pooled health plan were sometimes exempt from
having to account for an implicit rate subsidy due to a “community-rating” exception. In general, this
exception applied when the claims experience of an individual employer would have virtually no impact
on the premium being charged to that employer. The accounting standards that apply to OPEBs refer to
the Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOPs) in determining whether a community-rated situation applied.
However, the newly revised ASOP 6 virtually eliminated the concept of the community-rating exception.
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Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.

. As a result, agencies participating in community-rated plans that had previously been exempt from
reporting liabilities due to an implicit rate subsidy may now be required to do so. We recommend that
Management contact an actuary to determine if an actuarial study is required.

Best Practices — Not Significanf Deficiencies

1. Governing Body Monitoring

An integral part of internal controls is the monitoring of financial activities by those charged with the
governance (elected officials). This can be accomplished by asking specifically designed questions to
senior staff, by reviewing basic financial statements and projections and by comparing financial results to
pre-established benchmarks,  While elected officials participate in the budget adoption process and
receive staff prepared basic financial statements, these only partially fulfill the monitoring function.

We recommend that the City Council articulate their monitoring practices and record in the minutes when
those activities occur.

Since monitoring activities, including benchmarking, are unique to each entity we are available to assist
the City Council in establishing checklists, questions and benchmarks that are customized for your use.

2. Segregation of Duties

Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate
cerfain incompatible duties so that no one employee has access fo both physical assets and the related
accounting records or to all phases of a transaction. Consequently, the possibility exists that unintentional
or intentional errors or irregularities could exist and not be promptly detected. We recommend that the
City continually monitor the financial activities to mitigate this risk and consider obtaining additional
fidelity insurance coverage to compensate for this risk. :

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. . :

P o o

Tara M Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO,, P.C.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON THE AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015, AND THE AUDITOR’S
COMMUNICATION TO THE GOVERNING BODY, (SAS NO.
114), AND THE OAR 162-10-000 REQUIRED
COMMUNICATION.

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

1. To support accountability in financial reporting the City has prepared financial
statements and a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

2. That City Management is primarily and ultimately responsible for the fairness of the
presentation of the basic financial statements.

3. That City Council is ultimately responsible for the monitoring, accountability and
oversight of the City’s fiscal affairs.

4. Further that Independent Certified Public Accountants, Pauly, Rogers and Company,
P.C., was previously engaged by the City to audit the financial statements and
express an independent opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the City’s
financial statements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE: |

Section 1.  The Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on the audited
financial statements of the City for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 is accepted as
presented.

Section 2:  The auditors’ letter required under Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS)
No. 114; The Auditor's Communication to the Governing Body, is accepted as presented.

Section 3:  The auditors’ letter required under Oregon Administrative Rules 162.10.000
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, is accepted as
presented.

Section 4:  This resolution is effective upon adoption.
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YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder

Adopted:

Resolution #

Page 2 of 2




AGENDA ITEM #7

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT /ISSUE: A Resolution Approving The Use Of Not Less Than $150,000 Of The
Lease Revenue From Multnomah County To Reduce Property Tax Levy For The Police
Facility Bonds.

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016

City Council Regular Mtg.
STAFF MEMBER: Erich Mueller

DEPARTMENT: Finance

ACTION REQUIRED ADVISORY BOARD/COMMISSION
Resolution RECOMMENDATION:

Not Applicable

PUBLIC HEARING
No

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopft the proposed resolution as a policy statement.

EXHIBITS: None

Subject ! Issue Relates To: .
[l Council Goals [] Legislative K Other (describe)

Council policy statement regarding budget priority of PD building lease revenue.
Issue / Council Decision & Discussion Points:

4 The Police Facility is financed through the voter approved the additional property tax

levy.

4 The lease rent revenue from the MCSOQO should be used to lower the property tax

burden on the voters.




BACKGROUND:

As part of contracting for L.aw Enforcement Services Provided through the Multhomah County
Sheriff's Office (MCSO} the City agreed to lease a portion of the Troutdale Community Police
Facility (Facility) for use by the Multnomah County Sheriff's Office Patrol Division. The Facility is
an important cost efficiency component enabling the Sheriff to shift his patrol hub info East County
and realize cost saving operational efficiencies by being closer to service delivery areas.

The MCSO will use the majority but not all of the Facility. The City shall retain ownership of the
Facility which will continue to house the City Attorney/Legal Department offices, the main server
network and telecommunication data center for the City, and the community room. The expected
gross lease revenue would be greater than $215,000 annually, some of which would be consumed
by building utilities, insurance, maintenance and operations; Landlord expenses.

Based on comments during the public meetings on the MCSQO IGA, expressing the expectation
that the lease rent be used to pay towards the Facility bonds, the staff proposed, and the Budget
Committee approved, and the Council adopted the current Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget,
allocating $150,000 of the rent revenue to reduce bond property tax levy.

Subsequently the Council requested a resolution that at least $150,000 of the annual lease rent
revenue be used to reduce the annual debt service property tax levy for the Police Facility Bonds.
The Council discussed at their June 9, 2015 meeting and chose to table the resolution indefinitely.
The Council requested to consider the resolution again tonight.

The City is responsible for all the utility and facility operational maintenance costs as landlord.
The utility expenses are expected to grow significantly over the current usage in order to support
the 60-65 MCSO deputies and staff operating the countywide Patrol Division 24/7/365. After a
year of operation there will be a utility cost reimbursement reconciliation. The lease calls for the
MCSO to reimburse the City for 72.5 percent of the annual total of utility costs.

The City General Fund is responsible for the remaining 27.5 percent of the utility cost. Using the
MCSQO utility reimbursement funds to also pay toward the bonds, as some have suggested, would
result in the City General Fund subsidizing the countywide MCSQ patrol costs. The funds are
reimbursement of utility costs paid (to PGE, NW Natural, etc...). The money either pays for utilities
or for bond debt.

After a year of operation and utility cost reconciliation, staff expects to present a report to Budget
Committee at their December 6, 2016 Mid-Year meeting. As discussed at April 2015 Budgst
Committee meetings the annual utility cost reconciliation will not occur until after the first full year
of the lease. The first year of the lease runs July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, the reconciliation

will likely occur in August of 2016.
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SUMMARY:

The proposed resolution reflects the City Council policy intent for future budgeting decisions, as
the resolution does not bind the Budget Committee on the allocation of budget resources, nor
does it supersede the Local Budget Law. However, the Council comprises half of the Budget
Committee, and therefore this resolution may influence the committee’s decisions.

PROS & CONS:

A. Approve the resolution communicating the clear policy intent for the tax payers to receive
benefit in future years from the lease rent revenue through reducing their bond debt levy
burden, but increasing the relative cost to the General Fund.

B. Not adopt resolution, foregoing any policy statement regarding future year’s intended use
of the lease rent revenue.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF NOT LESS THAN
$150,000 OF THE LEASE REVENUE FROM MULTNOMAH
COUNTY TO REDUCE PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE
POLICE FACILITY BONDS. |

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

1.  On March 24, 2015 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2279 approving the real
property Lease Agreement with Multnomah County for the Troutdale Community
Police Facility (Facility) for use by the Multnomah County Sheriff's Office Patrol
Division.

2. The Facility Lease has a ten year term, and the City shall retain ownership of the
Facility, which will continue to house the City Attorney/Legal Department offices, the
main server network and telecommunication data center for the City, and the
community room.

3. The City bears the utility and facility operational maintenance costs as landlord.

4. The Facility is a long term capital asset financed with general obligation bonds of the
City for which the voters have approved the additional property tax levy for the debt
service requirements.

5. The Facility Lease rent should be used primarily to reduce the bond debt service

property tax levy burden of the voters.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE:

Section 1. Agrees now that at least $150,000 of the annual Lease rent revenue be
used to reduce the annual debt service property tax levy for the Police Facility Bonds.

Section 2. The annual Lease rent revenue allocation shall be in conformance with the
requirements and limitations of ORS 294.305 to 294.565 the Oregon Local Budget Law.
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Section 3. The City Finance Director, Erich Mueller, or a designee, is hereby
authorized, empowered and directed to prepare the annual budget proposed to the
Budget Committee in a manner necessary to implement the intent of this resolution.

Section 4. The Finance Director is authorized to disburse funds, subject to annual
appropriations, as necessary to fulfill the debt service obligations, Lease Agreement
obligations, including but not limited to building utilities, insurance, maintenance and
operations; and is further directed to implement all such actions necessary to ensure
budgetary compliance.

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Daté

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder
Adopted:
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AGENDA ITEM #9

CITY OF TROUTDALE

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT / ISSUE: A Resolution adopting the Public Works Department Capital Improvement
Plan, rescinding Resolutions 1995 and 2225, and rescinding the Parks Capital Improvement
Plan adopted by Resolution 1941

MEETING TYPE: MEETING DATE: March 8, 2016
City Council Regular Mtg.

STAFF MEMBER: Travis Hultin, Chief

Engineer

DEPARTMENT: Public Works

ACTION REQUIRED ADVISORY COMMITTEE/COMMISSION
Resolution RECOMMENDATION:
Approval

PUBLIC HEARING
No Comments:

See Staff Report for Planning Commission, Budget

Committee and the Parks Advisory Committee

recommendations

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the CIP

EXHIBITS:
A. Public Works Capital Improvement Plan Draft - Redlined

Subject / Issue Relates To:
[] Council Goals [] Legislative XI Other (describe)
Capital Improvement Plan

Issue / Commission Discussion Points:

¢ The Capital Improvement Plan enumerates the capital improvement projects that the
City anticipates will need to be executed in the foreseeable future

¢ The Capital Improvement Plan hasn’t been comprehensively updated since 2009.
Some interim updates have occurred since then.

¢ Capital improvements are projects that build new facilities, add capacity to existing
facilities, or otherwise upgrade the performance of a facility. Studies and planning

Reviewed and Approved by City Manager: L/\SZ\ wu———g\




projects that identify and inform the scoping of such projects are also considered capital
improvement projects. Replacement or maintenance projects that do not add capacity
or upgrade performance of the facility are not “improvements”, and hence not included
in the CIP.

¢ This draft Capital Improvement Plan project lists attached address the following
systems: Water, Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, Transportation and Parks.

¢ The Capital Improvement Plan provides part of the basis for developing system
development charge and utility user fee rates. By law, projects must be in the capital
improvement plan to be accounted for in the system development charge rate
methodology and for system development charges to be expended on those projects.

¢ The Parks CIP included in Exhibit A reflects the existing Parks CIP developed in the
2006 Park Master Plan with minimal changes only to reflect known projects that have
been completed and the addition of an update to the Parks Master Plan. Staff
recommends that the Parks Master Plan be updated, and the Parks CIP be updated
subsequently.

¢ The CIP in Exhibit A reflects changes tracked since the rough draft was presented at
the November 17" Council work session. A clean copy is attached to the adopting
Resolution.

¢ The draft CIP was presented to the Planning Commission, the Budget Committee and
the Parks Advisory Committee for review and recommendations. Additions or deletions
to the project listings, and changes in project timing or priority, recommended by those
bodies have not yet been incorporated into the attached Exhibit A, pending confirmation
and/or other direction from the Council.

BACKGROUND:

The Capital Improvement Plan provides a listing, description and estimated cost of significant
infrastructure improvement projects that the City expects will be needed in the foreseeable
future. State law requires that the City develop a Capital Improvement Plan in part to form the
basis for developing a system development charge methodology and SDC rates. The CIP also
provides an integrated and centralized compendium of planned projects that is critical for work
planning, budget planning/preparation, and rate setting. The CIP is based on best available
information at the time of preparation, but is subject to change in the future. These projects are
goals for the City’s infrastructure systems, but are subject to limitations of funding availability,
staff resources, and external forces, and inclusion in the CIP does not appropriate funds,
guarantee contributions from external sources, nor provide final authorization for improvements
to be completed. Funding for a proposed project must be appropriated through the normal
budget process. Applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and regulations apply.
Inclusion of a project in this Plan is not an indication that project approval will be granted, funds
will be appropriated, or necessary permits will be issued.

The primary sources for identifying projects in the CIP are the respective Master Plans. Master
Plans have been developed for each system discussed in this draft CIP. Additionally, projects
may be identified by staff for consideration in the CIP based on staff's knowledge and
experience with these systems and knowledge of actual realized development patterns.
Further, projects may be proposed for inclusion in the CIP by goals set out by the Council, as
well as by regional infrastructure planning efforts.
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The last comprehensive update to the CIP was in 2009. Since 2009, the water and storm sewer
CIP’s were updated in a less robust and less detailed format, following the updated Water
Master Plan and South Troutdale Storm Sewer Master Plan.

The Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and Transportation System Plan were updated in 2013 and
2014, respectively. The CIP has not been updated since the adoption of those plans. This draft
incorporates updates to the CIP’s for all systems, including the projects identified in those plans.

The Parks CIP was discussed extensively in 2013, but the CIP has not been formally updated
since its original adoption in 2008, though the Council did adjust the SDC rate downward
dramatically. That CIP is based on the Parks Master Plan that was adopted in 2006. The
existing Parks Master Plan methodology had a significant component that was directly based on
population, specifically parkland acquisition and the related land development costs. Population
forecasts have been revised downward since that time, and the land acquisition computations
should be recalculated and revised based on the current build-out populaticn expectations. The
balance of the needs identified in the Parks Master Plan (i.e. not directly computed from
population) were determined based on community involvement processes (surveys, workshops,
advisory committee, etc.). Those community opinions, attitudes and desires may have changed
since those community involvement processes were conducted in the mid-2000’s. Additionally,
the Parks Master Plan envisioned a planning horizon out to somewhere between 2015 and
2020, assuming build-out of the City by that time, which hasn’t cccurred due o economic
conditions. All of these factors lead Staff to recommend that the Parks Master Plan be updated,
and the Parks CIP be subsequently updated to reflect the results of that process. A project to
update the Parks Master Plan in the immediate future is reflected in the draft CIP. The only
other new project identified in the draft Parks CIP at this fime is the addition of Visionary Park,
as directed by the Council in Resolution #2306, though the Parks Advisory Committee has
recommended another addition (see below).

The draft CIP was presented to the Planning Commission for its review, feedback and
recommendations. The Planning Commission discussed the entirety of the plan, system by
system, and ultimately offered the following recommendations:

1. Adopt the Transportation CIP substantially as presented, with the following changes:

1.1. Expand the scope of project the Downtown Parking Study (ST-090) to a Comprehensive
Downtown Plan and increase the estimated cost accordingly.

1.2. Delete the Primary Access to Urban Renewal Area project (ST-084).
1.3. Delete the Pedestrian Bridge from CBD to URA project (ST-085).

1.4.Roli-up the annual cost estimate for Sidewalk Infill (8T-087) and ADA Infill/lUpgrades on
Public Streets (ST-088) to ten year totals ($75,000 and $250,000, respectively).

2. Adopt the Water CIP substantially as presented, with the following changes:

2.1.Change the proposed timeframe for Reservoir No. 2 Seismic Improvements (WA-045)
from Long Term to Short Term. ‘

3. Adopt the Parks CIP substantially as presented, with the following changes:
3.1. Delete the Special Use Park Development project (PA-003).
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3.2.Delete Neighborhood Park Site Acquisition Phase | (PA-004) and the associated
Neighborhood Park Development (PA-006}

3.3.Delete  Community Park Site Acquisition Phase |l (PA-013) and the associated
Community Park Site Development Phase Il (PA-014)

4. Adopt the Storm Sewer CIP substantially as presented, with no recommended changes.
5. Adopt the Sanitary Sewer CIP substantially as presented, with the following changes:

5.1. Limit the cost of Onsite Water Recycling System at the WPCF (SA-064) to not more than
$100,000.

5.2. Delete the WPCF Upgrades project (SA-061).

The Planning Commission also included clerical corrections and updates amongst their
recommendations that have been addressed in the revised CIP.

Note that deletion of a project from the City’s CIP does not automatically delete it from the
underlying plan. In the case of Urban Renewal Agency projects, for example, deletion from this
CIP does not prohibit the Urban Renewal Agency from proceeding with the project or from
funding the project through the Urban Renewal Agency budget. There is no requirement to
reflect URA projects in the City's CIP, unless the City intends to make a contribution to the
project from SDC revenues. URA-funded projects are reflected in the City CIP primarily in an
attempt to compile all major projects in one document for ease of use and transparency, but it
would be equally permissible to leave such projects out of the City’s CIP and leave them solely
in the Urban Renewal Plan (aka Riverfront Redevelopment Plan).

At the time of the Planning Commission meeting, Staff was still researching estimated costs for
the Onsite Water Recycling System at the WPCF (SA-064), which prompted the Commission to
make its recommendation 5.1 above. Since that time, Staff has furthered its research and found
that an estimated cost of such a system is $150,000. The current cost to the City for using
water from the City's potable water system at the WPCF is approximately $84,000/year.
Therefore, a simple payback period for a $150,000 investment in the Onsite Recycled Water
System, with some allowance for annual operation and maintenance of the Recycled Water
System, would be approximately 2-3 years.

The draft Parks CIP was presented to the Parks Advisory Committee (PAC) for ifs review,
feedback and recommendations. The PAC discussed the entirety of the Parks plan and
ultimately recommended adoption of the Parks CIP as presented with the following

recommendations:
1. Swap the order of the PA-002 and PA-003 projects.

2. Add a project to construct a Skateboard Park at Columbia Park.

Note that changing the order the projects are listed does not change the project priority, or have
any real practical effect. Both projects’ timeframes are currently estimated as short term, and
implementation of PA-003 particularly will be determined by the timing of development of the
URA, not by the order of its listing in the CIP.

Since the PAC meeting, Staff has researched the potential cost of a Skateboard Park at
Columbia Park and found the estimated cost to be $455,000. If the Council elects to add this
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project to the CIP, the Council could direct staff to designate a lower cost, and Staff would
attempt to reduce the scope of the project accordingly, in consultation with the PAC.

The draft CIP was presented to the Budget Committee for its review, feedback and
recommendations. The Budget Committee made no specific endorsements nor any
recommendations.

Following this significant and comprehensive CIP update, Staff recommends that the CIP be
reviewed and adjusted at least annually.

" Current Year Budget Impacts [] Yes (describe) DA N/A

Future Fiscal Impacts: [ Yes (describe) ] N/A

When adopted this will inform future SDC and utility rate calculations, and future budgeting for
capital projects

City Attorney Approved N/A [1Yes

Community Involvement Process: [X] Yes (describe) [1 N/A
" The CIP has been reviewed in four previous public meetings
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EXHBIT A

Transportation Improvements

1. Project Name: Improve NW Graham Road
Project Number: ST-080
Timeframe: Immediate (in-progress)
FEstimated Cost: $ 3.400.000 (Total Cost) $ 550,000 (City Share)
Funding Source: ~ Port of Portland. ODOT ($ 2,850.000)
Street Improvement Fund_($ 550,000)
Problem: Portions of NW Graham Road need to be reconstructed, widened

and/or structurally upgraded to accommodate traffic growth,
especially freight, with the development of the north industrial area
including the Troutdale Reynolds Industrial Park.

Proposed Solution: Widen and improve selected portions of NW Graham Road.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M8)

In Previous CIP? Yes

Related Project(s): SD-N20
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2. Project Name:

Downtown Parking Lot

Project Number: ST-690089
Timeframe: Immediate
Estimated Cost: $ 50,000

Funding Source:

EXHBIT A

Police Facility Capital Project Fund_(100%)

Problem:

Additional parking capacity is desired in the central business district

and business owners have indicated a desire for more public parking
availability in the CBD for all users. The construction of the new
Police Facility has left the old Police Department site available for

Proposed Solution:

redevelopment and reuse.

Construct a public parking lot on the old Police Department site at

141 SE Dora Avenue.

Identified By: City Council
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): ST-082-ST-081
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3. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

Downtown Parking Study
ST-09+090
Immediate
$ 051,000

Street Fund (25%), Street Improvement (25%)
General Fund-Planning (50%)

Additional ADA and bicycle parking is desired in the central business
district and business owners have indicated a desire for more public
parking availability in the CBD for all users.

Conduct a study to optimize existing parking in the CBD, and to
identify and assess opportunities for developing additional public
parking, including ADA and bicycle parking.

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M13)
No
ST-081, ST-082, ST-089
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4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:

In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A
Columbia Gorge Bike Hub

ST-082

Immediate

FBDB-$85.000

Grant/Donations;-General Fund-{ParksODOT (100%)

The CBD is a town center intended to be bicycle-friendly.
Additionally, the CBD lies on a very popular bicycle touring route
and experiences large, and increasing, bicycle traffic volumes.
Bicycle parking and support facilities for cyclists are very limited in
the CBD, discouraging CBD workers from bicycling and
discouraging bicyclists from visiting and stopping in the CBD. Travel
Oregon is partnering with Cities (including Troutdale) along the
Columbia Gorge and other community groups to develop Bicycle
Hubs in each City that will provide rest stops and support services for
bicycle riders. Troutdale currently lacks such a bike hub.

Construct a Bike Hub along Historic Columbia River Highway

Travel Oregon, Chamber of Commerce, City Council
No

ST-090, ST-081
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5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:

In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

ADA Transition Plan for PW Facilities
ST-083

Immediate

$ 15,000

Public Works Management (100%)

All municipalities are required to prepare, adopt and pursue an ADA
transition plan to remove existing ADA barriers. The City’s ADA
transition plan is out of date and needs updated.

Prepare a new ADA transition plan for Public Works Facilities.
Staff

No

ST-088




6. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A

Primary Access to Urban Renewal Area
ST-084

Short Term

$2,600,06003.197.000

Urban Renewal Agency (100%)

The Urban Renewal Area lacks a sufficient primary automobile,
bicycle and pedestrian access road.

Acquire right-of-way and construct a new public street through the
Columbia Factory Outlet Mall property from the intersection of SW
257" Avenue and SW 257" Way to the Urban Renewal Area.

Identified By: Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
\ ' I L
= f""f—’-‘1 e, e 25; T R"Mp‘____ % |
r—— _"5"_—“:,-—;_ — A;_"—'_"_E"-k:_—_:h—r;:}‘:*::—-iﬁ _ ‘I'
|l e — _— ﬁ':i'mr"':?‘z_;r_ﬂ___
| U TTHE RAMP e e - e 9 jf”"“"'*ﬁw—c-ﬂ. ———
P 1 L T
5T-084 r
Ln
: |
&
|
F [
I |I




7. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A
Bicycle Parking in the CBD
ST-081
Short Term
$ 36,60031.000

Bike Paths and Trails Fund (50%), Street Fund_(50%)

The CBD is a town center intended to be bicycle-friendly.
Additionally, the CBD lies on a very popular bicycle touring route
and experiences large, and increasing, bicycle traffic volumes.
Bicycle parking is currently very limited in the CBD, discouraging
CBD workers from bicycling and discouraging bicyclists from
visiting and stopping in the CBD.

Install bicycle parking in the CBD at one or more locations, including
covered/long-term bicycle parking

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project B18)
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): ST-0672-ST-082, ST-090, ST-091
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8. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

Shared Roadway Pavement Markings
ST-092091

Short Term

$ 66560062.000

Street Fund (100%)

Several bicycle routes in the City do not have sufficient roadway
space for dedicated bicycle lanes and are low-speed roads where
bicycles can safely share the travel lanes with vehicles.

Install shared roadway pavement markings.
City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Projects B11-B15)
No

None




9. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A
Pedestrian Crossings/Traffic Calming in the CBD
ST-079
Short Term
$ 150,000 (Total Cost) $ 22.500 (City Share)

County_(50%), Developer (10%), Street Fund (25%)
Street Improvement Fund_(15%)

The CBD is a town center intended to be pedestrian-oriented, with
additional focus on pedestrian safety, accessibility and circulation.
Current configuration of Historic Columbia River Highway is auto-
oriented and needs to be friendlier and more inviting to pedestrians,
encourage pedestrians to circulate between north and south sides of
street, and ADA compliant. On-street parking limits site distance for
vehicles entering from side-streets. Traffic calming is needed to
reduce vehicle speeds and improve vehicular and pedestrian safety.

Install curb extensions, including new ADA ramps, along HCRH at
Kendall, Buxton, Dora, Harlow and Kibling intersections on north
and south sides of HCRH

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project P37)
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A

Improve Stark Street from 257th to Troutdale Road

ST-007

Short Term

$ 3:094;0003.690.000 (Total Cost) $ 369.000 (City Share)
County/Regional Funds_ (90%), Street Improvement Fund (10%)

This portion of Stark Street needs additional travel lanes, a center turn
lane, and bike and pedestrian capacity.

Widen this portion of Stark Street to provide four travel lanes and a
turn lane, reduce wvertical and horizontal curves, and construct

sidewalks and bike lanes.

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M4), STIP,

Identified By:
RTP
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-S27
3 J | ! ‘ i H [
Py 1 : :
£ i g ;
& ; gl £ 3
B A 5t lﬂ:? i B
& et s i L T
2 &
§oouy [
‘l'f.w Tk Lo [
|
B = RN | TRt L S | - B
E i — =~
b
: |

10




EXHBIT A
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EXHBIT A

12:11. Project Name: Construct Pedestrian Access ways
Project Number: ST-064
Timeframe: Short, Med and Long Term
Estimated Cost: $ 75-600120.000
Funding Source: Bike Paths and Trails Fund (100%)
Problem: Lack of pedestrian connectivity in several areas of the City.
Proposed Solution: Construct pedestrian connection access ways in various locations in
the City.
Identified By: Staff
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None

12



13:12. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

EXHBIT A

Improve SW Hensley Road — N/S leg

ST-012

Medium Term

$356,000300.000

Street Improvement Fund_(50%), Street Fund (50%)

The north/south leg of SW Hensley does not meet current City street
standards due to a lack of curbs, sidewalks and other standard

streetscape elements.

Proposed Solution: Improve SW Hensley Road by widening the roadway and

Identified By:

constructing curbs, sidewalks, pedestrian crossings and other
streetscape elements to meet current standards.

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project P8)

In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-S34;- 562
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14:13. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A

Signal at Buxton/Historic Columbia River Highway
ST-078

Medium Term

$ 1,000250,000-(City-Share-$200.000)

County/Regional Funds (80%), Street Improvement Fund (20%)

This intersection is currently stop controlled and experiences heavy
volumes during peak hours. Proximity to 257/HCRH intersection
creates traffic issues and backups. There is limited opportunity for
traffic making a left turn from Buxton onto the Historic Columbia
River Highway, resulting in delay and backups on Buxton.

Install a traffic signal at the intersection of Buxton Avenue and the
Historic Columbia River Highway. Coordinate signal phasing with
257"/Columbia River Highway signal.

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M11)

Identified By:
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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15:14. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A
Reconstruct and Improve NW Dunbar Avenue
ST-045
Medium Term
$ 450;000468.000

Street Improvement Fund (50%), Street Fund (50%)

NW Dunbar Avenue does not meet current City street standards due
to_insufficient pavement width, curbs, sidewalks and other standard

streetscape elements.istoonarrow-and-lackssidewalls.

Improve NW Dunbar Avenue by widening the roadway and
constructing curbs, sidewalks, pedestrian crossings and other

streetscape elements to meet the i—eenstructing—sidewalls;—and
making—related—improvements—to—bring—it—te—commercial/industrial

standard.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M14)
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-N16
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16:15. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

Pedestrian Bridge from CBD to URA
ST-085

Long Term

$ 2:500,06003.074,000

Urban Renewal Agency (100%)

There is a lack of direct pedestrian connectivity between the URA and
the CBD. The Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) presents a batrier to
developing traditional ground-level pedestrian connections between
the CBD and the URA.

Construct a pedestrian bridge over the UPRR right of way between
the CBD and the URA.

Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006
No

None
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17:16. Project Name:
Projeet Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT A

Backage Road (Marine Drive Extension)

ST-077

Long Term

$ 8:1635000-9.737.000 (Total Cost) $ 1.168.000 (City Share)
ODOT STIP_(88%), Street Improvement (12%)

There are congestion and turning movement conflicts on the southern
Frontage Road.

Construct a roadway from the intersection of Marine Drive/South
Frontage Road southerly and easterly to the intersection of 257th
Drive/257th Way behind the Frontage Road businesses.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M9), Troutdale
y y P
Interchange Area Management Plan, 2011
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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18:17. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:

In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

Update the Transportation System Plan

ST-086

Long Term

$100,000

General Fund-Planning (50%), Street Improvement (50%)

The current Transportation System Plan, prepared in 2014, will be in
need of update. The need to update may also be driven by Periodic
Review or other state Planning requirements.

Prepare an updated Transportation System Plan.
Staff
No

None

CITY OF TROUTDALE
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN

Adopted Apl Bih, 3014 by Ordnancs no, 520

Froparad foe Prepared by
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:'_lq E Hatore Calumibls R Highway Alder, Suil=
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EXHBIT A

19:18. Project Name: Sidewalk Infill
Project Number: ST-087
Timeframe: Ongoing
Estimated Cost: $7:50075,000 annuathy
Funding Source: Bike Paths and Trails Fund_ (50%), Street Fund_(50%)

Problem: There are numerous gaps in the City’s sidewalk system and some
streets lack sidewalks entirely.

Proposed Solution: Construct sidewalks to infill gaps and to provide sidewalks on streets
that have none.

Identified By: Staff
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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20:19. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT A

ADA TInfill/Upgrades on Public Streets

ST-088

Ongoing

$250,000 annvatly

Street Fund_(50%), Bike Paths and Trails Fund_ (50%)

The ADA Transition Plan will identify needed ADA infill and
upgrade projects.

Construct new and upgraded ADA facilities on public streets where
directed by the ADA Transition Plan.

Staff

No
ST-083
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1. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B
Water Improvements

Reservoir Seismic Study
WA-044

Short Term

$ 88:00086.000

Water Fund_(100%)

The City’s drinking water reservoirs were built prior to the
implementation of current seismic standards and appear to be deficient
with respect to modern seismic protections. Reservoirs are critical
infrastructure to protect life and health during a disaster event.
Additionally, reservoir failure in an earthquake could result in
significant property damage. Reservoirs should be constructed and
equipped to survive the Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE) event to
the maximum extent practicable based on current knowledge and
standards.

Conduct a study to determine the seismic performance of all four of the
City’s reservoirs under the MCE event scenario and to make specific
retrofit recommendations for each reservoir to improve its ability to
survive the MCE event without failure or loss of contents. This will
inform and determine the specific scopes of work for WA-045 and
WA-046.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes
WA-045, WA-046



2. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT B

Extend Water Line from Spectro (Commerce Court) to Galli Container
Storage Property (formerly RMAC)

WA-028

Short Term

$ 94560080.000

Water Improvement Fund (100%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing flow
from either direction, and improves water quality by eliminating dead
ends in the system where water can become stale and accumulate
sediments. This increased capacity and reliability is needed to serve
growth in the north industrial area.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012, Staff*

Identified By:
In previous CIP? Yes*
Related Project(s): WA-040
*This is a staff-developed variation on the project identified in the Master Plan and prior CIP
|
|
i
|
\ \ 7
B o
e % ’ t2
, bt
Yy + | ‘g
%, :
‘\"\Iﬁt;\ /‘, iﬂ)‘s e -
N, P
N i
L &
Ve
&"' e
N
._‘::\\1
L AN
L ff'*\ ff__i-_;;{_j:!,‘t-‘_ﬂ_ﬁfil:!




3. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B

Rogers Circle to Spectro (Commerce Court) Water Main Loop
WA-040

Short Term

$ 75;00097.000

Water Improvement Fund (50%), Water Fund (50%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing flow
from either direction, and improves water quality by eliminating dead
ends in the system where water can become stale and accumulate
sediments. This increased capacity and reliability is needed to serve
growth in the north industrial area.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012/Staff*
Yes*

WA-028

*This is a staff-developed variation on the project identified in the Master Plan and prior CIP
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4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
FEstimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT B

Urban Renewal Area to Harlow Place Loop

WA-042

Short Term

$ +74000155.000

Water-tmprovementFund-Developer (90%), URA (10%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct two water line segments to loop the system. Looping the
distribution system in this area increases capacity and reliability by
allowing flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale and
accumulate sediments. This improvement is needed to serve growth in
the URA and along Harlow Place. Additionally, this loop will increase
capacity and reliability of fire flows to serve growth in the north
industrial area. Include a PRV at the pressure zone boundary.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT B

71 Street — Kings Byway Water Main Upsizing
WA-048

Short Term

$ 435;000425.000

Water Fund (100%)

Modeled fire flows along Kings Byway are below current firefighting
standards. Residents along these streets experience low pressures when
the altitude valve at Reservoir #1 opens, due to the higher velocities
developed in the existing small main.

Upsize the water main in 7% Street and Kings Byway from 6” to 8”
diameter.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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EXHBIT B

6. Project Name: Upgrade Booster Pump Station No. 2
Project Number: WA-047
Timeframe: Short Term
Estimated Cost: $ 50.000
Funding Source: Water Fund (100%)
Problem: Booster pump station No. 2 boosts pressure and flow to the

southernmost service area of the City (Zone 6). The current booster
station is under capacity and, as a result, the service area experiences
periods of low pressure and fire flows could be impaired.

more reliable service pressures and fire flows.
entified By: City of Troutdale Water Muaster 2012

In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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7. Project Name:

EXHBIT B

SW Cherry Park Road to SW Spence Rd Loop

Project Number:

WA-049

Timeframe:

Medium Term

Estimated Cost:

$ 65.000

Funding Source:

Developers (100%)

Problem:

The water distribution system is not looped in this area. Modeled fire

Proposed Solution:

flows along Spence Rd are inadequate.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution

system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing flow
from either direction, and improves water quality by eliminating dead
ends in the system where water can become stale and accumulate
sediments. This loop will additionally benefit infill subdivision
development of the adjacent properties on Cherry Park Road by
providing a water main to serve those properties.

Identified By: Staff

In previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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6-8.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B

Construct a 1.0 MG Standpipe (Reservoir No. 5) with line to Zone 1
WA-008

Medium Term

$ 3;625;0002.257,000

Water Improvement Fund_(100%)

There is inadequate storage for Zones 1, 2, & 3. Zone 6 currently
requires booster pumping to maintain adequate service pressures and
flows.

Construct a 1.0 MG Standpipe to provide additional capacity for fire
flow and periods that wells are inoperative or unable to meet demand,
with a transmission line connecting to pressure Zone | at Stark Street.
Interconnect current Zone 6 to incorporate Zone 6 into Zone 1.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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7:9.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution

EXHBIT B

Rogers Circle to Graham Circle Water Main Loop
WA-041

Medium Term

$ +67500065.000

Water Fund (100%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing flow
from either direction, and improves water quality by eliminating dead
ends in the system where water can become stale and accumulate
sediments.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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8:10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:
Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B

Well No. 9

WA-043

Medium Term

$ 2;925;0002.269.000

Water Improvement Fund_(100%)

Firm production capacity of the City’s well field will not meet future
demands

Construct an additional well to provide additional firm production
needed to meet future demand

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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9:11. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B

Reservoir No. 2 Seismic Improvements
WA-045

Long Term

$ $50;000339.000

Water Fund (100%)

Reservoir 2 was built prior to the implementation of current seismic
standards and appears to be deficient with respect to modern seismic
protections. Reservoirs are critical infrastructure to protect life and
health during a disaster event. Additionally, reservoir failure in an
earthquake could result in significant property damage. Reservoir 2 is
the City’s most important reservoir, and also the reservoir with the
highest potential property damage consequence in a structural failure.
Reservoir 2 should be constructed and equipped to survive the
Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE) event to the maximum extent
practicable based on current knowledge and standards.

Retrofit seismic upgrades to the reservoir in accordance with the
recommendation of a reservoir seismic study.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
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10:12. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT B

Reservoir Nos. 1, 3 and 4 Seismic Improvements
WA-046

Long Term

$ 486;606402.000

Water Fund (100%)

Reservoirs 1, 3 and 4 were built prior to the implementation of current
seismic standards and appear to be deficient with respect to modern
seismic protections. Reservoirs are critical infrastructure to protect life
and health during a disaster event. Additionally, reservoir failure in an
earthquake could result in significant property damage. Reservoirs 1, 3
and 4 should be constructed and equipped to survive the Maximum
Credible Earthquake (MCE) event to the maximum extent practicable
based on current knowledge and standards.

Retrofit seismic upgrades to the reservoirs in accordance with the
recommendation of a reservoir seismic study.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes
WA-044



EXHBIT B
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EXHBIT B

42:13.Project Name: Update the Water Master Plan

Project Number: WA-038

Timeframe: Long Term

Estimated Cost: $ 4+25;600100,000

Funding Source: Water Improvement Fund (50%), Water Fund (50%)

Problem: The current Water Master Plan was prepared in 2012 and will need
updated.

Proposed Solution: Update the Waster Master Plan.

Identified By: Staff

In previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None

City of Troutdale

WATER MASTER PLAN

July 31, 20112
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EXHIBIT C

Sanitary Sewer Improvements

1. Project Name: GO Bond Debt Service
Project Number: NA
Timeframe: Through FY 2017-18
Estimated Cost: $ 11,389,291 (Remaining Balance: $ 3,555,000)
Funding Source: Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund (39%), Sewer Fund (28%) and
Property Tax (33%).
Problem: Although the new treatment facility constructed with these GO bonds

provided for a 47% increase in capacity (from 1.6 mgd to 3.0 mgd),
the City Council determined that only 39% of the debt service
payments should be paid by the Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund.

Proposed Solution: Pay 39% of the debt service payment from the Sanitary Sewer
Improvement Fund, plus an additional $1,128,400 originally intended
to be paid from SDCs but actually paid from property taxes due to
lack of SDC revenue.

Identified By: Staff
¥n Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None




EXHIBIT C




3:2.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHIBIT C

Wastewater Operations Annex (“GSA Property”) Improvements
SA-063

Immediate

$ 35,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

The City acquired this property adjacent to the WPCF through a grant

from the Federal Government, for use in support of wastewater

operations. The property lacks improvements to render it useable in .
its intended role. The Federal Government requires that the City

improve and utilize the property or risk rescission of the grant.

Construct basic improvements on the property, including access and
circulation roads and drainage facilities.

Identified By: Staff
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None

. SA-083
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4:3.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHIBIT C

Onsite Water Recycling System at the WPCF
SA-064
Short Term

FBP-$150,000
Sewer Fund (100%)

The WPCF operations and irrigation is one of the largest consumers
among the City’s water customers, driving up the total water demand
on the City’s system and consuming water resources. This is also a

significant expense for the City.

Install a water recycling system at the WPCF to recycle treated
effluent for use onsite as process water and for irrigating the WPCF

grounds.

Identified By: Staff
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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5:4.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHIBIT C

Upgrade Pump Station #2 (Husky Pump Station)
SA-040

Short Term

$ 542,000408.000

Sewer Fund (100%)

The pump station needs increased pump and motor capacity,
increased wet well capacity, and enhanced motor controls.

Upgrade the capacity of the pump station by providing pump/motor,
controls, and wet well improvements.

Tdentified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): NeneSA-062
‘ e, S|
3 T — R —
?i.;_ I -«AIMFWY—— =
:Fﬁ .—_Th;“mr:zu—
Ll
=
: — ——WLI&: S e B ]
.g J—— S r—:;;—ﬁ::&.‘+’ J—
:,Et;E'-"; s —— |
g 6" Bl &
R RD*“"_ % B" CSP R




6:5.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT C

Pump Station Emergency Backup Power
SA- 062

Short, Medium Term

$ 200,000

Sewer Fund_(100%)

Several of the City’s sanitary sewer pump stations lack onsite
emergency power supply and rely on a very limited number of
portable generators that must be deployed from the IWPCF{ar2). In the
event of a power outage, especially an outage affecting multiple pump
stations, sanitary sewer overflows could occur,

Install onsite emergency backup power generators with automatic
transfer switches at pump station #’s 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8.

Staff
No
Noene—SA-040. SA-059




7:6.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT C

Airport to Graham Road Sewer Main Upsizing
SA-057

Medium Term

$ 897:000714.000

Developer

The existing segment of sewer main from the Sundial Road to the
western end of Perimeter Way (via Graham Road) is—may be
undersized with future flows, depending on intensity of industrial
development

Upsize approximately 1,700 linear feet of the sewer main from 8” to
‘l 0‘)5

City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
No

None
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8.7.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT C

South Buxton Road Sewer Main Upsizing

SA-055

Medium Term

$ 696;0600554,000

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund_(38.4%), Sewer Fund (61.6%)

Existing sewer mains in the southern segment of S Buxton Road are
projected to be under capacity with future growth

Upsize approximately 1200 linear feet of the sewer mains in S Buxton
Road from 8” to 10”

City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
Yes
SA-056

PR




9.8.Project Name:
feet)

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHIBIT C

Upgrade/Replace Pump Station -#1, new force main (H0-ineh;3;560

SA-060

Medium Term

$ 2;696;06002,973,000

Sanitaey-Sewer Improvement Fund_(100%);-SewerFund

Future flows to this pump station/force-main will exceed its current
capacity. The pump station configuration and equipment is aged and
in need of upgrades, resulting in operational issues and poor
efficiency relative to what can be provided with current technology.
The alignment of the existing force main was based on the location of
the old Wastewater Treatment Plant, resulting in flows from this
pump station taking an unnecessarily circuitous route to the current
WPCF location, which in turn puts unnecessary pressure on other
force mains and pump stations along Frontage Road.

Upgrade or replace the existing pump station and construct a new
3,560 linear foot, 8” diameter force main directly east through the
airport in an existing sanitary sewer easement to Graham Road.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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EXHIBIT C

10:9. Project Name: Upsize Pump Station #7 (Sundial Pump Station)
Project Number: SA-059
Timeframe: Medium Term
Estimated Cost: $ 204000160,000
Funding Source: Developer (100%)
Problem: Future flows to PS #7 will-may exceed existing pumping capacity,
depending on intensity of industrial development.
Proposed Solution: Iﬁstall larger pumps.
Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): NereSA-062
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+-10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:

In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT C

Lower Beaver Creek and Troutdale Rd Sewer Main Upsizing
SA-056

Long Term

$ 4:744,0003.776,000

Sanitary-Sewer Improvement Fund (38.4%), Sewer Fund_ (61.6%)

Existing sewer main in the southern segment of SE Beaver Creek
Lane are projected to be under capacity with future growth.

Upsize the sewer main.

City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
No

SA-055
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42:11. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT C

WPCF Upgrades
SA-061

Long Term

$ 750,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

Changes in Federal and State NPDES regulations may result in more
stringent limitations on Water Pollution Control Facility discharges
that the City’s WPCF cannot meet with its current treatment systems.

Construct additional and/or upgraded treatment systems at the WPCF.
Staff
Nosne

None
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EXHIBIT C

13:12.Project Name: Update Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan

Project Number: SA-854053

Timeframe: Long Term

Estimated Cost: $ 156,600100,000

Funding Source: Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Sewer Fund (50%)

Problem: The current Sanitary Sewer Master Plan was prepared in 2013 and
will need updated.

Proposed Solution: Update the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan.

Identified By: Staff

In Previous CIP? Yes

Related Project(s): None

Sanitary Sewer
Master Plan

Prapured fui
tilly ot Trandidale. Oreges
Mey 11, 2013
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1. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Storm Sewer Improvements

Graham Road Storm Drainage
SD-N20

Immediate (in progress)

$ 1.800.000 (Total Cost) $-550,000

Port of Portland ($ 1.250.000)
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_(§ 550.000)

There is no developed storm drainage system along NW Graham Road.

Construct a storm drainage system on NW Graham Road.
Staff

Yes
ST-080

e
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2. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:
Salmon Creek.

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT D

Salmon Creek Weir Improvements

SD-N21

Immediate (in progress)

$ 150,000 (City Share) [$ 130,000 _remaining]

SDIC, Portt of Portland
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_($ 130,000)

There are potential sterm—waterstormwater capacity problems along

Relocate and increase the crest length of the existing relief weir located
along Salmon Creek and the width of the channel which receives water
from the weir. The suggested weir length and the channel width are 50

feet.

Identified By: North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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EXHBIT D

3. Project Name: Beaver Creek Culverts
Project Number: SD-S27
Timeframe: Immediate (in-progress)
Estimated Cost: $ +1+78,0001.608,000 (Total Cost) $ 100,000 (City share-$+06;000)
Funding Sourece: County ($ 1.508.000)
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_ ($ 100,000)
Problem: The Stark Street culvert must be upsized for capacity, upgraded for fish

passage and lengthened to accommodate improvements to SE Stark
Street. The Troutdale Road culvert requires upgraded fish passage.

Proposed Solution: Replace the existing Stark Street culvert with a larger, longer culvert or
bridge, with fish passage. Retrofit the Troutdale Road culvert with an

upgraded fish passage structure.

Identified By: STIP, Multnomah County
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): ST-007

. N

SD-S27




4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Rehabilitate and Upgrade North Evans Outfall
SD-S28

Immediate

$ 145,000 ($125;000-remaining)

Storm Sewer Utility Fund_(100%)

The North Evans outfall bubbler structure is severely undermined and
unstable, and its rip-rap toe protection has unraveled and is sloughing
away. The outfall structure’s foundation is in imminent danger of
failure, resulting in loss of the outfall structure and damage to Beaver
Creek.

Rehabilitate and upgrade the outfall by constructing an upgraded
foundation for the bubbler, resetting the bubbler, replacing the rip-rap
toe protection and adding tie-backs to the slope with soil nails and
cabling.

Staff
Yes

None




5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposéd Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Update the North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan
SD-N29

Immediate

$ 100,000 (Total Cost) City Share ($50,000)

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (25%), Storm Sewer Fund (25%)
SDIC (50%)

The current North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan was prepared
in 2006 and 2007. Shortly after that, the Port began designing and
developing the Troutdale Reynolds Industrial Park, encompassing a
large portion of the study area. Concurrently, Multnomah County
Drainage District conducted a complete revised modeling of their
service area. More recently, the owner of the Edgefield North property
has conducted detailed site specific stormwater modeling and design
work for that property, which may affect the need for downstream
improvements. Considering all of this, it is prudent to update the North
Troutdale Master Plan to incorporate the known changes within the
study area and the additional information now available. This update
may reveal that some currently planned projects are no longer needed,
or that other, previously unidentified, projects should be added.

Update North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan
Staff

No

NeneAll SD-N

NORTH TROUTDALE

Sron Drginape Master Plag - Fasl




6. Project Name:

EXHBIT D

SW 14" Street Drainage Improvement

Project Number: SD-S35
Timeframe: Immediate
Estimated Cost: $ 15.000

Funding Source:

Storm Sewer Fund (100%)

Problem:

Recurring flooding on SW 14" Street due to insufficient disposal

Proposed Solution:

capacity.
Add capacity to existing drywell system or install an overflow

Tdentified By:

connection to storm main in Hensley.
Staff

In previous CIP?

No

Related Project(s):

None
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6:7.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Columbia River Highway Bypass
SD-N25

Short Term

$ 671;600466.000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_(100%)

The existing 24-inch drain line located in the Columbia River
Highway’s railroad underpass does not provide sufficient conveyance
capacity for future flows.

Install a bypass where future flows leave the drainage area north of
Halsey and cross Columbia River Highway. The bypass will consist of
5 elements: 50 feet of 24-inch trenched culvert under Columbia River
Highway, 160 feet of 24-inch drain line, 40 feet of 24-inch culvert
under a railroad embankment, another 40 feet of 36-inch drain line, and
80 feet of 36-inch culvert under a second railroad embankment.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007

Yes
MNeneSD-N29
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7.8.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

North Arata Creek Drain Line Improvement
SD-N23

Short Term

$ 806;6006760.000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_(100%)

There are potential stormwater capacity problems along Arata Creek
south of Marine Drive with increasing flows from urbanization.

Install 160 feet of 48-inch culvert under the railroad immediately
upstream of the outlet to Salmon Creek and 520 feet of 48-inch PVE
drain line directly west of the airport runway and parallel to the existing
drain lines.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
Yes
NeneSD-N29
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8:9.Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT D

South Arata Creek Culvert Improvement
SD-N24

Short Term

$ 498:600678.000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund_(100%)

The existing railroad culvert needs to be augmented with an additional
culvert to prevent localized flooding in the area immediately upstream
of the railroad embankment.

Install an additional 470 feet of 36-inch culvert where Arata Creek

crosses the railroad embankment north of Interstate 84 and additional
piping under the paved area directly north of the embankment.

Identified By: North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): NeneSD-N29
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9:10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Sandee Palisades Detention Pond Retrofit
SD-S31

Short Term

$ 264;060170,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund_(100%)

There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development in
this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that the
City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing developed

areas in the City.

Retrofit the existing detention pond to previde-add stormwater quality
treatment capability

South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012

Yes

None
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16:11. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT D

Marine Drive Culvert Bypass

SD-N26

Medium Term

$ +642;6680635,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

There is a potential for flooding northeast of the Marine Drive curve.

Provide a cross connection between the two south-to-north drainage
systems to help balance flows by providing 2100 feet of 36-inch drain
line north of and parallel to Marine Drive and an additional 150 feet of
36-inch culvert crossing Marine Drive east of the [-84 Corporate

Center.
North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007

Identified By:
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): NeneSD-N29
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H-12. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT D

NW Dunbar Avenue Storm Line
SD-N16

Medium Term

$ 395;600361.000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

When NW Dunbar Avenue is improved, a new stormwater collection
and conveyance system will be required._Properties along Dunbar
currently have limited options for storm drainage and some of these
commercial/industrial properties experience localized onsite flooding
during heavy rain events.

- Construct a new storm—waterstormwater collection and conveyance
system for NW Dunbar Avenue.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): ST-045
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12:13. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

SE 3rd Street and SE Dora Main Upsizing
SD-S29

Medium Term

$ 200,000149.000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

Potential flooding along 3™ and Dora Streets during high flow events
due to insufficient capacity in the mains.

Upsize approximately 453 linear feet of the storm sewer mains in Dora
Avenue from 12” to 157,

South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None

Ap H_I,LE-'

SW-KENDALL-AVE=SP

rﬂ_‘
i

SWKENDALL

SWIND 5T

’ l

————SE:2ND SF— [

]

i
E
LL
m
Ll
—
(=)
%7
=d
ir‘n

TOMRD
(R BVE s

13




13:14. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

EXHBIT D

SE 21st Street Main Upsizing
SD-S30

Medium Term

$ 156;000122,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

Potential flooding along SE 21% Street during high flow events due to
insufficient capacity in the main.

Upsize approximately 364 linear feet of the storm sewer mains in SW
21% Street from 12” to 15”.

Identified By: South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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EXHBIT D

14:15. Project Name: Strawberry Meadows Detention Pond Retrofit
Project Number: SD-S32
Timeframe: Medium Term
Estimated Cost: $ 135,00098.000
Funding Source: Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)
Problem: There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development in

this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that the
City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing developed
areas in the City.

Proposed Solution: Retrofit the existing detention pond to add stormwater quality treatment
capability.

Identified By: South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012

In previous CIP? Yes

Related Project(s): None

15



15:16. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:

Estimated Cost:

Hensley Road Storm Drainage — N/S Leg
SD-S34

Medium Term

FBH-§ 50.000

EXHBIT D

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Storm Sewer Utility Fund (50%)
Street widening and improvements to the N/S leg of SW Hensley Road
will necessitate the provision of storm drainage systems to serve the
improved roadway.

Install storm drainage facilities associated with roadway improvements
on the N/S leg of SW Hensley Road.

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? No*
Related Project(s): ST-012;-HGX%

* The Hensley Road street improvements have long been in the Transportation CIP, but there has
not been a corresponding storm drainage project in the CIP previously
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EXHBIT D

16:17. Project Name: Stuart Ridge Detention Pond Retrofit
Project Number: SD-S33
Timeframe: Long Term
Estimated Cost: $ H7,600873.000
Funding Source: Storm Sewer Utility Fund_(100%)

There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development in
this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that the -
City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing developed
areas in the City.

Retrofit the existing detention pond to previde-add stormwater quality

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

treatment capability.
Identified By: South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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1718, Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

SDIC Pump Station Upgrade, Phase 11
SD-N07B
Long Term

$ 602,000 (City Share)

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Storm Sewer Utility Fund_(50%)

EXHBIT D

There will be inadequate pumping capacity at the Sandy Drainage
Improvement Company’s pump station with future flows from

urbanization.

Construct additional pumping and/or storage capacity.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, March 1990, prepared by

David J. Newton Associates, Inc.

Yes

Related Project(s): NereSD-N29
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18:19. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHBIT D

Unified Storm Drainage Master Plan
SD-SNI

Long Term

$ 150,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (37.5-%)
Storm Sewer Utility Fund (37.5%)
SDIC (25%

The North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, prepared in 2007,
and South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, prepared in 2012,
will be outdated and in need of update. These master plans should be
unified in the future.

Update both the North and South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master
Plans in a new unified City of Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan.

Staff
No

None
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1. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:

EXHIBIT E

Parks Improvements

Update Parks Master Plan

PA-001

Immediate

$ 50,000

Parks Improvement Fund (50%). General Fund-Parks (50%)

The Parks Master Plan, prepared in 2006, and the Glenn Otto Park
Master Plan, prepared in 2002, are near the end of their planning
horizon. Changes in population forecasts, demographics, community
needs and land availability render the existing Park Master Plan and
Glenn Otto Park Master Plan antiquated and in need of update.

Prepare a new Parks Master Plan, including a new Glenn Otto Park
master Plan.

Staff
¥esNo
NeneAll PA CIP

Visionary Park

Project Number:

PA-018

Timeframe:

Immediate

Estimated Cost:

$ 60.000

Funding Source:

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Problem:

Citizens and elected officials have identified the need to recognize the

Proposed Solution:

centennial anniversary of the Historic Columbia River Highway.
Commemorative artwork has been offered as a donation to the City,

and an appropriate site identified, but site work and related amenities

are needed.

Construct the Visionary Park site work and related amenities as

Identified By:

provided in Resolution #2306
City Council, Visionary Friends of Troutdale, Resolution #2306

In previous CIP?

No

Related Project(s):

None




2.3.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

3:4.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:

Estimated Cost:
Funﬂing Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

4.5.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

EXHIBIT E

Improve Existing Parks PH [

PA-002

Short Term

$2,148,992

Parks Improvement Fund (65.9%), General Fund-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

Make improvements at various parks to meet growth needs and
provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the Parks
Master Plan, 2006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-007, PA-011

Special Use Park Development

PA-003

Short Term

$ 4,000,000

Urban Renewal Agency (95%). Parks Improvement Fund (5%)

The Urban Renewal Area will require public parks space including
special use space that will complement the URA and the riverfront.

Develop approximately 2.0 acres of the former STP site as a special
use park.

Parks Master Plan, 2006, Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006 (Am. 2014)
Yes
NoenePA-001

Neighborhood Park Site Acquisition PH I
PA-004

Short Term

$ 1,075,000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
neighborhood park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard.



Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

5:6.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

6:7.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Acquire approximately 4.0 acres of neighborhood park land in
growing areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-006, PA-008

Community Park Site Acquisition
PA-005

Short/Medium Term

$ 1,881,250

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
community park land to meet the City’s established Level of Service
standard.

Acquire approximately 7.0 acres of community park land to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
NenePA-001, PA-009

Neighborhood Park Development
PA-006

Short/Medium Term

$ 400,000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Neighborhood park land acquired in Project PA-004 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 4.0 acres of neighborhood park land to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001. PA-004



7.8.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

8:9.Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Improve Existing Parks PH II

PA-007

Short/Medium Term

$ 15674;4961.074.000

Parks Improvemeﬁt Fund_(65.9%), General Fund-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

Make improvements to existing parks to meet growth needs and
provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the Parks
Master Plan, 2006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-002, PA-011

Neighborhood Park Site Acquisition PH II
PA-008

Short/Medium Term

$ 919:425919.000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
neighborhood park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard.

Acquire approximately 3.42 acres of neighborhood park land in
growing areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-004




9:10. _Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

16:11. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Community Park Site Development
PA-009

Short/Medium Term

$ 400,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Community park land acquired in project PA-005 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 7 acres of community parks in growing areas
of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001. PA-005

Pathway Trails Development PH [
PA-010

Short/Medium Term

$ 388,080 388.000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Additional pathway and trail development is need to complete the
“40-mile loop”.

Develop approximately 1 linear mile of pathway/trails to complete the
“40-mile loop” trail on the levee and along Harlow Place.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-015




4112, Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

12:13. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT I

Improve Existing Parks PH IIT

PA-011

Short/Medium Term

$ 4:674;4961.074,000

Parks Improvement Fund (65.9%). General-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

Make improvements to existing parks to meet growth needs and
provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the Parks
Master Plan, 20006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-002, PA-007 Nene

Neighborhood Park Site Development PH 1T
PA-012

Long Term

$ 342,000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Neighborhood park land acquired in Project PA-008 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 3.42 acres of neighborhood parks in growing
areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-008




13:14. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

14:15. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Community Park Site Acquisition PH II
PA-013

Long Term

$ +7793:7501.774,000

Parks Improvement Fund_(100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
community park land to meet the City’s established Level of Service
standard.

Acquire approximately 6.6 acres of land for community parks to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-014Nene

Community Park Site Development PH II
PA-014

Long Term

$ 660,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Community park land acquired in Project PA-013 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 6.6 acres of community park land to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-013




45:16. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

16:17. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Pathways/Trails Development PH I
PA-015

Long Term

$45090:3201.090,000

General Fund-Parks (100%)

Additional pathway and trail development is needed to meet the
City’s desired level of service.

Develop approximately 5.9 linear miles of pathway/trails.
Parks Master Plan, 2006

Yes

PA-001, PA-010

Neighborhood Park Acquisition and Development PH 111
PA-016

Long Term

$ +:854:4251.851,000

Genetral Fund-Parks (100%)

Existing deficiencies in neighborhood park land necessitate the
acquisition and development of additional neighborhood parks to
meet the City’s Level of Service standard.

Acquire and develop approximately 5.02 acres of land as
neighborhood parks.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001 Nene




17:18. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

EXHIBIT E

Community Park Acquisition and Development PH 111
PA-017

Long Term

$ 2;603;:3752.603,000

General Fund-Parks (100%)

Existing deficiencies in community park land necessitate the
acquisition and development of additional community park land to
meet the City’s Level of Service standard.

Acquire and develop approximately 7.06 acres of land as a
community park.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001 . Nene
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, RESCINDING
RESOLUTIONS 1995 AND 2225, AND RESCINDING THE
PARKS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN ADOPTED BY
RESOLUTION 1941

THE TROUTDALE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

1.

ORS 223.309 requires local governments that have system development
charges to prepare a capital improvement plan that includes a list of the capital
improvements that the local government intends to fund, in whole or in part, with
revenues from an improvement fee.

The capital improvement plan contained in this resolution is intended to comply
with ORS 223.309.

Resolution numbers 1941, 2225, and 1995, currently in effect, established the
current capital improvement plan project listing.

The capital improvement plan contained in this resolution provides a listing of,
and information regarding, planned capital improvement projects.

This resolution and capital improvement plan does not address projects that are
solely for maintenance, repair or replacement and therefore not classified as
improvement projects.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF TROUTDALE

Section 1. The City of Troutdale Public Works Department Capital Improvement Plan,

dated March 2016, attached hereto as Attachment A and made a part
hereof, is adopted.

Section 2. Resolution numbers 1995 and 2225 are rescinded.

Section 3. The Parks Capital Improvement Plan adopted in Resolution 1941 is

rescinded.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

Resolution # Page 1 of 2




YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTAINED:

Doug Daoust, Mayor

Date

Sarah Skroch, City Recorder

Adopted:

Resoclution #
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ATTACHMENT A

City of Troutdale
Public Works Department

Capital Improvement Plan

March, 2016
Resolution No.
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Introduction

This document provides a plan for City-funded, capacity-enhancing capital improvements that the
City anticipates will be needed over approximately the next 20 years. Among other purposes, this
plan supports the expenditure of system development charge improvement fees as required by
ORS 223.309.

The City’s Comprehensive Plan provides the overall context for development and redevelopment
patterns within the City. Comprehensive planning leads to projections of the magnitude of growth
and the patterns and intensities of growth and development. These projections in turn inform the
development of system Master Plans. System Master Plans are the primary source for projects in
this CIP. Projects can also be identified based on the goals and vision of the community and the
City Council, -

The Plan is the result of a process involving four distinct steps:

1. Project identification by the appropriate Public Works Division. Projects are most
commonly identified through the City’s Master Plans and each Master Plan has included
public involvement during its development. Projects can be identified through other
processes as well, often after receiving input from concerned citizens, groups, or
organizations.

2. Project reviews and consolidation by the Public Works Department.
3. Project review and comment by other City staff.

4, Plan revision, if necessary, and adoption by the City Council following a public hearing.

The Plan consists of these elements:
1. Project Name: A brief description of the project.

2. Project Number: A five-digit number consisting of a two-digit prefix identifying the type
of project (WA = Water, SA = Sanitary Sewer, SD = Storm Drainage, ST =
Streets/Transportation, and PA = Parks) and three digits to consecutively number the
projects within their respective categories from 001 to 999. Storm drainage projects vary
slightly, with the third digit being either an “N” (for North Troutdale Drainage Basin,
flowing to the Columbia River) or an “S” (for South Troutdale Drainage Basin, flowing to
the Sandy River), then the last two digits number the projects consecutively from 0] to 99
within the basin. The project numbers are for tracking and reporting purposes only and do
not denote priority or proposed sequence of accomplishment.

3. Timeframe: The estimated general timeframe within which the project is expected to occur.
Immediate: Project is in progress, or to commence within the next 1 or 2 fiscal years. Short:
Within the next 5 fiscal years. Medium: Within the next 5-10 fiscal years. Long: 10 years
or more.




4. FEstimated Cost: The estimated cost of the project. Where applicable, the total cost of the
project along with the anticipated City contribution. All costs shown in this plan are
reflected in current dollars (as if the project were built today), and actual dollar figures
realized for future projects will likely be higher due to construction cost inflation over time.

5. Funding Source: The proposed source of funds for the project, including the percentage of
the project cost that will be paid for with system development charge revenue.
“Improvement Funds” contain SDC revenue. Identification of a proposed funding source
does not prohibit the City Council and Budget Committee from substituting an alternative
funding source due to funding availability or other reasons, subject to the limitations and
requirements of budget and SDC laws and ordinances.

6. Problem: The problem to be solved by the project.
7. Proposed Solution/Description: A description of the essential elements of the project.

8. Identified By: The agency, document or other party that identified the problem and/or
proposed the solution.

9. In Previous CIP: Yes = This project was listed in the previous iteration of the CIP; No =
This is a newly identified project in this current iteration of the CIP.

10. Related Projects: The identification of any other Capital Improvement Projects that might
substantially affect this project.

This Plan does not appropriate funds nor authorize improvements to be accomplished. Funding
for a proposed project must be appropriated through the normal budget process. The City Council
and Budget Committee retain authority to approve or reject funding for any project herein during
that budget process each fiscal year. Applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and

“regulations apply. Inclusion of a project in this Plan is not an indication that project approval will
be granted, funds will be appropriated, external funds will be forthcoming, or necessary permits
will be issued. The City Council may amend this plan at any time, and it is recommended that this
plan be reviewed and updated (as needed) by the City Council at least annually.

Comments concerning the format andfor content of this Plan are welcomed and should be
addressed to the Public Works Department, City of Troutdale, 342 SW 4th Street, Troutdale, OR

97060.

ABBREVIATIONS
CBD Central Business District
CIp Capital Improvement Plan




ODOT
PRV
SDIC
STIP
URA

Oregon Department of Transportation

Pressure Regulating Valve

Sandy Drainage Improvement Company

Surface Transportation Improvement Program (State of Oregon)

Urban Renewal Area or Urban Renewal Agency




Transportation Improvements

1. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Improve NW Graham Road

ST-080

Immediate (in-progress)

$ 3,400,000 (Total Cost) $ 550,000 (City Share)

Port of Portland, ODOT ($ 2,850,000)
Street Improvement Fund ($ 550,000)

Portions of NW Graham Road need to be reconstructed, widened
and/or structurally upgraded to accommodate traffic growth,
especially freight, with the development of the north industrial area

including the Troutdale Reynolds Industrial Park.

Widen and improve selected portions of NW Graham Road.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M8)
y P )% )]
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-N20
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2. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem: -

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Downtown Parking Lot

ST-089

Immediate

$ 50,000

Police Facility Capital Project Fund (100%)

Additional parking capacity is desired in the central business district
and business owners have indicated a desire for more public patking
availability in the CBD for all users. The construction of the new
Police Facility has left the old Police Department site available for

redevelopment and reuse.

Construct a public parking lot on the old Police Department site at
141 SE Dora Avenue.

City Council
No
ST-081
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3. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Downtown Parking Study
ST-090

Immediate

$ 51,000

Street Fund (25%), Street Improvement (25%)
General Fund-Planning (50%)

Additional ADA and bicycle parking is desired in the central
business district and business owners have indicated a desire for
more public parking availability in the CBD for all users.

Conduct a study to optimize existing parking in the CBD, and to
identify and assess opportunities for developing additional public
parking, including ADA and bicycle parking.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M13)
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): ST-081, ST-082, ST-089
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4. Project Name: Columbia Gorge Bike Hub

Project Number: ST-082
Timeframe: Immediate
Estimated Cost: $85,000
Funding Source: ODOT (100%)

Problem: The CBD is a town center intended to be bicycle-friendly.
Additionally, the CBD lies on a very popular bicycle touring route
and experiences large, and increasing, bicycle traffic volumes.
Bicycle parking and support facilities for cyclists are very limited in
the CBD, discouraging CBD workers from bicyeling and
discouraging bicyclists from visiting and stopping in the CBD.
Travel Oregon is partnering with Cities (including Troutdale) along
the Columbia Gorge and other community groups to develop
Bicycle Hubs in each City that will provide rest stops and support

services for bicycle riders. Troutdale currently lacks such a bike

hub.

Proposed Solution: Construct a Bike Hub along Historic Columbia River Highway

Identified By: Travel Oregon, Chamber of Commerce, City Council
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): ST-090, ST-081
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5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

ADA Transition Plan for PW Facilities
ST-083

Immediate

$ 15,000

Public Works Management (100%)

All municipalities are required to prepare, adopt and pursue an ADA
transition plan to remove existing ADA barriers. The City’s ADA
transition plan is out of date and needs updated.

Prepare a new ADA transition plan for Public Works Facilities.
Staff

No

ST-088




6. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Primary Access to Urban Renewal Area
ST-084

Short Term

$3,197,000

Urban Renewal Agency (100%)

The Urban Renewal Area lacks a sufficient primary automobile,
bicycle and pedestrian access road.

Acquire right-of-way and construct a new public street through the
Columbia Factory Outlet Mall property from the intersection of SW
257™ Avenue and SW 257" Way to the Urban Renewal Area.

Identified By: Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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7. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Bicycle Parking in the CBD

ST-081

Short Term

$ 31,000

Bike Paths and Trails Fund (50%), Street Fund (50%)

The CBD is a town center intended to be bicycle-friendly.
Additionally, the CBD lies on a very popular bicycle touring route
and experiences large, and increasing, bicycle traffic volumes.
Bicycle parking is currently very limited in the CBD, discouraging
CBD workers from bicycling and discouraging bicyclists from
visiting and stopping in the CBD.

Install bicycle parking in the CBD at one or more locations,
including covered/long-term bicycle parking

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project B18)
No
ST-082, ST-090, ST-091
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8. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
stimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Shared Roadway Pavement Markings
ST-091

Short Term

$ 62,000

Street Fund (100%)

Several bicycle routes in the City do not have sufficient roadway
space for dedicated bicycle lanes and are low-speed roads where
bicycles can safely share the travel lanes with vehicles.

Install shared roadway pavement markings.
City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Projects B11-B15)
No

None

12




9. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Pedestrian Crossings/Traffic Calming in the CBD
ST-079
Short Term

$ 150,000 (Total Cost) $ 60,000 (City Share)

County (50%), Developer (10%), Street Fund (25%)
Street Improvement Fund (15%)

The CBD is a Town Center intended to be pedestrian-oriented, with
additional focus on pedestrian safety, accessibility and circulation.
Current configuration of Historic Columbia River Highway is auto-
oriented and needs to be friendlier and more inviting to pedestrians,
encourage pedestrians to circulate between north and south sides of
street, and ADA compliant. On-street parking limits site distance
for vehicles entering from side-streets. Traffic calming is needed to
reduce vehicle speeds and improve vehicular and pedestrian safety.

Install curb extensions, including new ADA ramps, along HCRH at
Kendall, Buxton, Dora, Harlow and Kibling intersections on north
and south sides of HCRH

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project P37)
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Improve Stark Street from 257th to Troutdale Road

ST-007

Short Term

$ 3,690,000 (Total Cost) $ 369,000 (City Share)
County/Regional Funds (90%), Street Improvement Fund (10%)

This portion of Stark Street needs additional travel lanes, a center
turn lane, and bike and pedestrian capacity.

Widen this portion of Stark Street to provide four travel lanes and a
turn lane, reduce vertical and horizontal curves, and construct

sidewalks and bike lanes.
City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M4), STIP,

Identified By:
RTP
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-S27
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11. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Construct Pedestrian Access ways

ST-064

Short, Med and Long Térm

$ 120,000

Bike Paths and Trails Fund (100%)

Lack of pedestrian connectivity in several areas of the City.

Construct pedestrian connection access ways in various locations in
the City.

Staff
Yes

None
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12. Project Name: Improve SW Hensley Road —
Project Number: ST-012
Timeframe: Medium Term
Estimated Cost: $ 300,000

Funding Source:

Problem:

N/S leg

Street Improvement Fund (50%), Street Fund (50%)
The north/south leg of SW Hensley does not meet current City street

standards due to a lack of curbs, sidewalks and other standard

streetscape elements.

Proposed Solution:

Improve SW Hensley Road by widening the roadway and

constructing curbs, sidewalks, pedestrian crossings and other
streetscape elements to meet current standards.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project P8)
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-S34
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13. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Signal at Buxton/Historic Columbia River Highway
ST-078

Medium Term
$ 250,000 (Total Cost) $ 50,000 (City Share)
County/Regional Funds (80%), Street Improvement Fund (20%)

This intersection is currently stop controlled and experiences heavy
volumes during peak hours. Proximity to 257/HCRH intersection

creates traffic issues and backups. There is limited opportunity for
traffic making a left turn from Buxton onto the Historic Columbia

River Highway, resulting in delay and backups on Buxton.

Install a traffic signal at the intersection of Buxton Avenue and the
Historic Columbia River Highway. Coordinate signal phasing with
257"/Columbia River Highway signal.

City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M11)

Identified By:
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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14. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Reconstruct and Improve NW Dunbar Avenue
ST-045

Medium Term

$ 468,000

Street Improvement Fund (50%), Street Fund (50%)

NW Dunbar Avenue does not meet current City street standards due
to insufficient pavement width, curbs, sidewalks and other standard
streetscape elements..

Improve NW Dunbar Avenue by widening the roadway and

constructing curbs, sidewalks, pedestrian crossings and other
streetscape elements to meet the commercial/industrial standard.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M 14)
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-N16
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15. Project Name: Pedestrian Bridge from CBD to URA

Project Number: ST-085

Timeframe: Long Term

Estimated Cost: $ 3,074,000

Funding Source: Urban Renewal Agency (100%)

Problem: There is a lack of direct pedestrian connectivity between the URA

and the CBD. The Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) presents a barrier
to developing traditional ground-level pedestrian connections

between the CBD and the URA.

Proposed Solution: Construct a pedestrian bridge over the UPRR right of way between
the CBD and the URA.

Identified By: Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006

In Previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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16. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Backage Road (Marine Drive Extension)

ST-077

Long Term

$ 9,737,000 (Total Cost) $ 1,168,000 (City Share)
ODOT STIP (88%), Street Improvement (12%)

There are congestion and turning movement conflicts on the
southern Frontage Road.

Construct a roadway from the intersection of Marine Drive/South
Frontage Road southerly and easterly to the intersection of 257th
Drive/257th Way behind the Frontage Road businesses.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Transportation System Plan (Project M9),
Troutdale Interchange Area Management Plan, 2011
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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17. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:
Identified By:

In Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Update the Transportation System Plan

ST-086

Long Term

$100,000

General Fund-Planning (50%), Street Improvement (50%)

The current Transportation System Plan, prepared in 2014, will be
in need of update. The need to update may also be driven by
Periodic Review or other state Planning requirements.

Prepare an updated Transportation System Plan.
Staff
No

None

CITY OF TROUTDALE
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN

Adapted Aprll 81h, 2004 by Ordinencoe no. B20

Prejared for; throparod by

City of
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18. Project Name: Sidewalk Infill

Project Number: ST-087

Timeframe: Ongoing

Estimated Cost: $75,000

Funding Source: Bike Paths and Trails Fund (50%), Street Fund (50%)

Problem: Tﬁere are numerous gaps in the City’s sidewalk system and some
streets lack sidewalks entirely.

Proposed Solution: Construct sidewalks to infill gaps and to provide sidewalks on
streets that have none,

Identified By: Staff

In Previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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19. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

ADA Infill/Upgrades on Public Streets

ST-088

Ongoing

$250,000

Street Fund (50%), Bike Paths and Trails Fund (50%)

The ADA Transition Plan will identify needed ADA infill and
upgrade projects.

Construct new and upgraded ADA facilities on public streets where
directed by the ADA Transition Plan.

Staff
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I. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Water Improvements

Reservoir Seismic Study
WA-044

Short Term

$ 86,000

Water Fund (100%)

The City’s drinking water reservoirs were built prior to the
implementation of current seismic standards and appear to be
deficient with respect to modein seismic protections. Reservoirs are
critical infrastructure to protect life and health during a disaster
event, Additionally, resetrvoir failure in an earthquake could result
in significant property damage. Reservoirs should be constructed
and equipped to survive the Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE)
event to the maximum extent practicable based on current
knowledge and standards.

Conduct a study to determine the seismic performance of all four of
the City’s reservoirs under the MCE event scenario and to make
specific retrofit recommendations for each reservoir to improve its
ability to survive the MCE event without failure or loss of contents.
This will inform and determine the specific scopes of work for WA-
045 and WA-046,

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes
WA-045, WA-046
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2. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Extend Water Line from Spectro (Commerce Court) to Galli
Container Storage Property (formerly RMAC)

WA-028

Short Term

$ 80,000

Water Improvement Fund (100%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing
flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale
and accumulate sediments. This increased capacity and reliability
is needed to serve growth in the north industrial area.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012, Staff*
Yes*

WA-040

*This is a staff-developed variation on the project identified in the Master Plan and prior CIP
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3. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Rogers Circle to Spectro (Commerce Court) Water Main Loop
WA-040

Short Term

$97,000

Water Improvement Fund (50%), Water Fund (50%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing
flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale
and accumulate sediments. This increased capacity and reliability
is needed to serve growth in the north industrial area.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012/Staff*
Yes*

WA-028

*This is a staff-developed variation on the project identified in the Master Plan and prior CIP
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4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Urban Renewal Area to Harlow Place Loop

WA-042

Short Term

$ 155,000 (Total Cost) $ 15,500 (City Share)
Developer (90%), URA (10%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

- Construct two water line segments to loop the system. Looping the
distribution system in this area increases capacity and reliability by
allowing flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale
and accumulate sediments. This improvement is needed to serve
growth in the URA and along Harlow Place. Additionally, this loop
will increase capacity and reliability of fire flows to serve growth in
the north industrial area. Include a PRV at the pressure zone
boundary.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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5. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

7" Street — Kings Byway Water Main Upsizing
WA-048

Short Term

$ 425,000

Water Fund (100%)

Modeled fire flows along Kings Byway are below current
firefighting standards. Residents along these streets experience low
pressures when the altitude valve at Reservoir #1 opens, due to the
higher velocities developed in the existing small main.

Upsize the water main in 7" Street and Kings Byway from 6” to 8”
diameter.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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6. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Upgrade Booster Pump Station No. 2
WA-047

Short Term

$ 50,000

Water Fund (100%)

Booster pump station No. 2 boosts pressure and flow to the
southernmost service area of the City (Zone 6). The current booster
station is under capacity and, as a result, the service area experiences
periods of low pressure and fire flows could be impaired.

Upgrade the booster pumping station to increase capacity, providing
more reliable service pressures and fire flows.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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7. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

SW Cherry Park Road to SW Spence Rd Loop

WA-049

Medium Term

$ 65,000

Developers (100%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area. Modeled
fire flows along Spence Rd are inadequate.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing
flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale
and accumulate sediments. This loop will additionally benefit infill
subdivision development of the adjacent properties on Cherry Park
Road by providing a water main to serve those properties.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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8. Project Name:
I

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Construct a 1.0 MG Standpipe (Reservoir No. 5) with line to Zone

WA-008

Medium Term

$2,257,000

Water Improvement Fund (100%)

There is inadequate storage for Zones 1, 2, & 3. Zone 6 cutrently
requires booster pumping to maintain adequate service pressures
and flows.

Construct a 1.0 MG Standpipe to provide additional capacity for fire
flow and periods that wells are inoperative or unable to meet
demand, with a transmission line connecting to pressure Zone 1 at
Stark Street. Interconnect current Zone 6 to incorporate Zone 6 into
Zone 1.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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9. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Rogers Circle to Graham Circle Water Main Loop
WA-041

Medium Term

$ 65,000

Water Fund (100%)

The water distribution system is not looped in this area.

Construct a water line to loop the system. Looping the distribution
system in this area increases capacity and reliability by allowing
flow from either direction, and improves water quality by
eliminating dead ends in the system where water can become stale
and accumulate sediments.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
}:ﬂ-’ ﬁ;;' - - —_— 1_2_5.1 WC. E'f? - o
NS | 3 -
127 D1

2,
— =|3-, 2" PVE W GRAHAM Gy
-

.' d .
WA-041 o BT

33



10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Well No. 9

WA-043

Medium Term

$ 2,269,000

Water Improvement Fund (100%)

Firm production capacity of the City’s well field will not meet future

demands

Construct an additional well to provide additional firm production

needed to meet future demand

Identified By: City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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11.

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Reservoir No. 2 Seismic Improvements
WA-045

Long Term

$339,000

Water Fund (100%)

Reservoir 2 was built prior to the implementation of current seismic
standards and appears to be deficient with respect to modern seismic
protections. Reservoirs are critical infrastructure to protect life and
health during a disaster event. Additionally, reservoir failure in an
earthquake could result in significant property damage. Reservoir 2
is the City’s most important reservoir, and also the reservoir with
the highest potential property damage consequence in a structural
failure. Reservoir 2 should be constructed and equipped to survive
the Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE) event to the maximum
extent practicable based on current knowledge and standards.

Retrofit seismic upgrades to the reservoir in accordance with the
recommendation of a reservoir seismic study.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): WA-044
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12.

Project Name:
Projeet Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Furding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Reservoir Nos. 1, 3 and 4 Seismic Improvements
WA-046

Long Term

$ 402,000

Water Fund (100%)

Reservoirs 1, 3 and 4 were built prior to the implementation of
current seismic standards and appear to be deficient with respect to
modern seismic protections. Reservoirs are critical infrastructure to
protect life and health during a disaster event. Additionally,
reservoir failure in an earthquake could result in significant property
damage. Reservoirs 1, 3 and 4 should be constructed and equipped
to survive the Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE) event to the
maximum extent practicable based on current knowledge and
standards. |

Retrofit seismic upgrades to the reservoirs in accordance with the
recommendation of a reservoir seismic study.

City of Troutdale Water Master Plan, 2012
Yes
WA-044
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13.

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Update the Water Master Plan

WA-038

Long Term

$ 100,000

Water Improvement Fund (50%), Water Fund (50%)

The current Water Master Plan was prepared in 2012 and will need

updated.

Update the Waster Master Plan.
Staff

No

None

City of Troutdale

WATER MASTER PLAN

luly 31, 2012
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Sanitary Sewer Improvements

1. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solation:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

GO Bond Debt Service

NA

Through FY 2017-18

$ 11,389,291 (Remaining Balance: $ 3,555,000)

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund (39%), Sewer Fund (28%) and
Property Tax (33%).

Although the new treatment facility constructed with these GO
bonds provided for a 47% increase in capacity (from 1.6 mgd to 3.0
mgd), the City Council determined that only 39% of the debt service
payments should be paid by the Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund.

Pay 39% of the debt service payment from the Sanitary Sewer
Improvement Fund, plus an additional $1,128,400 originally
intended to be paid from SDCs but actually paid from property taxes
due to lack of SDC revenue.

Staff
Yes

None
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2. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Wastewater Operations Annex (“GSA Property”) Improvements
SA-063

Immediate

$ 35,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

The City acquired this property adjacent to the WPCF through a
grant from the Federal Government, for use in support of wastewater
operations. The property lacks improvements to render it useable in
its intended role. The Federal Government requires that the City
improve and utilize the property or risk rescission of the grant.

Construct basic improvements on the property, including access and
circulation roads and drainage facilities.

Identified By: Staff

In Previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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3. Project Name: Onsite Water Recycling System at the WPCF

Project Number: SA-064

Timeframe: Short Term

Estimated Cost: $150,000

Funding Source: Sewer Fund (100%)

Problem: The WPCF operations and irrigation is one of the largest consumers

among the City’s water customers, driving up the total water
demand on the City’s system and consuming water resources. This
is also a significant expense for the City.

Proposed Solution: Install a water recycling system at the WPCF to recycle treated
effluent for use onsite as process water and for irrigating the WPCF
grounds.

Identified By: Staff

In Previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): None
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4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Upgrade Pump Station #2 (Husky Pump Station)
SA-040

Short Term

$ 408,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

The pump station needs increased pump and motor capacity,
increased wet well capacity, and enhanced motor controls.

Upgrade the capacity of the pump station by providing pump/motor,
controls, and wet well improvements.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013

In Previous CIP? Yes

Related Project(s): SA-062
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5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
Ir Previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Pump Station Emergency Backup Power
SA- 062

Short, Medium Term

$ 200,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

Several of the City’s sanitary sewer pump stations lack onsite
emergency power supply and rely on a very limited number of
portable generators that must be deployed from the WPCF. In the
event of a power outage, especially an outage affecting multiple
pump stations, sanitary sewer overflows could occur.

Install onsite emergency backup power generators with automatic
transfer switches at pump station #’s 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8.

Staff
No
SA-040, SA-059
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6. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Airport to Graham Road Sewer Main Upsizing
SA-057

Medium Term

$ 714,000

Developer

The existing segment of sewer main from the Sundial Road to the
western end of Perimeter Way (via Graham Road) may be
undersized with future flows, depending on intensity of industrial

development
Proposed Solution: Upsize approximately 1,700 linear feet of the sewer main from 8”
to 10”
Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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7. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

South Buxton Road Sewer Main Upsizing

SA-055

Medium Term

$ 554,000

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund (38.4%), Sewer Fund (61.6%)

Existing sewer mains in the southern segment of S Buxton Road are
projected to be under capacity with future growth

Upsize approximately 1200 linear feet of the sewer mains in S
Buxton Road from 8” to 10”

Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s):
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8. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Upgrade/Replace Pump Station #1, new force main
SA-060

Medium Term

$2,973,000

Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

Future flows to this pump station/force-main will exceed its current
capacity. The pump station configuration and equipment is aged
and in need of upgrades, resulting in operational issues and poor
efficiency relative to what can be provided with current technology.
The alignment of the existing force main was based on the location
of the old Wastewater Treatment Plant, resulting in flows from this
pump station taking an unnecessarily circuitous route to the current
WPCEF location, which in turn puts unnecessary pressure on other
force mains and pump stations along Frontage Road.

Upgrade or replace the existing pump station and construct a new
3,560 linear foot, 8” diameter force main directly east through the
airport in an existing sanitary sewer easement to Graham Road.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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Project Name: Upsize Pump Station #7 (Sundial Pump Station)

Project Number: SA-059

Timeframe: Medium Term

Fstimated Cost: $ 160,000

Funding Source: Developer (100%)

Problem: Future flows to PS #7 may exceed existing pumping capacity,
depending on intensity of industrial development.

Proposed Solution: Install larger pumps.

Identified By: City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013

In Previous CIP? No

Related Project(s): SA-062
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10.

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Lower Beaver Creek and Troutdale Rd Sewer Main Upsizing
SA-056

Long Term

$ 3,776,000

Sewer Improvement Fund (38.4%), Sewer Fund (61.6%)

Existing sewer main in the southern segment of SE Beaver Creek
Lane are projected to be under capacity with future growth.

Upsize the sewer main.
City of Troutdale Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, 2013
No
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11.

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

WPCF Upgrades
SA- 061

Long Term

$ 750,000

Sewer Fund (100%)

Changes in Federal and State NPDES regulations may result in more
stringent limitations on Water Pollution Control Facility discharges
that the City’s WPCF cannot meet with its current treatment

systems.
Construct additional and/or upgraded treatment systems at the
WPCF.

Identified By: Staff
In Previous CIP? No
Related Project(s): None
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12.

Project Name:
Projeet Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In Previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Update Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan
SA-053

Long Term

$ 100,000

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Sewer Fund (50%)

The current Sanitary Sewer Master Plan was prepared in 2013 and

will need updated.

Update the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan.
Staff

Yes

None

Sanitary Sewer
Master Plan
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Storm Sewer Improvements

1. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Graham Road Storm Drainage

SD-N20

Immediate (in progress)

$ 1,800,000 (Total Cost) $ 550,000 (City Share)

Port of Portland ($ 1,250,000)
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund ($ 550,000)

There is no developed storm drainage system along NW Graham
Road.

Construct a storm drainage system on NW Graham Road.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): ST-080
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2. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:
Creek.

Proposed Solution:

Salmon Creek Weir Improvements
SD-N21

Immediate (in progress)

$ 150,000 (City Share)

SDIC, Port of Portland
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund ($ 150,000)

There are potential stormwater capacity problems along Salmon

Relocate and increase the crest length of the existing relief weir
located along Salmon Creek and the width of the channel which
receives water from the weir. The suggested weir length and the
channel width are 50 feet.

Identified By: North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
|
ol SNzl
b fFI' -’—: _.-:?::t:-"«__' r
l . -
|.' T "y
lI
\ ™~
k N \
I[l - % _71.,\‘.';-" \ N\ ‘“Hm i
| \ .-\"'l-
\ \ ‘
| "nl l %a’ta
'I\ *--.,
C ’ TB"%;
" \ :
Y "" ‘ | %@!
i | %

53



3. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Beaver Creek Culverts
SD-527

Immediate (in-progress)

$ 1,608,000 (Total Cost) $ 100,000 (City share)

County/STIP ($ 1,508,000)
Storm Sewer Improvement Fund ($ 100,000)

The Stark Street culvert must be upsized for capacity, upgraded for
fish passage and lengthened to accommodate improvements to SE
Stark Street. The Troutdale Road culvert requires upgraded fish

passage.

Replace the existing Stark Street culvert with a larger, longer culvert
or bridge, with fish passage. Retrofit the Troutdale Road culvert

with an upgraded fish passage structure.

STIP, Multnomah County
Yes
ST-007
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4. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Rehabilitate and Upgrade North Evans Outfall
SD-S28

Immediate

$ 145,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

The North Evans outfall bubbler structure is severely undermined
and unstable, and its rip-rap toe protection has unraveled and is
sloughing away. The outfall structure’s foundation is in imminent
danger of failure, resulting in loss of the outfall structure and
damage to Beaver Creek.

Rehabilitate and upgrade the outfall by constructing an upgraded
foundation for the bubbler, resetting the bubbler, replacing the rip-
rap toe protection and adding tie-backs to the slope with soil nails
and cabling. '

Staff
Yes

None
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5. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:
(25%)

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Update the North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan

SD-N29

Immediate

$ 100,000 (Total Cost) City Share ($50,000)

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (25%), Storm Sewer Utility Fund

SDIC (50%)

The current North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan was
prepared in 2006 and 2007. Shortly after that, the Port began
designing and developing the Troutdale Reynolds Industrial Park,
encompassing a large portion of the study area. Concurrently,
Multnomah County Drainage District conducted a complete revised
modeling of their service area. More recently, the owner of the
Edgefield North property has conducted detailed site specific
stormwater modeling and design work for that property, which may
affect the need for downstream improvements. Considering all of
this, it is prudent to update the North Troutdale Master Plan to
incorporate the known changes within the study area and the
additional information now available. This update may reveal that
some currently planned projects are no longer needed, or that other,
previously unidentified, projects should be added.

Update North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan
Staff

No

All SD-N
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6. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:
Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

SW 14" Street Drainage Improvement
SD-S35

Immediate

$ 15,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

Recurring flooding on SW 14" Street due to insufficient disposal

capacity.

Add capacity to existing drywell system or install an overflow

connection to storm main in Hensley.
Staff
No

None
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7. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Columbia River Highway Bypass
SD-N25

Short Term

$ 466,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

The existing 24-inch drain line located in the Columbia River
Highway’s railroad underpass does not provide sufficient
conveyance capacity for future flows.

Install a bypass where future flows leave the drainage area north of
Halsey and cross Columbia River Highway. The bypass will consist
of 5 elements: 50 feet of 24-inch trenched culvert under Columbia
River Highway, 160 feet of 24-inch drain line, 40 feet of 24-inch
culvert under a railroad embankment, another 40 feet of 36-inch
drain line, and 80 feet of 36-inch culvert under a second railroad
embankment.

Identified By: North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-N29
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8. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

North Arata Creek Drain Line Improvement

SD-N23

Short Term

$ 760,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

There are potential stormwater capacity problems along Arata Creek
south of Marine Drive with increasing flows from urbanization.

Install 160 feet of 48-inch culvert under the railroad immediately
upstream of the outlet to Salmon Creek and 520 feet of 48-inch drain
line directly west of the airport runway and parallel to the existing

drain lines.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
Yes

SD-N29
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9. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

South Arata Creek Culvert Improvement
SD-N24

Short Term

$ 678,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

The existing railroad culvert needs to be augmented with an
additional culvert to prevent localized flooding in the area
immediately upstream of the railroad embankment.

Install an additional 470 feet of 36-inch culvert where Arata Creek
crosses the railroad embankment north of Interstate 84 and
additional piping under the paved area directly north of the
embankment.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007
Yes
SD-N29

-
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10. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Sandee Palisades Detention Pond Retrofit
SD-S31

Short Term

$ 170,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development
in this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that
the City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing
developed areas in the City.

Retrofit the existing detention pond to add stormwater quality
treatment capability

South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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11. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:
Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Marine Drive Culvert Bypass

SD-N26
Medium Term
$ 635,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

There is a potential for flooding northeast of the Marine Drive curve.

Provide a cross connection between the two south-to-north drainage
systems to help balance flows by providing 2100 feet of 36-inch
drain line north of and parallel to Marine Drive and an additional

150 feet of 36-inch culvert
Corporate Center.

crossing Marine Drive east of the 1-84

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2007

Yes
SD-N29
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12. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

NW Dunbar Avenue Storm Line
SD-N16

Medium Term

$ 361,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (100%)

When NW Dunbar Avenue is improved, a new stormwater
collection and conveyance system will be required. Properties along
Dunbar currently have limited options for storm drainage and some
of these commercial/industrial properties experience localized
onsite flooding during heavy rain events.

Construct a new stormwater collection and conveyance system for
NW Dunbar Avenue.

Identified By: Staff
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): ST-045
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13. Project Name: SE 3rd Street and SE Dora Main Upsizing

Project Number: SD-S29

Timeframe: Medium Term

Estimated Cost: $ 149,000

Funding Source: Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

Problem: Potential flooding along 3™ and Dora Streets during high flow
events due to insufficient capacity in the mains.

Proposed Solution: Upsize approximately 453 linear feet of the storm sewer mains in
Dora Avenue from 12" to 15”.

Identified By: South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012

In previous CIP? Yes

Related Project(s): None
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14. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

SE 21st Street Main Upsizing
SD-S30

Medium Term

$ 122,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

Potential flooding along SE 21% Street during high flow events due
to insufficient capacity in the main.

Upsize approximately 364 linear feet of the storm sewer mains in
SW 21* Street from 12” to 15”.

Identified By: South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): None
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15. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Strawberry Meadows Detention Pond Retrofit
SD-S32

Medium Term

$ 98,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development
in this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that
the City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing
developed areas in the City.

Retrofit the existing detention pond to add stormwater quality
treatment capability.

South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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16. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Hensley Road Storm Drainage — N/S Leg
SD-S34

Medium Term

$ 50,000

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Storm Sewer Utility Fund
(50%)

Street widening and improvements to the N/S leg of SW Hensley
Road will necessitate the provision of storm drainage systems to
serve the improved roadway.

Install storm drainage facilities associated with roadway
improvements on the N/S leg of SW Hensley Road.

Staff
No*
ST-012

* The Hensley Road street improvements have long been in the Transportation CIP, but there
has not been a corresponding storm drainage project in the CIP previously
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17. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Stuart Ridge Detention Pond Retrofit
SD-S33

Long Term

$ 73,000

Storm Sewer Utility Fund (100%)

There is no stormwater quality treatment for existing development
in this area of the City. The City’s NPDES MS4 permit requires that
the City take incremental steps to provide treatment to existing
developed areas in the City.

Retrofit the existing detention pond to add stormwater quality
treatment capability.

South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, 2012
Yes

None
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18. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

SDIC Pump Station Upgrade, Phase 11

SD-N07B

Long Term

$ 602,000 (City Share)

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (50%), Storm Sewer Utility Fund
(50%)

There will be inadequate pumping capacity at the Sandy Drainage
Improvement Company’s pump station with future flows from

urbanization.
Construct additional pumping and/or storage capacity.

North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, March 1990,

Identified By:
prepared by David J. Newton Associates, Inc.
In previous CIP? Yes
Related Project(s): SD-N29
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19. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Retated Project(s):

Unified Storm Drainage Master Plan

SD-SN1

Long Term

$ 150,000 (Total Cost) § 112,500 (City Share)

Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (37.5%)
Storm Sewer Utility Fund (37.5%)
SDIC (25%)

The North Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, prepared in 2007,
and South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master Plan, prepared in 2012,
will be outdated and in need of update. These master plans should
be unified in the future.

Update both the North and South Troutdale Storm Drainage Master
Plans in a new unified City of Troutdale Storm Drainage Master
Plan.

Staff
No

None
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1. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Parks Improvements

Update Parks Master Plan

PA-001

Immediate

$ 50,000

Parks Improvement Fund (50%), General Fund-Parks (50%)

The Parks Master Plan, prepared in 2006, and the Glenn Otto Park
Master Plan, prepared in 2002, are near the end of their planning
hotizon. Changes in population forecasts, demographics,
community needs and Jand availability render the existing Park
Master Plan and Glenn Otto Park Master Plan antiquated and in
need of update.

Prepare a new Parks Master Plan, including a new Glenn Otto Park
master Plan,

Staff
No
AllPA CIP

Visionary Park

PA-018

Immediate

$ 60,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Citizens and elected officials have identified the need to recognize
the centennial anniversary of the Historic Columbia River
Highway. Commemorative artwork has been offered as a donation
to the City, and an appropriate site identified, but site work and
related amenities are needed.

Construct the Visionary Park site work and related amenities as
provided in Resolution #2306

City Council, Visionary Friends of Troutdale, Resolution #2306
No

None
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3. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:

Funding Source:

Improve Existing Parks PH |

PA-002

Short Term

$ 2,149,000

Parks Improvement Fund (65.9%), General Fund-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

Make improvements at various parks to meet growth needs and
provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the
Parks Master Plan, 2006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-00L, PA-007, PA-011

Special Use Park Development

PA-003

Short Term

$ 4,000,000

Urban Renewal Agency (95%), Parks Improvement Fund (5%)

The Urban Renewal Area will require public parks space including
special use space that will complement the URA and the riverfront.

Develop approximately 2.0 acres of the former STP sitc as a
special use park.

Parks Master Plan, 2006, Riverfront Renewal Plan, 2006 (Am. 2014)
Yes
PA-001

Neighborhood Park Site Acquisition PH 1
PA-004 ‘
Short Term

$ 1,075,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)
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Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Projeci(s):

. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

1dentified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
neighborhood park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard.

Acquire approximately 4.0 acres of neighborhood park land in
growing areas of the City.

Parks Masier Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-006, PA-008

Community Park Site Acquisition
PA-005

Short/Medium Term

$ 1,881,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
community park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard.

Acquire approximately 7.0 acres of community park land to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-009

Neighborhood Park Development
PA-006

Short/Medium Term

$ 400,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

~ Neighborhood park land acquired in Project PA-004 will need to

be developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 4.0 acres of neighborhood park land to
meet growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-004
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8. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

. Project Name:

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Improve Existing Parks PH I1

PA-007

Short/Medium Term

$ 1,074,000

Parks Improvement Fund (65.9%), General Fund-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

‘Make improvements to existing parks to meet growth needs and

provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the
Parks Master Plan, 2006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-002, PA-0O11

Neighborhood Park Site Acquisition PH 1
PA-008

Short/Medium Term

$ 919,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
neighborhood park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard,

Acquire approximately 3.42 acres of neighborhood park land in
growing areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-004
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10. Project Name:

11.

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Community Park Site Development
PA-009

Short/Medium Term

$ 400,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Community park land acquired in project PA-005 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 7 acres of community parks in growing
areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2000
Yes
PA-001, PA-005

Pathway Trails Development PH 1
PA-010

Short/Medium Term

$ 388,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Additional pathway and trail development is need to complete the
“40-mile loop”.

Develop approximately 1 linear mile of pathway/trails to complete
the “40-mile loop” trail on the levee and along Harlow Place.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-015
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12. Project Name:

13.

Praject Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Improve Existing Parks PH III

PA-011

Short/Medium Term

$ 1,074,000

Parks Improvement Fund (65.9%), General-Parks (34.1%)

Increases in population and intensification of use at various parks,
together with existing deficiencies at various parks, necessitates
improvements, upgrades and additional amenities.

Make improvements to existing parks to meet growth needs and
provide desired upgrades as described in tables 6.11-6.13 of the
Parks Master Plan, 2006.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-002, PA-0G7

Neighborhood Park Site Development PH 11
PA-012

Long Term

$ 342,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Neighborhood park land acquired in Project PA-008 will need to
be developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 3.42 acres of neighborhood parks in
growing areas of the City.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-008
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14.

15.

Project Name:
Praject Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:
Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Community Park Site Acquisition PH 11
PA-013

Long Term

$ 1,774,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Increases in population necessitate the acquisition of additional
community park land to meet the City’s established Level of
Service standard.

Acquire approximately 6.6 acres of land for community parks to
meet growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-00I, PA-014

Community Park Site Development PH 11
PA-014

Long Term

$ 660,000

Parks Improvement Fund (100%)

Community park land acquired in Project PA-013 will need to be
developed with park improvements and amenities.

Develop approximately 6.6 acres of community park land to meet
growth needs.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001, PA-013
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16. Project Name:

17.

Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Propaosed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:

In previous CIP?

Related Project(s):

Pathways/Trails Development PH 11
PA-015

Long Term

$1,090,000

General Fund-Parlks (100%)

Additional pathway and trail development is needed to meet the
City’s desired level of service.

Develop approximately 5.9 linear miles of pathway/trails.
Parks Master Plan, 20006

Yes

PA-001, PA-010

Neighborhood Park Acquisition and Development PH 111
PA-016

Long Term

$ 1,851,000

General Fund-Parks (100%)

Existing deficiencies in neighborhood park land necessitate the
acquisition and development of additional neighborhood parks to
meet the City’s Level of Service standard.

Acquire and develop approximately 5.02 acres of land as
neighborhood parks.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001,
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18. Project Name:
Project Number:
Timeframe:
Estimated Cost:
Funding Source:

Problem:

Proposed Solution:

Identified By:
In previous CIP?
Related Project(s):

Community Park Acquisition and Development PH 11T
PA-017

Long Term

$ 2,603,000

General Fund-Parks (100%)

Existing deficiencies in community park fand necessitate the
acquisition and development of additional community park land to
meet the City’s Level of Service standard.

Acquire and develop approximately 7.06 acres of land as a
community park.

Parks Master Plan, 2006
Yes
PA-001
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